




























TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Slandalom, Balance Sheet as at Marcil 31, 202J 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Losa for the yaar ended March 31, 1023 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone financial statements 

1. Corporate information

Tata Steel Long Products Limited ('TSLPL' or 'the Company') is a public limited Company incorporated in India with its registered 

office at Joda, Odisha, India. The Company is a subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited. The equity shares of the Company are listed on 

two of the stock exchanges in India i.e., National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

The Company has presence across the entire value chain of steel manufacturing from mining and processing iron ore to

producing and distributing steel based long products. The Company also has sponge iron manufacturing facility and captive

power plants generating power from waste heat and thermal coal.

The standalone financial statements were approved and authorized for issue with the resolution of the Company's Board of

Directors on April 25, 2023.

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial

statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.01 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other 

relevant provisions of the Act. 

(ii) Historical Cost Convention

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following: 

• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value.

• assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell.

• defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

(iii) Current versus Non-current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 

• expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

• held primarily for the purpose of trading,

• expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified e;s current when: 

• it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

• it is incurred primarily for the purpose of trading,

• it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

d tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone financial statements 

2.02 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements 

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions, that impact the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 

liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these stand al one financial 

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from 

these estimates. 

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, and future periods impacted. 

This Note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which 

are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally 

assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with 

information about the basis of calculation for each impacted line item in the standalone financial statements. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 

(i) Employee Benefits (Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation) - Refer Notes 02.17 and 37

Post-employment benefits represent obligation that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to project benefit 

obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit cost over the 

employees' approximate service period, based on the terms of plans, the investment and funding decisions made. The 

accounting requires the company to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate, rate of compensation 

increase and future mortality rates. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact on the defined benefit 

obligations. 

(ii) Estimation of expected useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment - Refer Notes 02.03 and 03

Management reviews its estimate of useful life of property, plant & equipment at each reporting date, based on the 

expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may 

change the utility of property, plant and equipment. 

(iii) Provision and Contingent liabilities - Refer Notes 02.20, 02.21, 16, and 33

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These 

are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities, as 

disclosed in Note 33, are not recognised in the financial statements. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is 

often difficult to predict the final outcomes. In the normal course of business, the Company consults with legal counsel 

and certain other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an 

adverse outcome is probable, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome 

is possible, or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed. 

iv) Fair value measurements and valuation processes - Refer Notes 02.10, 2.11, 2.17, 8, 16, 31 and 37

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. When the fair 

value of assets and liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, 

their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these models 

are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in 

establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. 

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

{v) Impairment - Refer Notes 02.07 and 40 

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating units (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering 

current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results, growth rates and anticipated future economic 

and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted 
· · 

le discount rate to calculate the present value. 
('t � 
•., 1arfered 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone financial statements 

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable 
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. The Company has 
identified two CGUs - Integrated steel manufacturing plant at Gamharia and Sponge iron manufacturing plant at Jada. 

(vi) Impairment of Investments in subsidiary - Refer Note 02.09 and 06(i)

The Company estimates the value in use/ fair value less cost to sale based on future cash flows after considering current 
economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results, growth rates and anticipated future economic and 
regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows forecast 
/incremental cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. 

(vii) Loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses - Refer Note 2.14 and 11

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on the days past due. The expected 
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over past quarters before the reporting date and the corresponding 
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward­
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The 
assumptions and estimates applied for determining the loss allowance are reviewed periodically. 

2.03 Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognised as 
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for 
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation Method, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Values 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method to allocate 
their cost, net of their estimated residual values, over th�ir estimated useful lives. The useful lives determined are in line 
with the useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Act except in respect of plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures 
and vehicles, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed, taking into account the nature of the asset, the 
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological 
changes, etc. 

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as under: 

Category of assets 

Buildings 
Plant and equipment and electrical installations 
Furniture and fixtures 
Office equipments 
Vehicles 
Railway sidings 

Useful life 

3 - 60 years 
2 - 35 years 
2 -10 years 
2 -10 years 
2- 8 years
8 -15 years

Mining �ssets are amortised over the useful life of the mine or lease period whichever is lower. 

Each component of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the cost of that 
item is depreciated separately if its useful life differs from the other components of the item. 

The useful lives, residual values and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount and are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss within 'Other Income'/ 'Other 
Expenses'. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet 

�---=.... classified as 'Capital Advances' under other non- current assets and th 

-:c-:�::::-:�::�::�---

ipment not 
to use are disclosed under 'Capital Work-in progress'. 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Notes to the Standalone financial statements 

2.04 Leases 

The Company as a Jessee 

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a 

right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except 

for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these 

leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 

lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the 

leased asset are consumed. 

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 

present value of the following lease payments: 

• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable,

• variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date,

• amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual value guarantees,

• the exercise price of a purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, 

which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that 

the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of­

use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 

(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or 

before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful 

life of the underlying asset. 

Payments associated with short-term leases of offices are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in Statement 

of Profit or Loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. 

Variable lease payments that depend on output generated are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in 

which the condition that triggers those payment occurs. 

2.05 Intangible assets 

(i) Railway sidings (constructed)

Railway sidings is included in the Balance Sheet as an intangible asset where it is clearly linked to long term economic 

benefits for the Company. In this case it is measured at cost of construction and then amortised on a straight-line basis 

over their estimated useful lives. 

Railway sidings are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives i.e., 5 years. 

(ii) Computer software (acquired)

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. It has a finite useful life and 

are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs associated 

with maintaining such software are recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of 

implementation/system integration services, where applicable. 

Computer software are amortised over a period of 5 years. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically 
· · 

t each financial year end. 
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(iii) Mining rights (fair valued on acquisition)

Savings in the form of the differential in cost of acquisition of iron ore mined from the acquired mine and the cost incurred 
to acquire iron ore from the open market, adjusted for costs incurred to develop and maintain the acquired mine is 
accounted as intangible assets. 

Mining rights are amortised on the basis of production from mines. 

2.06 Research and Development 

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure on development that do not meet the specified criteria for 

capitalisation under Ind AS 38 on 'Intangible Assets' are recognised as an expense as incurred. 

2.07 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Upon acquisition of a new business, goodwill has been accounted for in terms of Ind AS 103. The goodwill so recognised 
is assessed annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be 
impaired. Other assets are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets' carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal 
and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets 
(cash-generating units). 

2.08 Business combinations 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations related to acquisitions, regardless 
of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition is measured 
at: 

• fair values of the assets transferred.
• liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business.
• fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited 
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 

The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as 
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference 
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence 
of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain 
purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve. 

2.09 Investments in subsidiary 

Investments in equity shares of subsidiary is carried at cost less provision for impairment, if any. Where an indication of 
impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognised, if required, 
to its Recoverable Amount. The Recoverable Amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its 
value in use. 

The Investment in non-cumulative redeemable preference shares (NCRPS) of subsidiary is initially recognised at fair value. 
The cash flows from the NCRPS represent solely payments of principal and interest and are held by the Company within 
the business model to collect contractual cash flows. Accordingly, Investment in NCRPS is subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. Contractual cash flows from the NCRPS represent the principal plus the accrued interest. 

2.10 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
· struments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measu ts that are 

ttributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financi ..treotM�::::::::::,...,..- ssets and 
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financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets 

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 

financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of 

Profit or Loss. 

2.11 Investments (Other than Investments in Subsidiary) and Other Financial Assets 

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit

or loss), and

• those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 

of cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded in either the Statement of Profit or Loss or other 

comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this depends on the business model in which the investment 

is held. 

For investments in equity instruments, this depends on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the 

time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The 

Company reclassifies the debt investments when and only when the business model for managing those assets changes. 

(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a 

significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, 

transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets 

carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. However, trade receivables that do not contain a 

significant financing component are measured at transaction cost. 

Debt Instruments 

Subsequent measurement of debt il')struments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and 

the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instrument as amortised cost measurement 

categories. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments 

of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently 

measured at amortised cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. 

Equity Instruments 

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected 

to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 

reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss are recognised in 'Other Income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets which are not fair 

valued through profit or loss. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk. Note 31 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in 

credit risk. 

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, 'Financial Instruments', 

which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 
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(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 

asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual obligation 

to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 

rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 

the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 

Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of 

continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

(v) Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. 

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective interest 

method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income. 

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except 

for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest 

rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance). 

(vi) Dividend Income

Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as 

other income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established. 

(vii) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are 

based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include 

discounted cash flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general 

approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realised. 

(viii) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 

and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 

enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 

counterparty. 

2.12 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

(i) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the 

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

(ii) Measurement

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument-is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of 

its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Financial liabilities 

nd other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subs 

ed cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significan 
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Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) 
and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

(iii) De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or they expire. 

2.13 Derivatives and hedging activities 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company uses certain derivative financial instruments to reduce business risks 
which arise from its exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. The instruments are confined principally to forward foreign 
exchange contracts. 

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Derivative 
Instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re­
measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period, with changes included in 'Other Income'/ 'Other 
Expenses'. 

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting: 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is 
recognised in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss, within other gains/(losses). 

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the Company designates only the intrinsic value of the 
options as the hedging instrument. 

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash 
flow hedging reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of the options that relate to the hedged item ('aligned 
time value') are recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity. 

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, 
as follows: 

• Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory}, both
the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred forward
points, if any, are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in
profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example through cost of materials consumed).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity 
until the forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the recognition of a non-financial asset. When the forecast transaction is 
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity are 
immediately reclassified to profit or loss within other gains/(losses). 

2.14 Trade Receivables 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business 
and reflects company's unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade 
receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The 
company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures 
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. 

2.15 Trade Payables 

Trade Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which 
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after 
the reporting period. 
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2.16 Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some 

or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is 
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment 
for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these 

preference shares are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long term 

loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on 

demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting 

period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the 
breach. 

2.17 Employee Benefits 

(i) Short-term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end 

of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities 
are presented as 'Provision for Employee Benefits' within 'Current Provisions' in the Balance Sheet. 

(ii) P�st-employment Benefits

(a) Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is 
calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit 

obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net 
interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair 

value of plan assets. This cost is included in 'Employee Benefits Expense' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income. These are included in 'Retained 
Earnings' in the Statement of Changes in Equity. 

Eligible employees (other than employees of coal mines and straight bar of Jamshedpur unit) of the Company receive 
benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the eligible employee and the Company make 
monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary. The 

Company contributes a portion to the 'Tata Steel Long Product Limited Employees Provident Fund Trust'. The trust invests 

in specific designated instruments as prescribed by the Government. The remaining portion is contributed to the 

Government administered pension fund. The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust 
is being administered by the Government. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the 

return from the investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. The contributions made by the Company and the 
shortfall of interest, if any, are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under employee benefits 
expense. 

(b) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses 
h eriod in which the employee has rendered the service . 

.,-,,::.=,=::::,..._ 
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(iii) Other Long-term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for compensated absences which are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 
the period in which the employees render the related service are considered other long-term benefits. They are therefore 
measured annually by actuaries as the present value of expected future benefits In respect of services provided by 
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using 
the market yields at the ehd of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 
Rem�asure.ments as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or 
loss. The obligations are presented under 'Provision for Employee Benefits' within 'Current Provisions' in the Balance Sheet 
if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, 
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

2.18 Income Tax 

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable 
income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused 
tax credits and to unused tax losses. 

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not 
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit 
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised, or the 
deferred tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 
tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences, tax 
credits and losses. 

Deferred tax assets are not r�cognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in subsidiaries where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable 
profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are 
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferre_d tax are recognised in profit or loss, except to the _extent that it relates to items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity, respectively. 

2.19 Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchases and 
all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Finished and semi-finished 
goods comprise direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, 
the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual !terns of inventory on 

�==,,.__ d average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in t -
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estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes the reclassification from 
equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of raw material. 

Provisions are made to cover slow-moving and obsolete items based on historical experience of utilisation on a product 
category basis, which involves individual businesses considering their product lines and market conditions. 

2.20 Provisions and Contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 

Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance 
sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on a discounted basis. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 

which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount 
cannot be made. 

2.21 Provision for restoration and environmental costs 

The Company has liabilities related to restoration of soil and other related works, which are due upon the closure of its 
mining site. 

Such liabilities are estimated case-by-case based on available information, taking into account applicable local legal 
requirements. Th,e estimation is made using existing technology, at current prices, and discounted using an appropriate 
discount rate where the effect of time value of money is material. Future restoration and environmental costs, discounted 
to net present value, are capitalised and the corresponding restoration liability is raised as soon as the obligation to incur 
such costs arises. Future restoration and environmental costs are capitalised in property, plant and equipment or mining 
assets as appropriate and are depreciated over the life of the related asset. The effect of time value of money on the 

restoration and environmental costs liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.22 Revenue recognition 

(i} Sale of goods and product scrap 

Revenue from sale of goods and product scrap is recognised when the control over such goods have been transferred, 
being when the goods are delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivered 
to the specific location as the case may be, risks of loss have been transferred to the customers, and either the customer 
has accepted the goods in accordance with the sales contract or the acceptance provisions have lapsed or the Company 

has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from these sales is recognised based 
on the price specified in the contract, which is fixed. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured 
at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction 
price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration. No element of financing is deemed present as 
the sales are made against the receipt of advance or with an agreed credit period of up to 90 days, which is consistent 
with the market practices. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the 

consideration is unconditional because only passage of time is required before payment is due. 

(ii) Sale of Power

Revenue from the sale of power is recognised when the control has been transferred to the customer, being when the 
power has been transmitted to the buyer as per the terms of contract with the customer. Revenue from sale of power is 

recognised based on the price specified in the agreement, which is fixed. No element of financing is deemed present as 
the sales are made with an agreed credit period of 30 days, which is consistent with the market practices. A receivable is 

recognised when the power has been transmitted as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional 
because only passage of time is required before payment is due. 
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(iii) Income from services

The Company acts as a conversion agent for conversion of iron ore into sponge iron and iron ore fines into Pellet. Revenue 
from services is recognised when the control has been transferred to the customer, being when the service is rendered to 
the buyer as per the terms of contract with th·e customer. A receivable is recognised when the converted pellets and 
sponge iron are despatched as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only passage of 
time is required before payment is due. 

2.23 Government grants 

Government grants are recognised at its fair value, where there is a reasonable assurance that such grants will be received 
and compliance with the conditions attached therewith have been met. 

Export incentives are recognised for when the right to receive the credit is established and when there does not exist any 
uncertainty as to its collection. 

2.24 Foreign currency transactions and translation 

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency'). The standalone financial statements 
are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

(ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at 
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign 
currency transactions and from the year-end restatement are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within 'Other 
Income'/ 'Other Expenses.' Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried 
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. 

2.25 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying value and 
fair value less costs to sell. 

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered through a sale transaction 
rather than through continuing use. This condition is only met when the sale is highly probable and the asset, or disposal 
group, is available for immediate sale in its present condition and is marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in 
relation to its current fair value. The Company must also be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify 
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

Where a disposal group represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or is part of a 
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, then it is 
treated as a discontinued operation. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation together with the gain or 

loss recognised on its disposal are disclosed as a single amount in the statement of profit and loss, with all prior periods 
being presented on this basis. 

2.26 Borrowings costs 

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those 
assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready for the intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 

rowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in ��:teiltb:!�!=_!2!i Loss in
period in which they are incurred. 
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2.27 Earnings per share 

(i) Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to owners of the Company by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity 

shares issued during the year. 

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account 

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the 

weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.28 Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits 

held at call with banks, other shcirt-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that 

are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

2.29 Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 

decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of 

the operating segments. Refer Note 42 for segment information presented. 

2.30 New and amended standards adopted by the Company. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These 

amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly 

affect the current or future periods. 

2.31 New amendments issued but not effective. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023. The Rules 

predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements . The other amendments 

to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications. These amendments are no.t expected to have 

a material impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. 

Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as accounting policy 

already complies with the now mandatory treatment. 

2.32 Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest crores (Rs. 

0,000,000) as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

rilot� to the .SbndaJ:ona financial 1Utt1MM-nt11 

03 Property, plant and equipment and Capltal work-ln-progr"• 

Carrying amounta of: 

Freehold land 

Freehold buildings 
Plant and equipment 
Furniture and rodures 
Electrical Installations 
Office equipments 
Vehicles 
Mining lease and development 
Railway Sidings 
Total 

Capital work-in-progress (Rerer nole 03 07) 
Less: Class.ified as h�d for sale (Refer nole 41) 

Total 

Cottfdctamod cost 
�l:anoe m at Apfll 1, 2021 

Mc1l0n1 during the year 

AaAtl acquired under bUsiness combinaoon (Refer Note 36(b)) 

� � f wrtlen off during the year 

ou,,,�ll!!!!l!iif� 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Ad� during 1he year 

�Ill disposed I v.mten ofl during !he year 

oiher reclassiflcatlons 
Balm)at oa at March 31, 2023 

l',ccumu.l.tod depreciation 
AcC\lmuiailld dePfec::iation a. at April 1, 2021 

Ch.>rua far Ehl!I year 

Deprecil:ion on assets dil5posed I Wt'itten off during the year 
.Accumulal«I "C'PfOCl.1liofl 4' at March 31, 2022 

Charge for the year 

Deprecialion on aeets disposed/ written off during the year 

Ao:::umulalad depreciation as at March 31, 2023 

Carrying amount 
BalmllCt! lD at March 31, 2022 
84lilnce iH at March 31, 2023 

Notes: 

Rs In crorua 
Aaat Asal 

March J1, 2023 Marci'! 3 1, 2022 
200.SS 20055 
21222 20753 

2,825.68 2,79114 
0.84 084 

332.99 354 24 

10.18 1182 
0,26 0 38 
7.68 11 39 

18.89 2090 
3,409.47 3,598.79 

99.82 57 52 

(12.58) 
87.26 57.52 

Freehold FreehoJd 
land buildings 

202 04 23327 

1575 
. 3 79 
. 

149 

200.55 252,81 
- 17.66 

-

2ll0.55 270.◄7 

- 31 53 
- 1375 

45,28 

12.97 
. 

50.ZS 

200.,s 207.53 

.200.55 212.22 

03.01 Rerer Note ◄5 for information on property, plant and equipment h)'po11'1,.t!oated as security by the Company. 

Plant and Furniture Electik::al OlfOC<l 

equipment and filturn ln1tallation1 equipments 

3,440 78 2 03 479 54 858 

2929 0 07 1'14 12 09 

1 96 069 001 

2209 0 2 0  - 2,61 
-

3,449.94 '·'"' "482.07 18.07 

102.99 0.19 3.33 2,98 

828 0,15 
-

3,544,67 2.09 485.40 20.90 

46079 094 8013 4 74 

20701 031 47 70 3 98 

900 0,19 247 

858.80 1.08 127_8J 8.25 

262.15 0.19 24.511 4.82 

1.08 . 0.15 

&18-99 1.25 1'52.Al 10.72 

2,791�14 084 354.24 11.82 

2,625.68 0.84 JJ2J�9 10.18 

OJ.02 Depreciation on property, plant and equlpmenl has been included under 'Ocpreciation and amortisation expense· in the Statement or Prorrt and Loss (Refer Note 2 6) 

Mining leaH 
V•hlctes and 

devaloome.nt 

166 2048 

-

1 09 . 

. 

0,57 20.48 

0 57 20.48 

094 568 

0 29 3'1 

104 . 

0.19 • .  09 

0.12 3 53 

. 

•�1 12.62 

0.38 11.39 

0,28 7,68 

03.03 On transruoo to Ind AS. 1ru!.Company tiad chosen to carry foMard previous GAAP carrying amount and accordingly the net carrying amount on transition date was consider� as the deemed cost 
03.Q.4 Refer note 34 for dacloau� of '°ntractual commitments ror the acquisition or property, plant and equipment 
OJ OS The Company has not revalued b property, plant and �ipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the current year and the previous year 

R.a.. In crores 

Railway 
Total 

Skiing• 

2363 4,412 01 

4 31 6 3  35 

6 45 

25 99 

149 

27.94 ◄,◄54.33 

127.15 

8,41 

77.94 4,573.07 

464 569 39 

240 278 85 

12.70 

7.04 855.54 

2.01 310.17 

. 2.11 

t.05 1,1ueo 

20.!IO 3,598.79 

18.89 3,409-47 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
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03 Property, plant and equipment and Capital wor11-ln-progress (continued) 

Notes: 
03.06 Title deeds of immovable properties not held In the name of the Company 

Description of item of Gross carrying 
Particulars value property Rs. crores 

As at March 31, 2023 
Property, planl and equipment Freehold land 1 74 

Property, plant and equipment Freehold buildings 0 71 

Right--0f -use assets (Refer Note 04) Right--0f-use land 2 36 
Total 4.81 

As at March 31, 2022 

Property, plant and equipment Freehold land 2634 

Property, planl and equipment Freehold buildings 0.71 
Right-of-use assets (Refer Note 04) Right--0f-use land 2 36 

Right--0f-use assets (Refer Note 04) Right--0f-use building 330 

Total 32.71 

Description of item of Gross carrying 
Particulars value 

property 
Rs. crores 

As at March 31, 2023 

Property, plant and equipment Freehold land o 45 

Property, plant and equipment Freehold land 0.83 
Property, cl ant and equipment Freehold land 0 .21 
Prao,,rty. plant and equipment Freehold land 0 .08 
Prcperty, pJant and equipment Freehold land 0.02 
Prooertv, clan! aM ewl0menl Freehold land 0.07 
l-'l'D0el1V, plant and equipment Freehold land 0.08 

Total 1.74 

Description of item of Gross carrying 
Particulars value property 

Rs. crores 

As at March 31, 2022 

Property, plant and equipment Freehold land 24 38 

Property: plant and equipment Freehold land 0.83 
Propertv. ctan! and equlcm en( Freehold land 0.88 
Procer1v. n1ont and ooulomenl Freehold land 0,08 
Propet1y, plant and equipment Freehold land 0.02 
Property, p[anl and equipment Freehold land 0.07 
Property, Plant and equipment Freehold land 0.08 

Total 26.34 

03.07 Details of Capital work-in-progress 

(a) Ageing of Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) 

Particulars 
Less than 1 year 

As at March 31, 2023 

Projects ,n progress 76,73 
Projects temporarily suspended . 

Total 76.73 
As- at March 31, 2022 
Projects in progress 4511 
Projects temporarily suspended 
Total 45.11 

Net carrying value Title deeds held in the 
Rs. crores name of 

1 74 Refer table below 

032 Usha Martin limiled 

2.15 Usha Martin Limited 

4.21 

2634 Refer table below 

o 41 Usha Martin Limited 

2.22 Usha Martin Limited 

3 07 Usha Martin Limited 

32.04 

Net carrying value Tille deeds held In the 
Rs. crores name of 

0.45 Bharat Minex Private 
Limited 

0.83 Usha Martin Limited 
0.21 Chandrakall Devi 
0.08 Bhaawan Sinqh 
0.02 Premnath Prasad 
0,07 Laliahari Devi 
0.08 Gooinath Pradhan 
1.74 

Net carrying value Title deeds held In the 
Rs. crores name of 

24.38 Bharat Minex Prisale 
�imited 

0.83 Usha Martin Limited 
0.8 8  Chandrakali Devi 
008 Bhaawan Sinqh 
0.02 Prem Nath Prasad 
O.o7 Laliahari Devi 
0.08 Gopinalh Pradhan 

26.34 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

1 - 2  years 

1.41 
. 

1.41 

1 00 

1.00 

2 - 3 years 

. 

. 

9.97 

9.97 

Whether title deed holder 
is a promoter. director or 

relative of promoter/ 
director or employee of 

promoter / director 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Whether title deed holder 
is a promoter, director or 

relative of promoter/ 
director or employee of 

promoter/ director 

No 

No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 

Whether tiUe deed holder 
is a promoter1 director or 

relative of promoter / 
director or employee of 

promoter/ director 

No 

No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 

More than 3 years 

9 12 
. 

9.12 

1.44 

1.44 

(b) Completion schedule for Capital wor11-in-progress whose completion la overdue or haa exceeded its cost compared to its original plan 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2023 
Projects in progress 

Sustenance projects 

Projects temporarily 5uspended 

Total 
As at March 31, 2022 
Projects in progress 

Sustenance projects 

Projects temporarily suspended 

Total 

Less than 1 year 

6.41 

6.41 

0,64 

0.64 

To be completed in 
1 · 2 years 2 • 3 years More than 3 years 

Reason for not 
Property held being held in the 

since name of the 
company 

April 9, 2019 

July 3, 2019 Immovable properties 

April 9, 2019 were part of acquired 
steel business from 

Usha Martin Limiled. 
The Company is in 

April 9, 2019 process of gemng 

July 3, 2019 
title deeds registered 

in the name of the 
April 9, 2019 Company. 

April 9, 2019 

Property held 
since 

April 9, 2019 

April 9. 2019 
April 9, 2019 
April 9, 2019 
April 9, 2019 
Aoril 9. 2019 
April 9, 2019 

Property held 
since 

April 9, 2019 

Apri19, 2019 
April 9. 2019 
April 9 2019 
April 9, 2019 
April 9, 2019 
APril 9; 2019 

Rs in acres 

Total 

87.26 

87.26 

57.52 

57.52 

Ra. in crores 

Total 

6.41 

6.41 

0,64 

0.64 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone financial statements 

04 Leases 

(a) The Company as a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for various Items of plant and equipment, vehicles, offices and leased land. Leases of plant and equipment generally have tease term·s 
between 9 10 26 years, vehieles generally have tease terms upto 5 years, oITTces generally have lease terms between 12 months to 4 years and leases of land generally have 
lease terms between 30 years 16 100 years. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning or subleasing the leased assets. Lease terms are negotiated on an 
indivfdual. basis and contain a wide range Qf different terms and conditions. The 1e.;,se agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the 
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may be used as security for borrowing purposes. 

The Company also has certain leases of offices with lease term of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 'short-term lease' recognition exemptions for these leases. 

(b) Following are the changes in carrying value of right of use assets 
Rs In crores 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Right-of-use land 116.63 121.10 

Right-of-use plant and equipment 77.56 86.17 

Right-of-use buildings 0.19 3.47 

Right-of-use vehicles 2.53 0,54 

Total Right-of-use assets 196.91 211.28 

Rs in crores 
Right-of-use Right-of-use plant Right-of-use Right-of-US!! Total Right-of. 

land and equipment buildings vehicles use assets 
Cost/deemed cost 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 132.95 119.12 4.21 . 256.28 

Additions during the year . - . 0.56 0.56 

Other reclassifications 1.49 . . . 1.49 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 134.44 119.12 4.21 0.56 258.33 

Addnions during the year . . . 2.34 2.34 

Assets disposed / written off during the period . 3.30 . 3.30 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 134.44 119.12 0.91 2.90 257.37 

Accumulated depreciation 

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021 8.86 23.07 0.45 - 32.38 

Charge for the year 4.48 9.88 0.29 0,02 14.67 

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 13.34 32.95 0.74 0.02 47.05 

Charge for the year 4.47 8.61 0.24 0.35 13.67 

Depreciation on assets disposed / written off during the year . 0.26 . 0,26 

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023 17.81 41.56 0.72 0.37 60.46 

Carrying amount 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 121.10 86.17 3.47 0.54 211.28 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 116.63 77.56 0.19 2.53 196.91 

h (cl Fo lowln11 are t e chanaes n canyln11 value of lease llablllties Rs. in crores 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 
Balance as at beginning of the year 90.05 104.07 

Addnions during.the year 2.34 0.56 

Finance costs during the year 7.66 8.43 

Lease payments during the year (16.53) (23.01) 

Balance as at end of the year 83.51 90.05 

Current lease liabilities 7.69 9.98 

Non-current lease liabilities 75.82 80.07 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis -
Rs. in crores 

As at As al 
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

Less than one year 14.88 17.54 

One to five years 53.66 51.81 

More than five years 56.02 68.85 

Total 124.56 138.20 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
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04 Leases (continued) 

(d) Following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of profit and loss Rs. in crores 
Year ended Yearended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refer Note 28) 13.67 14.67 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 27) 7.66 8.43 
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 2.20 2 19 
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability 8.69 8.55 (Included in other expenses) (Refer note (ii) below) 
Total amount recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 32.22 33.84 

(i) The Company does not have any leases of low value assets and subleases. 

(ii) Some of the plant and equipment leases, in which the Company is a lessee, contain variable lease payments that are linked to output generated. Variable lease 
payments are used to link rental payments to output generated and reduce fixed costs. The breakdown of lease payment is as below: 

Rs. In crores 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31 , 202.2 
Fixed payments - -

Variable payments 8.69 8.55 
Total payments 8.69 8.55 
Overall the variable payments constitute up to approximately 32 per cent of the Company's entire lease payments. The Company expects this ratio to be constant in 
future years. 

(iii) Extension and termination options are included in major leases contracts of the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing 
the assets used in the Company's operations. The majority cl extension and termination options held are exercisable by both the Company and lessor. 

(iv) There are no residual value guarantees in relation to any lease contracts. 

(v) The Company had a total cash outflows of Rs. 16.53 crores for leases for the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 23.01 crores)_ 

(e) Refer Note 03.06 for title deeds of Right-of-use assets not held in the name of the Company. 

05 Other intangible assets 
Rs In crores 

Carrying amounts of: As at As al 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Computer software (acqu\red) 0.90 1.19 
Railway sidings (constructed) - -

Mining rights (acquired) 246.35 263.25 
Total Intangible assets 247.25 264.44 

Rs In crores 
Computer software Railway sidings Mining rights Total intangible 

(acqulrfild) (constructed) (acquired) assets 
Cost/deemed cost 
Balance as at April 1, 2021 0.51 7.26 330.86 338.63 
Additions during the year 1.13 - - 1.13 
Assets disposed I written off during the year - - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2022 1.64 7.26 330.86 339.76 
Additions during the year - 6.63 6.63 
Assets disposed I written off during the year - - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.64 7.26 337.49 346.39 

Accumulated amortisation 
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021 0.15 7.26 41.85 49.26 
Charge for the year 0.30 - 25.76 26.06 
Amortisation of assets disposed I written off during the year - - -

Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 0.45 7.26 67.61 75.32 
Charge for the year 0.29 - 23.53 23.82 
Amortisation of assets disposed I written off during the year - - -

Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 0.74 7.26 91.14 99.14 

Carrying amount 
Balance as at March 31 , 2022 1.19 - 263.25 264.44 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.90 246.35 247.25 

Notes 
05.01 The amortisation has been included under 'Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses' in the Statement of Profrt and Loss (Refer Note 28). 

05.02 On transition to Ind AS, the Company had chosen to carry forward the previous GAAP carrying amount and accordingly net carrying amount on transition date was 
considered deemed cost. 
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06 Investments 

(i) Non-current investments 

A. Investments carried at cost:

(a) Investments In Equity Instruments of subsidiary 

(i) Unquoted 

Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 
1,272,154,735 (March 31, 2022: Nil) equity shares of Rs. 1 0 each fully paid up 

8. Investments carried at amortised cost: 

(a) Investments in Other Instrument of subsidiary 

(i) Unquoted

Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 
456,054,252 (March 31, 2022: Nil) preference shares of Rs. 1 DO each fully paid up 

C. Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income: 

(a) Other Investments in equity shares 

(I) Unquoted 

Jamipol Limited 
800,000 (March 31, 2022: 800,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up 

Total Non - current investments 

(ii) Current Investments 

A.Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss: 

(a) Investment In liquid mutual funds -

(i) Unquoted 

(1) Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(2) TATA Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(3) HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(4) UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Plan - Growth 
(5) Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(6) Kotak Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(7) IDFC Cash Fu_nd - Direct Plan - Growth 
(8) SBI Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(9) Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(10) ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(11) DSP Liquidity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 

Total current investments 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

ln11estrnent.s carried at amortised cost 
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 31 (b}(l)] 

Rs in crores 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

8,139.46 -

4,945.51 -

19.28 15.68 

13,104.25 15.68 

51.49 905-26 
49.80 662.25
58.89 798.28 
42.38 1,101.32 
27.15 1,009.34 
55.30 656.18 
57.19 487.16 
72.03 789.25 
51.71 956.32 
56.62 712.26 
25.10 -

547.66 8,077.62 

13,651.91 8,093.30 

13,084.97 -

547.66 8,077.62 

19.28 15.68 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Company had invested in 0,01% Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("NCRPS") of Neelachal 
lspat Nigam Limited on private placement basis. The NCRPS are mandatorily redeemable at the end of 20 years from the date of allotment at premium of Rs. 
762 per NCRPS. The NCRPS shall be redeemable at premium upon maturity or optional early redemption with accrued interest thereon computed on the basis 
of the effective yield of the instrument at the option of the Issuer on a quarterly basis at 3-month intervals from the date of allotment. 

The recoverable value of investments held in Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited (NINL) has been assessed based on higher of fair value less costs to sell and value 
in use for the underlying businesses. The fair value less costs to sell model uses cash flow forecasts based on the most recently approved financial plan for 
FY24. Beyond FY24, the cash flow forecasts is based on strategic forecasts which cover a period i.e. estimated time to extract the total usable mineral reserves 

for mining business and six years for steel business and future projections taking the analysis out to perpetuity which includes capital expenditure for capacity 
expansion of steel making facilities from the current 1.1 MTPA to 4 56 MTPA by FY 29 as well as estimated EBITDA changes due to implementation or the 
expansion strategy and operating the assets. Key assumptions to the fair value less costs to sell model are changes to selling prices and raw material costs, 
steel demand, amount of capital expenditure needed for expansion of the existing facilities, EBITDA, and a post-tax discount rate of 10.10%. The estimates of 
capital expenditure for capacity expansion of steel making assets is based on management's internal estimates of implementing the expansion strategy. 

For the fair value less costs to sell model, a 4.00% growth rate is used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the specifically forecasted period of six years in 
respect of which strategic forecasts have been prepared. The outcome of the impairment assessment as on 31 March 2023 for investments held in NINL has not 
resulted in any impairment of investments. 

The management has conducted sensitivity analysis including discount rate on the impairment assessment of the carrying value of investments held in NINL. 
The management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the key assumptions used in the model would cause the carrying value of investments 
to materially exceed its recoverable value. 

Refer Note 31 for information about fair value measurement, credit risk and market risk on investments. 
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07 Loans 
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Loan to employees 

08 Other financial assets 
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated othe,w/se) 

(a) Interest accrued on deposits and loans 

(b) Security deposits 

Considered good 
Credit impaired 

Less: Allowance for credit losses 

(c) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 

(pledged with government authorities) 

(d) Receivable against deallocation of coal block • 

(e) Others** 

Less: Others classified as held for sale (Refer note 41)

As at March 31, 2023 

Non-current Current 

0.02 0.50 
0.02 0.50 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non-current Current 

0.27 0.01 

7.03 3.48 
- 0.23 
- (0.23) 

0.85 -

- 178.81 
- 77.20 
- (5.38) 

8.15 254.12 

Rs. In crores 
As at March 31 , 2022 

Non-current Current 

0.04 0.24 
0.04 0.24 

Rs. in crores 

As at March 31. 2022 

Non-current Current 

0.16 1.15 

7,50 3.01 
- 0.23 
- (0.23) 

0.85 -

- 178.81 
- 64.48 
- -

8.51 247.45 

• By judgement of September 24, 2014, the Hon'ble Supreme Court cancelled allocation of 214 co.ii blocks including Radhikapur (East) Coal Block CRECB') 
which was allotted to the Company on February 7, 2006. The carrying amount in books as at March 31, 2023 towards amounts Incurred by the Company on 
RECB, prior to de-allocation aggregates to Rs.178. 81 crores (March 31 .2022: Rs.178.81 crores). Pursuant to \he Judgement of the Hon'ble Supreme Court,
Government of India promulgated Coal Mines (Special Provision) Act, 2015 (the 'Act') for fresh allocation of the coal mines through auction. In terms of the Act,
the prior allottee would be con,pensated for expenses incurred towards land and mine infrastructure. 

The validity Of the Act has been challenged by Federation of Indian Mineral Industries ('FIMI') in 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to the extent that the Act 
does not provide grant of just, fair and equitable compensation in a time bound manner to the prior allotees of the coal blocks. After much follow-up with the 
relevant authorities for recovery of compensation, the Company has filed an lnt,erlocutory Application on December 15, 2022 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court 
in the pending writ of FIMI seeking to expedite disbursement of the compensation. 

Based on assessment of the matter by the Company including evidence supporting the expenditure and claim and external legal opinion obtained by the 
Company, the aforesaid amount is considered good and fully recoverable. 

** includes upfront amount Rs. 46.89 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 46.89 crores) paid to government authorities upon transfer of mining lease under Minerals 
(Transfer of Mining Lease Granted Otherwise than through Auction for Captive Purpose) Rules, 2016. 

09 Other assets 
(Unsecured considered good unless stated otherwise) Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Non-current Current Non-current Current 

(a) Capital advances 43.25 - 4.44 -

Less: Capital advances classified as held for sale (Refer note 41) (39.21) - -

(b) Indemnification assets - 2.29 - 2.29 

(c) Advances to related parties (Refer Note 36) • - 0.00 - 0.24 

(d) Other loans and advances 

(i) Advances with public bodies 

Considered good 1.43 125.93 1.43 59.12 

Considered doubtful 6.09 6.09 . 

Less : Provision for doubtful advances (6.09) - (6.09) -

(ii) Other advances and prepayments 
Considered good 15.38 27.13 15.38 15.34 

Considered doubtful - 12.56 . 12.56 

Less : Provision for doubtful advances - (12.56} - (12.56) 

20.85 155.35 21.25 76.99 
• Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the company 
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10 Inventories 
(lower otcost and net realisable value) 

(a) Raw materials 

(b) Finished and semi-finished goods 

(c) Stores and spares 

Included above, goods-in-transit 

(a) Raw materials 

(b) Finished and semi-finished goods 

(c) Stores and spares 

Notes: 

Rs in crores 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

919.89 979.27 

383.98 301.71 

61.27 69,11 

1,365.14 1,350.09 

126.18 427.25 

78.36 65.75 

5.42 5.75 

209.96 498.75 

(i) Value of inventories stated above is after provisions of Rs. 20.64 crores (as at March 31, 2022: Rs. 13.86 crores) for write-downs to net realisable value and provision for
slow-moving and obsolete items. 

(ii) Refer Note 45 for information on inventories hypothecated as security by the Company. 

11 Trade receivables 

Unsecured, considered good 
Unsecured, credit impaired 

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss 
Total trade receivables 

Trade receivables from related parties (Refer Note 36) 

Trade receivables other than related parties 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 

(ii Ageing of trade receivables excluding loss allowance is as below: 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

70.42 
0.67 

71.09 
(0.671 
70.42 

48.28 
22.81 

10.671 
70.42 

Not due for 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Unbilled 
payment Less than 6 6 months -1 

months year 
1 -2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years 

As at Marci) 31, 2023 
Undisputed, Considered good . 44.22 25.27 0.93 . . . 

Undisputed, Credit impaired . . . . 0.50 0.17 . 

Disputed, Considered good . . . . . 

Disputed, Credit impaired . . . . . 

Total . 44.22 25.27 0.93 0.50 0.17 . 

Less: Allowance for credit losses 
Total trade receivables 

As at March 31, 2022 
Undisputed, Considered good 50.53 9.38 0.48 . . . 

Undisputed, Credit impaired . . . 0.50 0.17 . . 

Disputed, Considered good . . . . . 

Disputed, Credit impaired . . . . . . 

Total . 50.53 9.38 0.98 0.17 . . 

Less: Allowance for credit losses 
Total trade receivables 

(iii Movements in allowance for credit losses of receivables is as below: 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.67 
(Release)/ Charge during the year . 

Urnised during the year . 

Balance at the end of the year 0 .. 67 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31. 2022 

60.39 

0.67 

61.06 
(0.67) 

60.39 

43.81 

17.25 

(0.67) 

60.39 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

70.42 
0.67 
. 

71.09 
0.67 

70.42 

60.39 

0.67 
. 

. 

61.06 
0.67 

60.39 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31 , 2022 

23.30 
. 

(22.63) 

0.67 
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11 Trade receivables (continued) 

(iii) The Company considers its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to customers (net of amount covered by letter of credit and allowance for credit losses) as at 
March 31, 2023 to be Rs. 70.42 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 59.51 crores). 

12 

Gross credit Covered by Allowance for credit 

risk letter of credit losses 

As at March 31, 2023 

Amount not yet due 44.22 -

One month overdue 10.26 -

Two months overdue 4.04 -

Three months overdue 10.65 -

Between three to six months overdue 0.32 -
. 

Greater than six months overdue 1.60 - 0.67 

71.09 - 0.67 

As at March 31, 2022 

Amount not yet due 50.53 0.88 -

One month overdue 7.69 - -

Two months overdue 1.36 - -

Three months overdue 0.10 - -

Between three to six months overdue 0.23 - -

Greater than six months overdue 1.15 0.67 

61.06 0.88 0.67 

(iv) There is one customer whose balance represents more than 10% of total balance of Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

(v) Th.ere are no outstanding receivables due from directors or other officers of the Company. 

(vi) Refer Note 31 for information about credit risk and market risk on receivables. 

(vii) Refer Note 45 for information on Trade receivables hypothecated as security by the Company. 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 

(a) Balances with scheduled banks
(1) In current accounts 28.90 

(2) In fixed deposit accounts having original maturity of three months or less 84.00 

(b) Cash on hand 0.01 

Total Cash and cash equivalents 112.91 

(ii) Bank balances other than (i) above 

(a) In Unclaimed Dividem;! Accounts @ 2.08 

(b) In fixed deposit accounts (with original maturity of more than three months and maturing within 
911.17 

twelve months from the balance sheet date) (Refer note (ii) below) 

(c) In current account (Refer note (iii) below) 27.45 

940.70 

@ Includes earmarked balances in unclaimed dividend accounts 2.08 

(I) There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to Cash and cash equivalents as at the year end of the current reporting period and previous period. 

Rs in crores 

Net credit risk 

44.22 

10.26 

4.04 

10.65 

0.32 

0.93 

70.42 

49.65 

7.69 

1.36 

0.10 

0.23 

0.48 

59.51 

Rs. in crores 

Asal 
March 31, 2022 

198,90 

4,360.00 

0.01 

4,558.91 

2.20 

-

2.20 

2.20 

(II) The fixed deposit represents the earmarked balance for the amount held back against the consideration payable for acquisition of Neelacha\ lspat Nigam Limited ('N\NL'). 

(iii) The current account in bank balance represents interest credit by bank in escrow account on fixed deposits of Rs. 911.17 crores. 
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13 Equity share c.apllal 

A Details or authortsed, Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 

Authorised share capital: 

75,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
(As at March 31, 2022: 75,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 

Issued, subscribed and rully paid up : 

45,100,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 
(As at March 31, 2022: 45,100,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs 10 each) 

Fully paid equity shares 

B Reconcmatlon of number or shares outstanding 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

As at April 1, 2021 
Changes in equity share capital during t he year 
As at March 31, 2022 

Changes in equi ty share capital during the year 

As at March 31, 2023 

C Shares held by holding company 

Fully paid equity shares 

Tata Steel Limited (Holding Company) 

D Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of outstanding shares 

Fully paid equity shares 

Tata Steel Limited (Holding Company) 

E Details of sharehot<flng of pmmoters 

Sr. Equity Shares held by As at 
No. promoters at year end March 31, 2023 

Promoter name• Number of shares 
%total 
shares 

1 Tata Steel Lirri ted 3,37,86,521 74.91°/4 

•/4 Change 
during the 

financial year 
2022-23 

Nil 

- Coos,oered as per t he return/ documents filed by the Company ror Ifie respective years 

F Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 

Number of 
shares 

3,37,86,521 

Rs. in crores 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

75.00 75,00 

45.10 45,10 

45.10 45,10 

No. of equity Amount 
shares Rs. in crores 

4,51,00,000 45 10 
- -

4,51,00,000 45 10 
-

4,51,00,000 45.10 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No. of equity 
% 

No of equity 
% 

shares shares 

3,37,86,521 74.91% 3,37,86,521 74.91% 

3,37,86,521 74.91% 3,37,86,521 74,91% 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

No, of equity 
% 

No of equity 
% 

shares shares 

3,37,86,521 74.91% 3,37,86,521 74.91% 

Asal 
March 31, 2022 

% Change during 
%total 

the financial year 
shares 

2021-22 

7491% NII 

The CorJl)any has one dass of equity shares hl!Ving a par value or Rs. 1 0 per 5hare, Each share holder is eligible for ope vole per share held. The dividend proposed by !he Board of Dtrettors is 
subject to !he approval or the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case cf imertll) dividend. In !he event or liquidation, !he equity share holders.are eligible to reailve 
the remaining assols ol lhe t::ompany alter distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to !hlllr shareholding, 

13 A Preference share capita! Rs . In cmres 

A Oetalls of authorised, Issued, subscribed and paid-up capita! As at Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Authorised Share Capital: 

1,530,000,000 Non.Convertible Redeemable Prefererce Shares of Rs 100 each 15,300.00 15,300 00 

(As at March 31, 2022: 1,530,000,000 Non.COnvertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each) 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

1,270,000,000 Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 12,700.00 12,700.00 

(As at March 31, 2022: 1,270,000,000 Noo.COnvertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each) 

B Reconcillatlon of number af shares outstanding 
No. of preference Amount 

shares Rs. in Cn>rel; 

Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 

As at April 1, 2021 -

Changes in preference share capi tal during the year 1,27,00,00,000 12,700 00 

As at March 31, 2022 1,27,00,00,000 12,700,00 

Changes in preference share capital during the year -

As at March 31, 2023 1,27,00,00,000 12,700.00 
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C Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares 

TIie Com1Jc111Y has lo.sued preference shares ha\llng a per value-01 Rs._ 100 per ·snare. Prefef8!100 shares carry votl!'lg rlghls as per the provlsloos of Section 47(2) of the Cor11panfes Aa. 2013. 
The Co�ny declares and pays dividend In Indian Rupoos The preferenc:e •hares shall carry a preferenlisl right vis-A-vis equity st,area of the Company wllll respect to payment ar dividend and 
repaymenl of capital However, Iha holders Of 111e preference shares shall be paid dividend on a non-cumulative basis. The preference shares shall be non-participating in the surplus funds and 
also in 11>0 surplus assets aod profit& which may remain a�crthe entire capital has been repaid, on winding up or lhe Company, 

For terms of redemption, refer sub-note (ii) of Note 15 - Borrowings, 

14 Other equity Rs. in crores 
As al As al 

March Jj, 2023 Morc h 31, 2022 
GensraJ reserves 900.00 90000 
Securilies premium 1,449.99 1,449 99 
Retained earnings (l42.5J) 799 34 
Remeasurement (loss) on defined benefit plans (6,53) (5,83) 
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 14.67 11.87 
Cash flow hedge reserve (1.30) 
Total 2,014,30 3,155.37 

Rs ln crores 

Reserves and surplus Other Reserves 

Remeasurement 
Equity 

General Securities Retained gain/ (loss) on 
instruments Cash flow hedge Tata! 

Particulars reserves premium earnings defined benefit through other reserve 
[Refer(a) [Refer(b) (Refer(c) plans 

comprehensive (Refer (f) below] 
belowj below] below] income (Refer (d) below] (Refer (e) below] 

Bo lance as at April 1, 2021 90000 1 ,449.99 19 2 02 (8.02) 14,8 0  . 2,548.79 

Profit for tho year . 62987 - . . 629.87 

Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments . (39 2) . (3.92) 

Remeasurement gain I (loss) on defined benefit plans . - 2_9 2  . 2.92 

Tax impact on items of other comprehensive income (OCI) . (073) 099 0.26 

Transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners 

Dtvldend paid during the year ( Refer Note 30 (b) ) - (22 55) . . - (22.55) 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 900.00 1,449.99 799.34 (5.83) 11.87 . 3,155.37 

Loss for the year . . (1,086.49) . - . (1,085.49) 

changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments - . - 3.60 . 3.60 

Remeasurement gain I (loss) on defined benefit plans . - (0.94) . (0.94) 

Change in fair value of hedging instruments . . . - (1.69) (1.69) 

Tax impact on items of other comprehensive income (OCI) . 0.24 (0.80) 0.39 (0,17) 

Transactions with the owners In their capacity as owners 

Dividend paid during the year ( Refer Note 30 (b)) . - (56.38) - . (66.38) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 900.00 1,449.99 (l42.53) (6.53) 14.67 (1.30) 2,014.30 

(a) General reserves 
Underlhe erstwhile Indian Co111panles Act, 1956, a general ,.,,erve was created through an annuBl transfer or net profit at a specified pen;,anla_ge in accordance w11h applicable regulatioos. 
Consequent to lntrDducfion' of Companies Act, 2013, the requirement 10 maodatcnly ttan5fer a spe<:tfied percemage ol the net profit to gr,nerat reScSrv8 hes bee,n wllhdrawn though Iha Company 
may transfer such percenta;ie of its profils ·for -the finarcfal year as It (111lY cons.der appropnate. Declaration crr dividend out Of sucii resllMl shall not be made except In acx:ordence "iilh rules 
presa\bed In this bel1atl under the Act 

(b) Securities premium 
Securities premlum Is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Ille Companies Act, 2013 
The details of movemenL In securities premium ls-as below: 

As at 
March 31, 2D23 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,445.99 

Balance at the end of the year 1,449.99 

(c) Retained Earnings 
Retained Eamings are the profils and gains that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. 

(d) Remeasurement gain I (loss) on defined benefit plans 

Rs in crores 
As at 

March 31 , 2022 
1,449.99 

1,449.99 

The Company recognises remeasurement gain I (loss) on defined benefit plans ln Other Comprehensive Income_ These changes are accurrutated within Ille equity under "Remeasurement gain I 
(loss) on defined benefit plans" reserve within equity. 

(e) Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income 
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of other investments ,n equity Instruments (Other body corporates) in Other Comprehensive Income. These changes are 
accumuleled within Ille "EquJty lri•lruments lhrough other comprehensive income· resetve within equity. The Company transfe,s amounts from this reserve to Retained Eamings when the 
ralevant equity �hares are derecognlsed, 

(f) Cash flow hedge reserve 
(i) The cumulative effective portion of gain or losses arising from changes in fair value of hedging instruments designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in cash flow hedge reserve. Such 

changes rec.ognised are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged Item affects the profit or loss or are included as an adjustment to Ille cost of the related non­
financial hedged item. The Company has designated certain foreign currency forward contracts as cash flow hedges in respect of foreign exchange risks. 

(ii) During the year, ineffective portion of cash flow hedges recognised in the Statement of Profit end Loss amounted lo Rs Nil (March 31, 2022: Rs _  Nil) 
(iii) The amount recognised in cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) is expected to Impact the Statement of Profit and Loss as below: 

• within the next one year: loss of Rs. 1,30 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil), 
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15 Borrowings Rs in crores 
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Non current Current Non current Current 
A Secured borrowings 

(a) Term loan 

(i) From banks (Refer sub-nole (i)) 687.92 684 75 

a Unsecured borrowings 

(a) Liabilily componenl of non-convertible preference shares (Refer sub-note (ii)) 13,979.91 12,706.80 

Total borrowings 14,667.83 13,391.55 . 

Notes: 
(I) (a) Details of secured term loan facilities from Mnks is as below· Rs. in crores 

Currency Terms of repayment Maturity date Interest rate As at As al 
(floating rate) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Term loan is repayable in 

Indian Rupee 20 semi - annual instalments The Company has 
March 31, 2031 12 month MCLR 687.92 684.75 pre-paid 16 instalments (originally scheduled to 

be repaid by March 31, 2029) 

(b) The above lerrn loan is secured by first pari-passu charge over all presenl and future moveable and immovable tangible assets of the Co�any excluding moveable and immovable tangible 
assets of iron ore mines and land parcels of Joda unit of the Company 

(c) Matunty arofile o oor row! ngs is as belcw: Rs. . 1n crores 

Asat Aset 
Man:h 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Not later than one year or on demand . -
Later than one year but not two years 
Le!er than two years but not three years . 

Leier than three years but not four years . 

Later than four years but not five years 
More than five years 689.00 689.00 

689.00 689.00 
Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings (1.081 [4.25) 

687.92 684.75 

(d) The lerrn loan l1>cllity arrangements include financial covenants, whic.h require compl1ance to certnin dobt-l'.lquity end debt eovorage raUos. Additionally, certain negative C9Venanls may limit 
the Company·s ability to b000w additional funds or to incur addilional liens, and/or pr0111de for incraa,;ed costs In case of breach, The Company has �lied with these d�bt covenants. 

(II) During lhe �nancial year ended Mafllh 31, 2022, the Company had la&ued 0.01% Non-Cmver1lble Redeemable Ptolorence Slmres ("NCRPS") to Tata SIeeI Llmiled on private placement-basis. 
The NCRPS are mandetority mdeemable at the end of 20 years-from the dalB of allolment at Plllmlum of Rs. 574.63 per NC::RPS. The NCRPS shall be redeemable at prerrium upon 1J1<11Urity or 

optional ewly redemp�on with accrued lntereSl thereon a,mpul.ed on the bas,s of the effective yield of the ,nslrument. at the opUon of the Company on a �uarter1y basis al 3-month Tnlervals from 
lhe date of allotrr,en 

The dividend payment to holders of NCRPS is discretionary (non-guaranteed) and non-aimulative in nature and accordingly these are accounted for as compound financial instruments. 

(iii) Debt reconciliation Rs. in crores 

Total 

Debt as at April 1, 2022 13,391.55 
Cash flows (Net) 
Interest on liabllily component of non-eonvertible preference shares (Refer note 27) 1,273.11 
AmortisaUon of upfront fees 3.17 
Debt as at March 31, 2023 14,667.83 

Debt as al April 1, 2021 1,320,15 
Cash flows (Net) 12,064.00 
lnteresl on linbljfly component of non-convertible preference share capital (Refer note 27) 680 
Amcni sation of upfront fees o:so 

O.ebt as at March 31, 2022 13,391.55 

(Iv) The borrowings obtained by the company from banks have been applied for lhe purposes for which such borrowings were taken. 
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16 Provisio1111 

(a) Provision for emp!oyea benefits 

(i) Post-<>mploymant defined benefits 

(ii) Compensated absences 

(b) Other provisions (Refer note 43) 

(i) Provision for VAT, entry tax and sales tax 

(ii) Provision for cross subsidy surcharge payable 

(iii) Provision for interest on income tax 

(iv) Provision for mine restoration costs and other activities 

(v) Contingent liability recognised on business combination 

(vi) Others (Provision in relation to Mines Development and Production Agreement) 

Total provl1lo1111 

Aa at March 31, 2023 

Non current Current 

15.12 15.30 

15.77 1.30 

. 2.62 

. 7.44 

20.88 

27.77 12.42 

0.29 . 

. 8.20 

58.95 67.96 

Rs. In crores 

As at March 31, 2022 

Non current Current 

13.42 13.10 

15.49 0.86 

. 2.83 

6.01 

. 20.68 

21.31 7.96 

0.29 

. 3.46 

50.51 54.74 
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17 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

(ii The following le the analysis of deferred taxes presented In the Balance Sheet: 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

The balances comprises temporary differences attrlbutable to· 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Deferred tax liabilities 

(i) Property, plant and equipment and inlangible assets 

(ii) Redemption of non-<:0nverlible preference share investments 

(iii) Fair valuation of equity instruments designated as FVOCI 

Deferred tax assets 
(i) Amount allowable on payment basis as per section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(ii) Amount allowable under the Income Tax Act, 1961 on deferred basis 

(iii) On unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of business losses 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Balances as at March 31, 2022 

Deferred tax liabilities 
(i) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
(ii) Fair valuation of equity instruments designated as FVOCI 

Deferred tax assets 

(i) Amount allowable on payment basis as per section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(ii) Amount allowable under lhe Income Tax Act, 1961 on deferred basis 
(iii) On unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of business losses 

Deferrod tax liabilities (not) 

Note: 

Deferred tax liabilities/ Recognised In 
(assets) as 

at March 31, 2022 profit or loss 

156.87 35.34 

88.08 

3.01 

159.88 123.42 

(5.33) (0,64) 

(5.86) (2.43) 
. (64.48) 

(11.18) (67.55) 

148.70 55.87 

Deferred tax liabilities/ Recognised in 
(assets) as 

at March 31, 2021 
profit or toss 

98,91 57.96 

4.00 

102.91 57.96 

(5 28) (0.78) 
(3.75) (2.10) 

(49 35) 49.35 
(58.38) 46.47 

44.53 104.43 

a. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws. 

(Ii) Reconciliation of income tax recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Current tax 
On profit for current year 

Doforrod tax 
In respect of the current year 

Totlll tax expense (Aefer reconciliation below) 

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 

(Loss) I Profit before tax 

Income tax expense calculated at enacted Income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2022 : 25,168%) 
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 
Effect of Net finance cost of NCR PS not deductible 
Deferred tax liability recognised on redemption of NC RPS 

Others 
Income tax expense mcognisad In Statement of Profit and Loss 

Rs. in crores 
As at Asal 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
284.10 159,88 
(79.35) (11.18) 
204.75 148.70 

Rs in crores 
Recognised in other Deferred tax liabilities/ 

comprehensive (assets) as 
Income at March 31, 2023 

192.21 

88.08 
0.80 3.81 

0.80 284.10 

(0.24) (6.21) 

(0.39) (8.67) 

(64.48) 

(0.63) (79.35) 
0.17 204.75 

Recognised in other Deferred tax liabilities/ 
comprehensive (assets) as 

Income at March 31, 2022 

15687 
(0 99) 3.01 
(0.99) 159.88 

0 73 (5 33) 
(5 85) 

-

0.73 l11.18) 
(0.26) 148.70 

Rs In croro.s 
Year erded Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

. 124.08 

. 124.08 

55.87 104.43 
55.87 104.43 
55.87 228.51 

Rs. in crores 
Yearonded Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

(1,02S.62) 856.38 
(259.13) 216.04 

3.55 10.73 
223.53 

88.08 -

(0.16) 1,74 
55.87 228.51 
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18 Trade payables 

Current 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note (ii) below) 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

(a) Trade payables for supplies and services 

(b) Trade payables for accrued wages and salaries 

Total Trade Payables 

Trade payable to related parties (Refer Note 36)* 

Trade payable other than related parties 

Total Trade Payables 

• includes payable to Tata Steel Long Producu, J-lmited Superannuation Fund 

Notes: 
(i) Ageing of trade payables Is as below

As at 
March 31, 2023 

68.38 

2,018.09 

49.28 

2,135.75 

1,558.27 

577.48 

2,135.75 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Unbilled Not due 

As at March 31, 2023 

(Q MSME - 68.38 

(ii) Others 127.81 950.89 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - -

Total 127.81 1,019.27 

As at March 31, 2022 

(i) MSME - 72.63 

(ii) Others 229.04 1,581.40 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - .
-

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - -

Total 229.04 1,654.03 

Less than 1 
year 

-

466.03 

-

-

466.03 

-

431,67 

-

-

431.67 

1 - 2 years 

-

503.38 

-

503.38 

-

43.28 

-

. 

43.28 

2-3 years 

-

17.04 

-

-

17.04 

-

3.40 

-

-

3.40 

(Ii) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

More than 3 
years 

-

2.22 

-

-

2.22 

-

8.41 

-

-

8.41 

Rs. In crores 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

72.63 

2,244.21 

52.99 

2,369.83 

1,805.25 

564.58 

2,369.83 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

68.38 

2,067.37 

-

-

2,135.75 

72.63 

2,297.20 

-

-

2,369.83 

The amount due to the Micro and Small Enterprise as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the 
extent such parties have represented and made available MSME registration number and certificates. 

Rs. In crores 

As at As al 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(a) (i) The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at end of the accounting year 68.38 72.63 

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at end of the accounting year - -

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tenms of section 16 of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises 

(b) Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed - -

day during each accounting year 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond 

(c) the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 0.02 0.70 
Enterprises Development Act. 2006; 

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 1.06 1.04 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In ·the succeeding years, un51 such date when the 

(e) interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductlble 
- -

e)lpenditure under section 23 of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Refer Note 31 for information about liquidity risk relating to Trade payables. 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Standalone financial statements 

19 Other current liabilities 

(a) Advances from customers (Refer note below)

(b) Other payables

(i) Employee recoveries and employer contributions

(ii) Statutory liabilities (GST,TDS, etc.) 

(iii) EPCG indemnified liabilities 

(iv) Liabilities for renewable energy purchase obligation 

Total other current liabilities 

Note: 

Rs. In crores 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
141.57 123.37 

1.86 1.79 

65.52 145.62 

19.80 19.80 

23.61 22.32 

252.36 312.90 

Amount of revenue recognised during the year ended March 31, 2023, from amounts included in the advances from customers outstanding at the 
beginning of the year is Rs. 118.98 crores (March 31 '. 2022: Rs. 141.52 crores). 

20 Other financial liabilities Rs. In crores 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Non current Current Non current Current 

(a) Interest payable

(i) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 0.73 - 2.43 

(ii) Interest accrued on trade payables and others - 5.06 - 5.54 

(b) Creditors for capital supplies and services - 15.27 - 1j.23 

(c) Unpaid dividends - 2.08 - 2.19 
(d) Consideration kept in Escrow Account (Refer note (i) below) 828.21 113.45 - -

(e) Other credit balances (Refer note (ii) below) - 114.40 - 116.52 

Total Other financial liabilities 828.21 250.99 - 137.91 

(i) The Company has completed the acquisition of NINL during the financial year. Out of the total consideration paid for acquisition Rs. 911.17
crores kept in Escrow Account held for resolution of the litigations and payment if required or release to the sellers at the expiry of the specified
period.

(ii) Includes net amount payable to Usha Martin Limited (UML) Rs. 80.37 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 93.20 crores) towards purchase
consideration pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement for acquisition of steel business.

21 (i) Current tax liabilities (net) Rs. in crores 

Asat As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Provision for tax 
53.90 53.90 [net of tax paid of Rs. 367.28 crores (As at March 31, 2022: Rs. 367.28 crores)] 

Total current tax liabilities (net) 53.90 53.90 

21 (ii) Income tax assets (Non current) (net) Rs. in crores 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Advance tax and Tax Deducted at Source 

80.92 44.71 (net of provision of Rs. 263.1 O crores (As at March 31, 2022: Rs. 263.1 O crores)] 

Total non cur.rent tax assets (net) 80.92 44.71 

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, 
that has not been recorded in the books of account. 
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22 Revenue from operations 

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers 
(i) Sale of products 
(ii) Sale of power 
(iii) Income from services 

(b) Other operating revenue 
(i) Sale of product scrap 
(i) Export incentives 

Revenue from operations 

Notes: 
(a) Reconcillation of revenue recognised with contract price 

Contract price 
Adjustment for: 

Refund liabilities 
Revenue from operations 

(b) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated on the basis of geographical region and major businesses 

(i) Sale of products 

(ii) Sale of power 

(iii) Income from services 

Total revenue from contracts with customers 

Figures m brackets represents amount for the previous year 

(c) Customers who contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue 

(i) Customer 1 

(ii) Customer 2 

(d) Contract balances 

Trade receivables (Gross) (Refer Note 11) 

Contract assets 
Contract assets 

Contract liabililles 

Advance from customers (Refer Note 19) 

There has been no significant changes in the outstanding balances of contract assets and contract liabilities. 

23 Other Income 

(a) Interest income 

(I) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at FVTPL 

- Non-convertible redeemable preference shares 

- Bank deposits carried at amortised cost 

- Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 

(b) Dividend income 

(i) From equity investments • 

(c) Net gain on fair value changes 

(i) Net gain on fair value changes of financial assets carried at FVTPL (Current) 

(ii) Net gain on sale of current investments 

(d) Gain on cancellation of forward contracts 

(e) Liabilities no longer required written back 

(f) Other non-operating income 

Total other Income 

Note: 

India 

6,225.95 

(5,802.55) 

61.28 

(62.60) 

513.55 

(186,03) 

6,800.78 

(6,051.18) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

6,627.00 
61.28 

513.55 

262.24 
-

7,464.07 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

7,487.81 

(23.74) 
7,464.07 

Outside India 

401.05 

(513.32) 
-

-

401.06 

(513.32) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

1,079.64 

916.71 

1,996.35 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

71.09 

20.52 
91.61 

141.57 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

384.97 

20.76 

6.22 

5.33 

18.45 

117.85 

14.21 

27.61 

39.06 

634.46 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

6,315.87 
62.60 

186.03 

232.89 
4.24 

6,801.63 

Rs in crores 
Year ended 

March 31, 2022 
6,835.12 

(33.49) 

6,801.63 

Rs. in crores 

Total 

6,627.00 

(6,315.87) 

61.28 

(62.60) 

513.55 

(186.03) 

7,201.83 

(6,564.60) 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

950.40 

533.11 

1,483.61 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

61,06 

16.29 
77.35 

123.37 

Rs. in crores 
Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

10.89 

2.75 

0.75 

6.93 

9.19 

0.11 

63.86 

43.03 

137.51 

• Includes dividend on 
year ended March 31, 

nated as fair value through other c 
r the year ended March 31, 2022). 

ng date, amounting to Rs. 5.33 crores for the 
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24 Cost of materials consumed 

Opening stock 

Add: Purchases of materials 

Less: Closing stock 

Total cost of materials consumed 

25 Changes in inventories of finished and semi-finished goods 

Finished and semi-finished goods 

Opening stock 

Less; Closing stock 

Net decrease/ (increase} in finished and semi-finished goods 

26 Employee benefits expense 

(a) Salaries and wages 

(b) Contribution to provident and other funds

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense 

27 Finance costs 

(a) Interest expenses 

(i) Non-convertible redeemable preference shares (Refer Note 15) 

(ii) Bank borrowings and others

(iii) Leases

(b) Unwinding of discount on provisions 

(c) other borrowing costs

Total finance costs

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 03)

(b) Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 04) 

(c) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 05) 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

979.27 550.62 

5,409.42 4,358.26 

6,388.69 4,908.88 

919.89 979.27 

5,468.80 3,929.61 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

301.71 202.57 

383.98 301.71 

(82.27) (99.14) 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

189.65 196.33 

18.58 12.57 

9.26 7.53 

217.49 216.43 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

1,273.11 6.80 

101.15 93.15 

7.66 8.43 

1.06 0.87 

4.02 0.71 

1,387.00 109,96 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

310.17 278.85 

13.67 14.67 

23.82 26.06 

347.66 319.58 
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29 Other expenses 

(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts

(b) Fuel oil consumed

(c) Purchase of power

(d) Rent

(e) Repairs to buildings

(f) Repairs to machinery

(g) Insurance

(h) Rates and taxes

(i) Freight and handling charges

U) Commission, discounts and rebates

(k) Packing and forwarding

(I) Royalty

(m) Conversion charges

(n) Other expenses

(1) Legal and professional fees (Refer Note 29.01)

(2) Advertisement, promotion and selling expenses

(3) Travelling expenses

(4) Net Loss on foreign currency transactions

(5) Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer Note 44) 

(6) Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment

(7) Loss on disposal of non-current investments

(8) Other general expenses

Total other expenses 

29.01 Payment to auditors 

Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses 

(i) As auditors - statutory audit

(ii) As auditors - quarterly audits

(iii) As auditors - tax audit

(iv) For other services

(v) Auditors out-of-pocket expenses

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

524.35 437.07 

246.19 187.70 

129.82 111.54 

1.91 5.48 

22.44 25.18 

207.81 152.72 

14.09 11.21 

43.48 30.12 

373.21 353.13 

1.08 1.09 

9.47 9.75 

109.29 134.98 

4.40 1.08 

9.06 10.38 

0.39 0.28 

9.23 7.19 

17.31 11.48 

7.72 2.99 

1.82 11.98 

- 0.06 

54.70 71.77 

1,787.77 1,577.18 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0.98 0.85 

0.40 0.33 

0.08 0.08 

0.04 0:12 

0.01 0.05 

1.51 1.43 
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30 Capital management 

(a) Risk management 
The objedive of lhe Coflllany's capital management is to mrudrrise sharehcldar value, safeguard business conlinuity and support lhe growth of lhe Company. The Company determines lhe capital 
requirement based on annual operating plans and long-18fTTI and other slreteg!c Investment plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generate<i from operations, long-term and short-lerm 
b.lnk b«rawlngs. 

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt lo equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company 

Net debt includes interest bearing borrowings, lease liabilities and liability component of preference shares less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including non-eurrent earmarked 
balances) and current investments. 

The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Company. 

Rs in crores 
Asal As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Eqully share capital 45.10 45.10 
Other equity 2,014.30 3,155.37 
Toto.I equity (A) 2,05!UO 3,200.47 

Non-0,rrent borrowings 14,667.83 13,391.55 
Lease liabilities 83.51 90.05 
Gross debt (B) 14751.34 13,481.60 
Total capital (A+B) 16,810.74 16,682.07 

Gross debt as above 14,751.34 13,481,60 
Less : Current investments 547.66 8,077.62 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 112.91 4,558.91 
Less; Other balance with banks (including non-<:urrenl earmarked balances) 2.93 3.05 
Nel debt (C) 14.,087.84 8'12.02 

Net debt to eaulty ratio ' 5.36 0.29 

Note: 
1 Net debt to equity ratio has been compuled based on average of opening and closing equity. 

(b} Dividend on equity shares Rs. in crores 
Asal A5al 

March-31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Dividend declared and paid during the year 
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022 of Rs. 12.50 (March 31, 2021 - Rs. 5) per fully paid share 56.38 2255 

Proposed dividend not recognised at the end of the reporting period 5638 

31 Disclosures on financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management 

The Comp,iny·s adMJles rocpose ii to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. In order to safeguard against any adverse effects on the financial perfonmance of the Company, derivative financial 
,ns\ruments viz. IOieign el<ch.ange forward contracts are entered wfien, ccnsldered appropriate lo hedge foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are used e�clusively for t,edglng purposes and not as 
trading o.r speCJlallve instruments_ 

The Ccmpany's- sen;� manag�ment oversees the management of aoov� risk� The senior eicecutives working to manage the financial risl<s afe accounl>!ble to the Audit committee and the Board of 
Difl'cio<s. This process pro,ijdes assurance that the Company's financial risks-lal<ing adivitle.sare governed by appropriate policies and proceoures and \l,a1 fina�al risks are identified, measured and 
managed In a=rdsnce with the Company's pa(laes and the Company's nsk appolite. 

This Note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk. The Board of Directors review and approve pa(icies for managing each of these risks. which are 
summarised below 

(i} Credit risk management 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a ccunterparily may default on ils contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company The Company's exposure to credit risk primarily arises from trade 
receivables, investments in mutual funds and balances with banks. 

Tr/Ide (!!061V8/J/es end rontrad asseu; 
Trade receivables are typically unsecured, ainsldered good and are dllri',ed from revenue earned trorri customers. Customer credit risk is managed as per Company's pclicy and procedures which 
involve credit approvals. establishing credit limits and continually monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Contract 
assets mainly relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same characteristics as the trede recefvables for the same type or contraas. 
Outsl>!nding customer receivables are regularly morntored and the shipments to customers are generally covcrc,l'by letters of credit or other roons ur cnidit assurance, 

Other Financla! Assets 
Crod,t risk tram balances with banks, term <loposits. loans and investments is managed by Company's finance department. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties 
who mee1 the minimum threshold r equirements. The Col11P8nY monitors ratings, credil spreads and financial ,in,ngu, ol Its counterpartes. 

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk as disclosed in 31 (b)(i). The credit risk relating to trade receivables is shown under Nole 11. 
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(ii) Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without Incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all 
times maintain optimum levels or liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity po.siUon and maintll1n adequate source of financing. 

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Company has access to funds from debt markets through commercial paper 
programs. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits and in mutual funds, which carry no or low market risk. 

a. Financing arrangement 
The Company has unutilised fund based arrangement with banks for Rs. 1,334.84 crores (March 3 1, 2022: Rs 878 25 crores) The Company has also Non-Fund based facilities with banks for Rs. 
1,273.18 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,100.63 crores) which may be utilised at any time. 

b. Maturities of financial liabilities 
The foUOWJng table show• a matuniy analy-sls of the e.nbdpated cash flows including interest obligations for the Company's derlvalive and non-derivative financial liabilities on an undiscounleel 
basis, which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value. Floating rate interest is estimated using the prevailing intere:st rate at the end of the reporting period. Cash flows in foreign 
currencies are translated using lhe period end spot ratas. 

Rs In cron,s 
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying value Contractual cash less than one between one to More than five 

flo� year five yea19 years 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings including interest obligations 687.92 1,108.48 58.22 232.88 817.38 
Liability component of non-amvertible preference shares (Refer note 15) 13,979.91 85,678.01 85,678.01 
Lease liabilities 83.51 124.56 14.88 53.66 56.02 
Trade payables 2,135.75 2,135.75 2,135.75 
Derivative liabilities 2.70 2.70 2.70 
Other financial liabilities 1,079.20 1,079.20 250.99 828.21 

17,968.99 90,128.70 2,462.54 1,114.75 86,551.41 

As at March 31, 2022 Carrying value Contractual cash less than one between one to More than five 
flows year five years years 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings including interest obligations 684.75 1, 118,68 52 36 20946 85686 
Liability component of non-convertible preference shares (Refer note 15) 12,706,80 85,678 0 1  - 85,678,01 
Lease liabilities 9005 13820 17 54 5 1 81 68,85 
Trade payables 2,36983 2,36983 2,36983 -

Derivative liabilities 1 7 1  1 7 1  1.7 1  - -

other financial liabilities 137 91 137.91 137,91 . -

15,991.05 89444.34 2,579.35 261.27 86 603.72 

(ill) Man<et risk 

a. Foreign cum,ncy risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Company transacts business in 
local currency and in foreign currencies (primarily US Dollar,;) The Company has foreign currency trade payables and is therefore exposed to foreign currency r1sk, Foreign currency risk exposure 
is evaluated and managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies, The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses foiwaro contract de!ivative instruments primarily to hedge 
foreign exchange fluctuations 

USO In crores 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Financial assets 
Trade receivables -

Net exposure to foreign cum,ncy risk (Assets) 

Fim,ncial liabilities 
Trade payables 7.91 16 02 
Derjvafives 
Foreign exchange foiwaro contracts 10 _80 15.48 
Net exposure to fon,fgn cum,ncy risk (Liabilities) - 0.56 

N.ot exposure to lorninn currency risk IA.ssets - Llabllltlest 10.56) 

Fon,lgn currency sensitivity 
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax and 
profit aner tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities, The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all currencies other than US Dollars is not material. 

Increase In rate of 1 USO against Rs by 10% 
Oeaease in rate of 1 USO ar,ainst Rs. by 10% 

Impact on pro!H borore w
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

co Charte 

\M AAC-4 

red Ac7ou 

0<1c•2�-'!> 
Kolkotr.1. 

(4.24) 
424 

Rs lncrores 
Impact on profit alter tu 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 3 1, 2022 
- (3 17) 
- 3,17 
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b. Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marl<et interest rates The Company's exposure to the risk of changes 
in mar1<et interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, Jhe 
Company's profit before tax and profit after tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows 

Rs In crores 
lmoact· on prom before tu Impact on orom after lax 

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Increase in interest rate by 100 basis points (6.89) (6.89) (5.16) (5.16) 
Decrease In Interest rate by 100 basis points 6.89 6 _89 5.16 5,16 

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest r.ito acrass all yield curves. This calculation afso assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has 
been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The year end balances are not necessarily reprasehtative of the average debt outstanding during the period 

(iv) Securities Price risk 

The Company is exposed 10 price risks arising from fair valuation of Company's investment in mutual funds The carrying amount of the Company's investments designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss at the end of the reporting period (Refer Note no 6(ii)). 

Rs In crores 
Impact on orolit beforo Cax Imo act on profit after tax 

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

NAV-lncrease by 1%· 5.48 8078 4.10 60.45 
NAV-Decrease by 1%• (6A81 (80.78) 14.10) (60.45) 
• Holding all other variables constant 
Decrease in impact on profit before tax is on account of reduction in investments in mutual funds from Rs 8.077.62 crores to Rs. 547.66 crores. 

(v) Commodity Price risk 

Exi:osure to marl«rt rl•� wi,th respeci-lo e0mmadlty prices primarily anses from tho Company's purchase of imponed coal f<fr produc\fon or finished gcods. Cost or raw materlal,rforms lhe larg_esl 
ponlon of the Company's cost ot •alos. Market forces generally determine prjces for the coal purchiiSed by the Company, These prices fflll)' be innunncoo by factors such as supply ar.d d"l".and, 
production co!its and global and mgfonal 8C011omic conditions and growth, Adverse cllanges In any of these factora may impact the results of the Comi:,eny, However. steel prices fellow the trend of 
commoctlly prices cwr a period and provide a natural hedue lo the busfness 

Commodity price risk exposura is evaluated ana managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses forward contract derivative 
instruments primarily to ti,,dge foreign exchange nucluatlons. 

(b) Financial Instruments by Category 

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments 

(I) Financial assets and liabilities 
The following tables present the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

Rs In crores 
Fair value Derivative Derivative 

Fair value 
As at March 31, 2023 Amortised cost through other lnstuments in lnstuments not in through profit 

Total carrying 
Total fair value comprehensive hedging hedging or loss value 

Income relationship relationship 
Financial assets 
Investments in Mutual fund - - - 547.66 547.66 547.66 
Investments in Prl!ferance Shares 4,945.51 - - 4,945.51 4,294.38 
Investment in body corporates ,9.28 - - 19.28 19.28 
Trade receivables 70.42 - - - 70.42 70.42 
Loans 0.52 - - - 0.52 0.52 
Cash and cash equivalents 112.91 - - - 112.91 112.91 
Other bank balances 940.70 - 940.70 940.70 
Derivative assets - - - 1.12 - 1.12 1.12 
Other financial assets 262.27 - - . 262.27 262.27 
Total 6,332.33 19.28 1.12 547.66 fl 9QQ.39 6,249.26 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 14,667.83 - 14,667.83 12,040.88 
Lease liabilities 83.51 - 83.51 83.51 
Trade payables 2,135.75 - - - 2,135.75 2,135.75 
Derivative liabiljijes - - 1.53 1.17 2.70 2.70 
Other financial liabilities 1,079.20 - 1 079.20 1,079.20 
Total 17,966.29 1..53 1.17 17,968.99 15,342.04 
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As at March 31, 2022 

Financial assets 
Investments in Mutual fund 
Investment in body corporates 
Trade receivables 
Loans 
Gash and cash equivalenls 
Olher bank balances 
Other financial assets 
Total 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Lease liabilities 
Trade payables 
Derivative liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Total 

(Ii) Folr vatue measuremonl 

Amortised cost 

60.39 
0.28 

4,558.91 
2,20 

255,96 
4,877.74 

13,391 55 
90,05 

2,369.83 

137,91 
15,989.34 

Fair value Derivative 
through other lnstuments In 

comprehensive hedging 
income relationship 

1568 
-

-

-

. 

- . 

15.68 

-

-

. 

Ra In crores 
Derivative Fair value lnstuments not In through pront 

Total carrying 
Total fair value hedging or loss value 

relationship 

8,077,62 8,07762 8,077.62 
- 1568 1568 

60 39 60 39 
- 0 28 0 . 28 
- 4,558.91 4,558.91 
. 2. 20 2.20 

- . 255.96 255,96 
8,077.62 12,971.04 12,971.04 

- 13,391.55 13,391 55 
. 90,05 90 05 

- - 2,369 83 2,369 83 
1.71 1.71 1 71 

137 91 137 91 
1.71 15,991.05 15,991.05 

The fair values or financial assets and liabllltles are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an order1y transacHon between mar1<et participants 
at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are con1StStent with those used in the previous year. 

Jhe following melhods and assumptions were used to esHmate the fair values: 

(a) The management assessed that fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets (current), trade payables, and other financial liabilities 
(current), •ppro><imate to th,,;, carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

(b) In /aspect of invest111S11ls in mutual fund$, the fair values represent net asset value as stated by the Issuers of lhese rrutual ft.md units in the published statements. Net asset values /llpresent the 
prla, at whlch the Issuer will issue further units In the mutual fl.mo a(ld the prtce at which 1.ssL.'l!rs will redeem &Uch units rrcm the inYestors, Accordingly, such net asset •alues ere ar>alogous to fair 
market value with respect to these investments, as tnm.sadlons or these mutual funds are carried out at sU<lh prices between inves tors and the Issuers of these units cl mutual fu,<IS. 

Fair value hierarchy 
This section explains the judgement5 and estimates made In d<!lollTlining tho ·fair values or lhe financial instruments that are (a) recognloed and measured at fair value and (b) measured at 
amortisoo cost and for which fair values are dlsdosed In the financial .iatements. To prnvide en lndltalion about the n:liabllity or the Inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has 
classified ,rs financial Instruments Into three fevels preSJ;t1bed under the accoun�ng 5lilndard. An eJ<plana!ion of e.act, level follows below. 

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices This includes mutual funds, The mutual funds are valued using lhe 
closing Net Asset Value. 

Vatuotlon techniques with observable Inputs (Level 2): The falr value of Financ:iaJ Instruments that are not traded in an active mar1<et (for example, ow,-the counter derivatives) is determined 
using valuation techniques whic/i maxlmtse tho use of observable mar1<et qata arid rely as IIUle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs-required to fair value an instrument are 
obsarvallle, the Instrument is include<l ,n level 2. l"his ,s the case for derivative lnstrumenls. 

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable 1nputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable mar1<et data, the instrument is included in level 3 This is 
the case for unlIBted equity securities included In level 3. 

The Company's policy is to recognii;e transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. There were no amount required lo be transferred as at the 
end of the current year and as at the end of the previous year. 

Rs in c.rores 
As at March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level� Level 3 Total fair value 
Financial assets 
lnvastmenl in mutual funds 547.66 - 547.66 

Derivative assets 1.12 1.12 

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI (Unquoted) 19.28 19.28 

Total 547.66 1.12 19.28 568.06 

Financial liabilities 
Defivauve liabllltles 2.70 2.70 

As at March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fm valu.e 
Flrtancial assets 
lnve$tmanl in mutual funds 8,07762 8,077.62 
Oori•allve assets . 

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI (Unquoled) 1568 15.68 
Total 8,077.62 15.68 8,093.30 

Financial liabilities 
DerivaUve llabili�es - 1.71 - 1.71 
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ReconclllaUon of Level J fair value measurement Is. as below· 

Opening balance 
Changes in fair value recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 
Closing balance 

Valuation technique used for Level 3 investments 

Rs. In crorea 

Asa t Asel 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

15.88 19.60 
3.60 (3.92) 

19.28 15.68 

Fair valuaHon of lhe equity investments as at March 31, 2023 have been determined using the market approach. Significant unobservable input used in the valuation was earnings multiple. 

The ,ncrease I decrease of 1 earnings multlple (keeping other variables constant) would result into an increase/ decrease in fair value by Rs. 2.40 crores (March 31, 2022 : Rs 2,48 crores) and 
Rs. 2.32 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 2.48 crores) respectively. 

(Iii) Deriva tive financial instruments 

De<iv3live instrull'lllf1a used by lhe Company are forwatd exchange ccmracts. These financial instruments are utiilsed to hedge future transactions and cash flows and are subject to hedge 
a=unting Under Ind· AS 109 'Financial Instruments" wherever =s,ble The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading pulJ>Oses. All transactions in delivative 
financial lnstruirenls are undertaken \o manage risks artsfng from unde�ylng business activities. 

The following table sets out the fair value or delivative assets/ liabilities held by the Company as at the end of each reporting period 

Foroign·currency forwanls 

Classified as: 
No.n-cufTent assets 
Cu1Tenl assets 

Non-oment liabilities 
Current \iabil\Ue,; 

As at the end of_ lhe reporting period total notional amount of oulslanding foreign currency contracts that the Company has committed to is as below: 

F orei n curren rorward:5 

R• In crores 
Asal Asal 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
1.58 1,71 

-

1.12 -

. -

2.70 1,71 

USO In c r ores 
Asat Asal 

t.ian:h 31, 2023 Me<cti 31, 2022 
12.3� 15.46 
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32 Earnings per equltv share 

Net (loss) / profit for the year (Rs. in crores) 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 

Nominal value per equity share (Rs.) 

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.) 

Note: 
(i) The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the period presented.

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(1,085.49) 629.87 
4,51,00,000 4,51,00,000 

10 10 

(240.69) 139.66 

33 (a) Contingent liabilities: Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs. in crores 

(b) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(a) Income tax 0.11 1.59 
(b) Customs duty (Refer Note below) 33.49 33.49 
(c) Demand from suppliers 1.52 1.52 

35.12 36.60 

Note: 

The above fnclucles demand received from Commissioner of Customs (Preventive) aggregating to Rs. 43.99 crores pertaining to the financial year 
2012-13 on account of levy of additional customs duty on classification of the imported coal as bituminous coat as against the Company's 
classification as steam coat. The Company has filed an appeal against the aforesaid order in the Customs. Excise and Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, Kolkata. The Company had paid an amount of Rs. 10.88 crores and recognised the non-cenvatable portion of the duty and applicable 
interest as expense whereas cenvatable portion had· been recognised as an advance In the year ended March 31, 2013_, for which the Company 
has reco,gnised a provision In the year ended March 31. 2021. 

Rs. in crores 

Contingent liabilities: Other matter for which the Company is contingently liable Asat As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(i) Renewable energy purchase obligation 6.33 6.33 

(ii) Excise Duty 30.41 30.41 

36.74 36.74 

(c) Cross subsidy surcharge payable to power distribution companies
In 2012-13, the Company Injected power to State Grid due to denial of permission for open access by Orissa Power Transmission Corporation 
Umiled ("OPTCL") to supply power to the parent Company, Tata Steel Limited, beyond the period of invocation of section 11 of Electricity Act, 2003 
by the Government ofOdisha 1,e .. June. 2012. As a result. the Company could not meet the miniml.l m stipulated criteria of 51% setf-consump\ion of 
generated power as a capllve power plant and the provisions of Cross Subsidy Surcharge under Electricity Act, 2003 became applicable. The
Gompany filed a case before the Odis ha Electricity Regulatory Commission ("OERC'1 for relief which was denied and consequently the Company
had filed a case before Appellate Tribunal of Electricity ("ATE"). Appeal filed by the Company before ATE was allowed and the matter stands
remitted back to the OERC for reconsideration afresh. 0n 01.02.2021, OERC directed NESCO to compute the quantum of electricfty supplied to
the Stale Grid afre�h. Against this, TSLPL filed an Appeal before APTEL ana got interim st,ay order on 31.3.2021. However, on 05.12..2022, APTEL
admitted TSLPL's appeal but vacated the interim stay granted earlier. The matter is. at present pending before APTEL for furtller hearing. As a 
matter of prudenc;e. pending finalisation of.the matter, an amount of Rs. 7.44 crores (Including delayed payment surcharge) has been provided In
the books. 

In respect of above, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, pending resolution of the respective 
proceedings. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above.

34 Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (Property, plant and equipment) and not provided for is Rs. 78.84 crores 
(As at March 31, 2022: Rs. 77 .12 crores) net of advances of Rs. 2.71 crores (As at March 31, 2022: Rs. 3.60 crores.) 

35 Exceptional items 

Acquisition related expenditure 
Acquisition related expenditure represents expenses incurred on stamp duty and registration fees for a portion of land parcels and buildings transferred 
in the name of the Company, which were part of the acquired business from Usha Martin Limited. 
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36 Related party transaction 

A List of related parties 
Name of the related Party 

Tata Sons Private Limited 

Where control nxlsts 

Tata Steel Limited 

Neelachal !spat Nlgam Limited (w.e.r. July 04, 2022 ) (Refer note 48) 

TSIL Energy Limited (upto September 2 5, 2021) 

Others with whom transactions have taken place during the current or previous year 

The Tata Pigments Limited (Subsidiary of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limiled) 

Kalimati Global Shared Services Limited (Subsidiary ofTata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited) 

The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited 

Tata Metaliks Limited 

Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited 

The Siam Industrial Wire Company Ltd. (Subsidiary of T S  Global Holdings Pie Ltd.) 

Tata International Metals (Asia) Limited 

Tata Steel Global Procurement Company Pte. ltd. 

Tata Steel Foundation 

Tata Steel Mining Limited 

TM International Logistics Limited 

mjunction services limited 

Jamipol Limited (Joint venture of fellow subsidiary) 
Tata Bluescope Steel Private Limited (Joint Venture of fellow subsidiary) 

Tata NYK Shipping PTE limited 

TKM Global Logistic Limited (Joint venture with Joint venture of Tata Steel Limited) 

Tata International Limited 

Tata Communication Limited 

Tata 1 mg Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 

Tata Limited 

Tata Asset Management Private Limited 

Tale Consultancy Services Limited 

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

Mr. Ashish Anupam 

Mr. TV Narendran 

Mr. Koushik Chatterjee 

Mrs. Meena Lall 

Mr. Debashish Bhattacharjee 

Dr. Sougata Ray 

Mr. Ansuman Das 

Mr. Srikumar Menon 

Mr. Shashi Kant Maudgal 

Mrs, Neeta Karmakar 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Employee Provident Fund Trust 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Superannuation Fund 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Gratuity Fund 

B Particulars of transactions during the year 

Name of the related party Natura of relationship 

Tata Steel Limited Holding Company 
Tata International Limited Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 
The Siam Industrial Wire Company Ltd. Fellow subsidiary 
Tata International Metals (Asia) Limited Fellow subsidiary 
Tata Melallks Limited Fellow subsidiary 
Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited Subsidiary Company 
Total - Sale of goods 

Tata Steel Limited Holding Company 
Total - Sale of power 

Tata Steel limited Holding Company 
Neelachal lspat Nlgam Limited Subsidiary Company 
Total - Services rendered 

Relationship 

Company having significant influence in the Parent 
Company 

Holding Co111pany 

Subsidiary Company 

Wholly owned Subsldiary Company 

Fellow Subsidiary 

Joint venture with Tata Steel Limited 

Subsidiary and Joint venture of Tata Sons Private 
Limited 

Key Management personnel - Managing Director 
(MD) 

Key Management personnel -Non- Executive 
Director (NED) 

Post Employment Benefit Plans (PEBP) as per Ind 
AS24 

Rs. in crores 
Year ended Year ended 

31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022 
378. 79 30 8.01 
270 .16 249.06 

- 15 9.79 
- 0 .27 
- 82 .56 

128.33 
7 77.28 799.6 9 

54 .1 4  61.94 
54 .14 61,94 

603 .2 7 233.84 
0.15 -

603 . 42 233.84 
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B Particulani of transactions during the year (continued) 

Name of tho related party 

Tara Steel Limited 

Tala Steel Global Procurement Company Pte. Ltd. 

The Indian Sleel and Wire Products Limited 

Tala Steel Mining Limited 

Tata 8/ueScope Steel Private Limiled 

Jamipol Limiled 

Tata Limited 
Total - Purchase of goods 

Ta/a Steel Limited 

Tata. Steel Global Procurement Company Pte. Lid. 

Tata International Limited 

TM International Logistics Limited 

Tota.I • Reimbursement of expenses 

Tata Steel Limiled 

Tata Metaliks Limited 

Total - Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Tata Steel Limited 

Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited 

The Tata Pigments Limited 

The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited 

Tata Steel Foundation 

Tata Sons Private Limited 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited 

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

Tata Communication Limited 

TM International Logistics Limited 

TKM Global Logistic Limited 

m]unctlon services limiled 

Kallmati Global Shared Services Limited 

Tata 1 mg Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 

Tata Asset Management Private Limited 

Total - Services received 

Jamlpol Limited 

Total - Dividend income 

Tata Steel Limited 

Total - Dividend paid 

Mr. Ashish Anupam 

Total - Short term employee benefits 

Mr_ Ashish Anupam 

Total - Post employment benefits 

Sitting fees 

Commission 

Tata Steel Limited 

Total - Issue of non-convertible redeemable preference shares 

Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 

Total - Equity Instruments of subsidiary 

Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 

Total - Investments in Other Instrument of subsidiary 

Tata Steel Limited 

Total - Interest expense recognised 

Neelachal /spat Nigam Limited 

Total - Interest income recognised 

Ta1a Steel Long Products Limited Employee Provident Fund Trust 
Tata Steel Long Products Limited Superannuation Fund 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Gratuity Fund 

Total - Contribution made 

Nature of relationship 

Holding Company 

Fellow subsidiary 

Fellow subsidiary 

Fellow subsidiary 

Join I venture of Fellow subsidiary 

Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 

Subsidiary of Tala Sons Private Limited 

Holding Company 

Fellow subsidiary 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 

Joint venture of Tata Steel Limited 

Holding Company 

Fellow subsidiary 

Holding CO!llpany 

Fellow subsidiary 

Fellow subsidiary 

Fellow subsidiary 

Fellow subsidiary 

Company having significant influence 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 

Joint venture of Tata Sons Private Limited 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 

Joint venture of Tata Steel Limited 

Joint venture of Joint venture with Tata Steel Limited 

Joint venture of Tata Steel Limited 

Fellow subsidiary 

Step down subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 

Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 

Holding Company 

MD 

MD 

Non- Executive Directors 

Non- Executive Directors 

Holding Company 

Subsidiary Company 

Subsidiary Company 

Holding Company 

Subsidiary Company 

PEBP 

PEBP 

PEBP 

Rs in crores 
Year ended Year ended 

31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022 
1,306.39 1,509,07 

2,710.09 1,902.12 

4.35 5.24 
61.09 55.02 

1.05 1.65 

26.90 30.29 

0.41 -

4,110.28 3,503.39 

15.44 0.03 

(3.05), 0.37 

13.60 -

- 4.33 

25.99 4.73 

0.05 -

0.05 
0.10 -

38.11 28.68 

0.04 0.24 

0,13 

0.01 0.04 

1.55 0.23 
- 14.90 

3.17 1.35 

9.75 10.11 

3.50 2.63 

65.54 28.67 

0.08 11 54 

1.67 1.20 

0.06 -

0.07 -

0.08 -

123.63 99.72 

5.33 0.50 

5.33 0.50 

42.23 16.89 

42.23 16.89 

4.66 4.85 
4.66 4.85 

0.13 0.12 

0.13 0.12 

0.20 0.28 

0.50 0.70 

12.700.00 

12.700.00 

8,139.46 -

8,139.46 -

4,560.54 -

4,560,54 -

1,273.11 6.80 

1,273.11 6.80 

384.97 -

384.97 -

4.78 4.49 
3.74 3.45 
3.99 4.08 

12.51 12.02 
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C Balances outstanding 

Name of the related party 

Tara SIeel Limited 
The Siam lndus!rlal Wire co Lid 

Tala International Limited 
Neelachal lspal Nlgam Limited 
n,e Indian Steel & Wire Products Ud 
Total - Trade receivables 

Tata Steel Limited 
Total - Financial assets 

Tata Steel L,lmiled 
Tata Steel Global Procu/emenl Company Pie. Lld. 
Tata Steel Utilities and lnrrastructure Services Limited 
The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited 
Tata Steel Mining Limite<:I 
Tata Sons Private Limited 
mjuncilon services r,mlted 
TKM Global Logl�lic Umiled 
TM lnlemalional Logisllcs Limited 
Tata Bluescope Steel Private Limited 
Jamtpoj Limited 
Tata Communication Limited 
Tata Consultancy Services Limited 
TalaUmited 
Kalimat1 Global Share_d Services Limited • 
Total • Trade payables for suppllos and services 

Tala Steel Lon� Products llmilP.d Employee f'rovtdent Fund TruGl 
Tata Steel Long Products Limited Superannuation Fund 
Tata Stll<!I Long Products Limited Gratuity Fund 
Total - Payable/ (contrlbulion in advance) to PEBP 

Tata ln\er(lalional Llmlled • 
TM International LoglsOcs Umlted 
Total - Advances paid 

Tata Metaliksllmited 
Total • Advances received 

Jamlpol Un,lted (At cost) 
Total - Investments 

Tata Stoel Limited 
Total - Non-convertible preference shares 

NeeJachal !spat ,Nlgam Llmltw 
Total• Investments In Equity Instruments of subsidiary 

Neelachal lspal Nigam Limited 
Total - tnvestmonts·in Other Instrument of subsidiary 

Mr. Ashlsh Anupam 
Total-Trade payables for accrued wages a.nd salaries 

• Amount below rounding off norms adopted by lhe company 

Relationship 

Holding company 
Fellow subsidiary 
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 
Subsidiary Company 
Fellow subsidiary 

Holding company 

Holding company 
Fellow subsidiary 
Fellow subsidiary 
Fellow subsidiary 
Fellow subsidiary 
Company having significant influence 
Joint venture o.f Tata Steel Limited 
Joint venlure of Joint venture with Tala Steel Limited 
Joint venture of Tata Steel Limited 
Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 
Jolnl venture of Fellow subsidiary 
Subsldia·ry of Tata Sons Private Limited 
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 
Fellow subsidiary 

rrnP 
PEBP 
PEBP 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 
Joln_t venture of Tata Steel Limited 

Fellow subsidiary 

Join I venture of Fellow subsidiary 

Holding Company 

Subsidiary Company 

Subsidiary Company 

MD 

Rs in crores 

As at As at 
Marc h 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

48.01 43.77 
. O.D1 

0,03 

0.27 -

0.00 -

48.28 43.81 

20.03 

20.03 

885.11 569.44 

651.15 1,206.69 

0.02 0.02 

0.01 0.67 

7.02 5.77 
. 14.90 

0.57 0.17 
. 0.01 

6.74 -

0.21 

2.55 3.59 

0.41 0,39 
. 0.01 

0.18 

0.00 . 

1,553.97 1,801.66 

1.36 1.30 

0.30 0.30 

1.23 (0.90) 

2.89 0.70 

0.00 0,10 
. 0.14 

0.00 0.24 

. 0.03 

0.03 

0.80 0.80 

0.80 0.80 

13,979.91 12,706 80 

13,979.91 12,706.80 

8,139.46 -

8,139.46 . 

4,945.51 . 

4,945.51 . 

4.00 3,29 

4.00 3.29 

TSLP 
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37 Employee benefits 

37.01 - Post employment defined contribution plans 

Rs in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(i) Provident fund contribution* 0.13 0.12 

(ii) Superannuation fund® 3.74 3.45 

3.87 3.57 

* Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the recognised state managed funds. Such provident fund benefit is 
classified as defined contribution scheme as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly 
basis whicli is recognised as expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

@ The Company has a superannuation plan for the benefit of its employees. This benefit is defined contribution scheme as the Company does 
not carry any further obligations apart from the contributions made which are recognised as expense under 'Contribution to Provident and Other 
Funds' in Note 26. 

37.02 - Post employment defined benefit plans 

(a) Description of plan characteristics

(i) Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined· benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Gratuity liability arises
on retirement, resignation, and death of an employee. The plan provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees an amount
equivalent to 15 to 30 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs Lipan completion of five years of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date.

The Scheme is funded by way of a separate irrevocable Trust and the Company is expect.ed to make regular contributions to the Trust
The fund is managed by an insurance Company and the assets are invested in their conventional group gratuity product. The fund
provides a capital guarantee cf the balance accumulated and declares interest periodically that is credited to the. fund account. The
Trust assets managed by the fund manager are highly liquid in nature and the company do not expect any significant liquidity risks. The
Trust fs responsible for investment of assets of the Trust as well as day to day administration of the scheme.

(ii), Long term service award 

Eligible employees of the Company rendering services for more than twenty years will receive long service award on all causes of exit 
as per the Company's policy. The cost of providing benefits under lhis plan is determined by actuarial valuation using the projected unit 
credit method by independent qualified actuaries at the year end. 

(iii) Ex-MD Pension and Post Retirement Medical Benefit

The Board of Directors of the Company grants approval for provisions of special retirement benefits to Managing Directors. The
retirement benefit includes indexed monthly pension which is reviewed in every three years and medical benefits. The benefits in short
are called as Ex-MD pension and Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB). Both the benefit schemes are available to the spouses of
concern MDs.

The said benefits are not contractual obligation of the Company. The provisions of the above benefits can only be given after signing
the agreement containing the no-compete clause. The liabilities are not funded by the Company and disclosed as defined benefit plan.
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(b) Risk analysis

Company is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefit plans and
management's estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows

(i) Interest risk

A decrease in the Indian government bond yield rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability.

(ii) Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in
future. Deviation iii the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the
present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

(iii) Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government bond
yields. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

(iv) Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

(c) Details of defined benefit obligations and plan assets

A. Gratuity (Funded)

Rs. in crores 

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Opening defined benefit obligation 56.79 58.18 

b. Acquired through business combination (Refer Note 38(b)) . 0.66 

C. Current service cost 4.12 4.15 

d. Interest cost 3.75 3.58 

e. Remeasurement (gains)/losses (0.28) (3.67) 

f. Benefits paid (6.31) (6.18) 

g. Acquisitions (credit)/cost 0.19 0.07 

Closing defined benefit obligation 58.26 56.79 

(ii) Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Opening fair value of plan assets 57.69 58.60 

b. Interest income 3.87 3.65 

C. Remeasurement gains/(losses) (0.05) (0.23) 

d. Contributions from the employer 1.55 2.12 

e. Benefits paid (6.23) (6.52) 

f. Acquisitions (credit)/cost 0.19 0.07 

Closing fair value of plan assets 57.02 57.69 

(iii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Fair value of plan assets 57.02 57.69 

b. Present value of obligation 58.26 56.79 

1.24 (0.90) 

C. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

- Retirement benefit obligations - Non-current 1.24 -

- Prepaid Gratuity- Other non-financial current assets - 0.90 

1.24 0.90 
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(iv) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Employee benefit expenses 

a. Current service cost

b. Net interest expense 

other Comprehensive income 

a. Return on plan assets excluding amount included in employee benefits expense 

b. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 

c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 

Total defined benefit costs 

Rs in crores 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

4.12 4.15 

(0.12) (0.07) 

4.00 4.08 

0.05 0.23 

(0.65) (0.11) 

0.37 (3.56) 

(0.23) (3.44) 

3.77 0.64 

(v) The plan assets of the Company relating to Gratuity are managed through a trust and are invested through Life Insurance Corporation (LIC). 

(vi) 

The details of investments relating to these assets are not shown by UC. Hence, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the
percentage or amount that each major category constitutes to the fair value of the total plan assets has not been disclosed.

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Category of Plan Assets: In % In % 

Funded with LIC 100% 100% 

Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% / 7.10% 6.50% / 7.20% 

b. Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) 8.00% 8.00% 

Indian Assured Indian Assured Lives 

C. Mortality rate Lives Mortality (2006- Mortality (2006-08) ult. 

08) ult.

d. Withdrawal rate 

- Ages from 20-25 

- Ages from 25-30 

- Ages from 30-35 1.00% 1.00% 
- Ages from 35-50 For all age group For all age group 

- Ages from 50-55

- Ages from 55-65

(vii) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 6 to 13 years (As
at March 31, 2022: 7 to 12 years). 

(viii) The Company expects (best estimate) to contribute Rs. Nil (previous year: Rs. 1.00 crore) to the plan during the next financial year. 
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(ix) Sensitivity analysis 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The table below outlines the effect on gratuity obligation in the event of 
a decrease/increase of 1% in the assumptions used.

Rs. in crores 
Assumption As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Discount rate increase by 1 % Decrease by 5.72 Decrease by 5.20 
b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 5.71 Increase by 6.14 

c. Expected salary growth increase by 1 % Increase by 5.55 Increase by 5.96 
d. Expected salary growth decrease by 1 % Decrease by 5.71 Decrease by 5.17 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that 
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in 
presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit 
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability 
recognised in tt,e Balance Sheet. 

The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset liability matching (ALM) framework that has been 
developed to achieve long term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the 
Company's ALM objective ls to match assets to the gratuity obligations by investing with UC. 

B. Long term service award (Unfunded) 

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation 

a. Opening defined benefit obligation
b. Acquired through business combination (Refer Note 38(b))
C. Current service cost
d. Interest cost
e. Remeasurement (gains)/losses
f. Benefits paid
Closing defined benefit obligation

(ii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations 

a. Fair value of plan assets
b. Present value of obligation

C. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
- Retirement benefit obligations - Non-current
- Retirement benefit obligations - Current

(iii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Employee benefit expenses 
a. Current service cost
b. Net interest expense

Other Comprehensive income 
a. _ Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions
b. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments

As at 
March 31, 2023 

0.71 
-

0.04 
0.05 
(0.01) 
(0.08) 
0.71 

· As at
March 31, 2023 

-

0.71 
0.71 

0.66 
0.05 

0.71 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

0.04 
0.05 
0.09 

(0.01) 
0.00 
(0.01) 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

0.68 
0.02 
0.04 
0.04 

(0.03) 
(0.04) 

0.71 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2022 
-

0.71 
0.71 

0.65 
0.06 
0.71 

Rs. in crores 
Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

0.04 
0.04 
0.08 

(0.02) 
0.01) 

(0.03) 

0.05 
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(iv) Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.00% 
b. Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) Not applicable Not applfcable 

Indian Assured Indian Assured Lives 
C. Mortality rate Lives Mortality (2006 Mortality (2006 - 2008) 

2008) Ull Ult. 
d. Withdrawal rate

- Age, from 20-25 

} 
- Ages from 25-30
- Ages from 30-35 1.00% 1.00% 
- Ages from 35-50 For all age group For all age group 
- Ages from 50-55
- Ages from 55-65

(v) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 10 years.
(As at March 31, 2022: 12 years).

(vi) Sensitivity analysis 

Signifioant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation is discount rate. The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant. The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1 % in the assumption
used.

Rs. in crores 

Assumption As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Discount rate increase by 1 % Decrease by 0.06 Decrease by 0.06 
b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 0.07 Increase by 0.07 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that 
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in 
presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit 
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability 
recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

C. Ex-MD Pension (Unfunded)

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Opening defined benefit obligation 12.80 12.20 
b. Interest cost 0.87 0.80 
c. Remeasurement (gains)/losses 1.11 0.50 
d" Benefits paid (0.79) (0.70) 
Ciosing defined benefit obligation 13.99 12.80 

(ii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

a. Fair value of plan assets - -

b. Present value of obligation 13.99 12.80 
13.99 12.80 

C. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
- Retirement benefit obligations - Non-current 13.18 12.14 
- Retirement benefit obligations - Current 0.81 0.66 

13.99 12.80 
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Rs in crores 

(iii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Employee benefit expenses 

a. Net interest expense 0.87 0.80 

0.87 0.80 

Other Comprehensive income 

a. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.31) (0.37) 

b. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 1.42 (0.55) 

C. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions - 1.42 

1.11 0.50 

Total defined benefit costs 1.98 1.30 

(iv) Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 7.00% 

b. Pension inflation rate (per annum) 6.00% 6.00% 

c. Mortality rate LIC (2012-15) LIC (2012-15) Annuitants 

Annuitants ultimate ultimate 

d. Withdrawal rate - The effects of mortality and withdrawal have been factored by
constructing a Multiple Decrement Table taking into account the above mortality

table.

(v) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 11 years.

(As at March 31, 2022: 12 years).

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and pension inflation rate. The sensitivity·
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a
decrease/increase of 1 % in the assumptions used.

Rs. in crores 

Assumption As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Discount rate increase by 1 % Decrease by 1.39 Decrease by 1.32 

b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 1.65 Increase by 1.58 

C. Pension inflation rate increase by 1 % Increase by 1.65 Increase by 1.58 

d. Pension inflation rate decrease by 1 % Decrease by 1.41 Decrease by 1 .40 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit obligation as It is unlikely that 
the change In assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in 
presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit 
credit method al the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability 

reGQgnised In the Balance Sheet. 
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D. PRMB (Unfunded)

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation 

a. Opening defined benefit obligation

b. Interest cost 

C. Remeasurement (gains)/losses

d. Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation 

(ii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations 

a. Fair value of plan assets 

b. Present value of obligation

C. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

- Retirement benefit obligations - Non-current

- Retirement benefit obligations - Current

(iii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Employee benefit expenses 

a. Net interest expense 

Other Comprehensive income 

a. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 

b. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments

c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions 

Total defined benefit costs 

(iv) Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 

b. Medical cost - % of annual entitlement utilised (per annum)

C. Mortality rate

d. Withdrawal rate - The effects of mortality and withdrawal have been factored by
constructing a Multiple Decrement Table taking into account the above mortality 
table. 

Rs in crores 
As at As al 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0,69 0.69 

0.04 0.04 

0.07 0.05 

(0.13) (0.09) 

0.67 0.69 

Rs in crores 
As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

- -

0.67 0.69 

0.67 0.69 

0.06 0.63 

0.61 0.06 

0.67 0.69 

Rs. in crores 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0.04 0.04 

0.04 0.04 

(0.01) (0.01) 

0.08 0.03 
- 0.03 

0.07 0.05 

0.11 0.09 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

7.20% 7.00% 

20.00% 20.00% 

LIC Annuitants LIC Annuitants 

(2012-15) Ultimate (2012-15) Ultimate 

(v) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 9 years. 
(As at March 31, 2022: 9 years). 
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(vi) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation is discount rate. The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant. The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1 % in the
assumptions used. 

Rs. in crores 

Assumption As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

a. Discount rate increase by 1 % Decrease by 0.05 Decrease by 0.05 

b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 0.06 Increase by 0.06 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it Is unlikely that 
the change In assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the asslJfllptions m-1y be correlated. Furthermore, in 
presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit 
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability 
recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

E. Provident fund

Eligible employees (except certain employees covered under Note 37.01) of the Comp"any receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a
defined benefit plan. Both the eligible emplo'yee and the Company make monthly contributions to the providen!'fund plan equal to a specified
percentage of the cove�ed employee's salary. The Company contributes a portion to the !Tata Sponge Employees Provident Fund Trust'.
The trust invests in specific designated instruments as prescribed by the Government. The remaining portion Is contributed to the
Government administered pension fund. The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust is being
administered by the Government. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the
investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. 

The Actuary has carried out year-end actuarial valuation of plan's liabilities and interest rate guarantee obligations as at the Balance Sheet
date using Projected Unit Credit Method and Deterministic Appro_ach as outlined in the Guidance. Note 29 issued by the Institute of.Actuaries
of India. Based on such valuation, the Company has recognised/_(reversed) Interest rate guarantee shortfall amounting to Rs. 0.34 crores
(March 31, 2022: Rs. (5.03) crores) In the Statement of Profit·and Loss and also recognised excess of liabilities over trust assets amounting

to Rs. 1.17 crores ( March 31,2022: Rs Nil) . Further during the year, the Company's contribution of Rs. 5.11 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs.
4.49 crores) to the Provident Fund Trust has been expensed under the 'Contribution to Provident and Other Funds' in Note 26. Additionally,
during the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company contributed R.s. 0.54 crores to. the trust, which has been expensed under the
'Contribution to Provident and Other Funds' in Note 26. (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1.95 crore·s.)

Disclosures given hereunder are restricted to the information available as per the Actuary's Report.

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

a. Discount rates 7.20% 7.20% 

b. Expected yield on plan assets 7.55% 7.50% 

C. Guaranteed Interest Rate 8.15% 8.10% 

37.03 Other contributions 

(i) Employees Pension Scheme - Total amount charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year Rs. 3.50 crores (March 31, 
2022: Rs. 3.45 crores).

(ii) Employees State Insurance - Total amount charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year Rs. 0.04 crore (March 31, 2022: 
Rs. 0.07 crore). 

Contribution to these schemes are made by the Company as per the statute.

37.04 The Company has assessed the impact of the Supreme Court Judgment in ca.se of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional 
Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. C-l/1(33)2019Nivekananda Vidya Mandirl284) dated 
March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees' Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition 
of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident 
Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. In the assessment of the management (supported with a view from a legal expert), the 
aforesaid matter is not likely to have any impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Financial Statements. 
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38 (a) Acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 

The Company on July 4, 2022 completed the acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited ("NINL") for a total consideration of Rs. 12,100.00 
crores as per the terms and conditions of Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) executed on March 10, 2022. 

As part of the transaction, following have been completed -
Acquisition of 0.01 %, 456,054,252 Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ('NCRPS') of face value of �100/- each aggregating 
to Rs. 4,560.54 crores. 

Acquisition of 484,375,000 equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 3,100.00 crores. 

Purchase of 694,-029.741 equity shares from MMTC Limited, NMDC Limited, MECON Limited, Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited, 
Industrial Promotion and Investment Corporation of Odisha Limited, and Odisha Mining Corporation Limited ("Sellers") for Rs. 4,439.46 
crores. 

The total consideration has been discharged by the Company in the manner set out in the SPA including, inter alia, payment of financial 
creditor dues of NINL prior to the completion of aforesaid acquisition, 

The Company has further invested Rs. 600 crores in the equity shares of NINL after acquisition, towards capital expenditure, iniiial working 
capital and operating cost to restart the plant. The Company's holding in NINL's equity shares is 92.68% as on March 31, 2023. 

(b) Pursuant to the Transfer Agreement ('Agreement') entered into between the Company and Usha Martin Limited ('UML') on December 14, 
2020, the Company acquired the Wire Mill from UML on June 30, 2021. In terms of the Agreement, the Company purchased Wire Mill 
business through exchange of the bright bar assets acquired from UML originally upon acquisition of steel business on April 9, 2019. 

39 The Board of Directors of the Company and Tata Steel Limited ("the Parent Company") approved the Scheme for Amalgamation of the Company 
into the Parent Company ("the Scheme") at their respective meetings held on September. 22, 2022. The Board of Directors recommended an 
exchange ratio of 67 fully paid-up equity shares of Re. 1 each of the Parent Company for every 1 O fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10 each held in 
the Company. The Company had submitted the Scheme to Stock Exchanges on October 11, 2022 and received no objection/ no adverse 
observations from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited respectively vide letters dated March 31, 2023. The Company has 
subsequently filed the Scheme with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCL T"), Cuttack Bench on April 05, 2023 for approval. 
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40 Goodwill 

A. Movement in goodwill during the year 

Opening balance 

Add: Additions during the year due to acquisitions (Refer Note 38(b)) 

Closing balances 

B. Impairment tests for goodwill

Rs. in crores 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 202.2 

6.16 5.66 

. 0.50 

6.16 6.16 

The Goodwill of Rs. 6.16 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. 6.16 crores) represents the goodwill accounted on the acqulsitlon of Steel Business (CGU) from Usha Martin 
Limited. The entire goodwill as mentioned above is attributable to the aforesaid acquired business CGU i.e. Integrated steel manufacturing plant. There were no
impairment Indicators as at the year end Tl)e outccme of the Impairment assessment as on 31 March 2023 has not resulted In any Impairment of goodwill. 

41 Assets classified as held for sale 
To optimise ava11able-orude steel production, Company had Initiated the construction of 0.5 MTPA Special Bar and Wire Rod-Combi Mill. However. due to strategic 
reasons the Board of directors of the Company decided lD transfer the mill (project) to The Indian Steel & Wire Products Ltd (ISWP) along with all the Capital advances, 
Capital Work In Progress etc. wilhin next twelve months. Therefore, the Company recorded the above men,tioned assets [Capital Advances Rs. 39·.21 crores, Capital 
work In progress Rs. 12.56 crores and Deposits Rs. 5.38 orores) as 'held for sale' In accordance_ with Ind AS 105: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations. 

The Company has me.asured 'the Assets' at lower of carrying value and fair v<1Jue less costs to sell amounting to Rs. 57.15 crores (March 31, 2022: Rs. Nil). The fair 
value of 'the Assets' were determined as fair value of other assets (consideration approximating the ccst) to be received against 'the Assets'. This is a level 3 
measurement as per the hierarchy set out in fair value measurement disclosures (Refer Note 31 (bJ(ii)). 

42 Segment reporting 

The Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements ("CFS'). Accordingly, Segment related note has been provided in CFS in acccrdance with the provisions 
of Ind AS 108: "Operating Segments". 

43 Disclosure relating to provisions as per Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

The details of movement in provision balances and nature of provision is below -

Mines restoration 
VAT, entry tax Cross subsidy Interest on 

and other 
and sales tax surcharge income tax 

activities 

Carrving amount as at beg1nning of the year 2.63 6.01 20.68 29.29 
(2.63) (6.01) (20.68) (27.89) 

Add : Provision made during the year 1.43 . 11.35 
(·) (·), (·) (1.40) 

Less : Amount paid during the year . . . 0.45 
(·) (·) (-) (-) 

Less : Amount reversed during the year 0.01 . . . 

- (·) H (·) 
Carrying amount as at the end of the year 2.62 7.44 20.68 40.19 
(Refer Note (16(b)) (2.63) (6.01) (20.68) (29.29) 

Nature of obligation VAT, entry tax and Cross subsidy Interest on income Activities to be 
sales tax including surcharge payable tax performed at the 

interest thereon to power time of final mine 
distribution closure or during 
companies the mining 

Expected timing of resultant outflow On decision by ccmpetent authority Upon closure of 
mines or during 

the mining 

Indication of uncertainty about those outflows The above matters are under dispute with authorities None 

Major assumptions ccncerning futur� events The matter is with higher authorities for adjudication. None 
Provision has been made on the grounds of prudence. 

Amount of any expected reimbursement, I.e., Nil Nil Nil Nil 
amount of any asset that has bE!en recognised 
for that expected reimbursement 

{figures in brac�ets represents amount for the previous year) 

Rs. in crores 

Contingent liability 
recognised on 

Others 
business 

combination 

0.29 3.48 

(0.29) (11.67) 
. 4.72 

(·) (·) 
. . 

(·) (·) 
. .

(·) (8.19) 
0.29 8.20 

(0.29) (3.48) 

Demand for Provision In 
electricity charges relation to Mines 
and labour related Development and 

matters on acquired Production 
steel business Agreement 

On decision by ccmpetent authority 

The above matters are under dispute 
with authorities 

The matter is with higher authorities for 
adjudication. Provision has been made 

on the grounds _of prudence. 

Nil Nil 
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44 Expenditure on corporate social responsibility 
Sr. 

No. Particulars 

a. Amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 

b. Amount spent during the year 

Amount of shortfall for the year 

Amount of cumulative shortfall for the year

Rs. in crores 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

7.70 2.96 

7.72 2.99 
- . 

- -

. .  

Revenue expenditure charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 1n respect of CSR act1v1t1es undertaken during the year 1s Rs. 7.72 crores, (paid 1n 
cash) as compared to Rs. 2.99 crores for the year ended March 31, 2022 (paid in cash) 

c. CSR expenditure incurred through related parties of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 is Rs. 1.83 crores. (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 0.23 
crores) 

d. There are no ongoing CSR projects and no expenditure was incurred during the year on any ongoing project. The Company does not propose to carry 
forward any amount spent beyond the statutory requirement. 

45 Assets hypothecated as security 
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings and working capital requirements as follows : 

Rs. in crores 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Non-current assets 
First charge (against term loan from banks) 

(i) Property, plant and equipment 3,384.83 3,571.07 
(ii) Leased assets 116.40 119.42 

3,501.23 3,690.49 
Current assets 
First charge (against working capital requirement from Banks) 

(i) Inventories 1,365.14 1,350.09 
(ii) Trade receivables 70.42 60.39 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 112.91 4,558.91 
(iv) Other balances with banks 2.08 2.20 
(v) Loans 0.50 0.24 
(vi) Other financial assets 254.12 247.45 
(vii) Other current assets 155.35 76.99 

1,960.52 6,296.27 
Notes: 

(a) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(b) Refer Note 52 for disclosure relating to total amount of security (charge created) towards working capital facilities and term loan, as on March 31, 2023.

46 Details relating to Company's s·uosidiary are as follows 
Proportion of owner.ihip Interest and 

Name of subsidiary Principal activity 
Place of Incorporation and voting power held by the Company 

operation As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Neelachal !spat Nlgam Limited Manufacturing of steel India 93.15%* Nil 

The Company on July 4, 2022 had completed the acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited ("NINL") for a total consideration of Rs. 12,100.00 crores as per the terms 
and conditions of Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) executed on March 10, 2022. 

• Represents ownership based on share capital. 
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47 Ratios 

Sr. No. Particulars 

(a) Current ratio (times) 

(b) Debt-equity ratio (times) 

(c) Debt service coverage ratio (tfmes) 

(d) Return on equity ratio (%) 

(e) Inventory turnover ratio (in days) 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1.25 4.90 

5.61 4.65 

5.26 9.00 

-41.27% 21.74% 

66 58 

(f) Trade receivables turnover ratio (in days) 3 4 

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio (in days) 112 118 

(h) Net capital turnover ratio (in days) 297 297 

(1) Net profit ratio (%) -14.54% 9.26% 

(j) Return on capital employed (%) 2.11% 9.27% 

(k) Return on investment (%) 4.37% 3.50% 

Formulas for ratios 

I Numerator 

(a) Current ratio Total current assets 

(b) Debt-equity ratio 
Total Gross Debt (Non-current borrowings+ 

Lease liabilities) 

Earnings for Debt Service (Profit after tax + 
(c) Debt service coverage ratio Finance cost + Depreciation and amortisation + 

Other non cash expenditure) 

(d) Return on equity ratio Profit after tax 

(e) Inventory turnover ratio Average inventory • 365 

(f) Trade receivables turnover ratio Average trade receivables * 365 

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Average trade payables * 365 

Average working capital = Current assets 
(h) Net capital turnover ratio (-) Current liabilities excluding current lease 

liabilities*365 

(i) Net profit ratio Profit after tax 

Earnings before interest and taxes (Profit before 
Q) Return on capital employed 

taxes + Finance cost) 

(k) Return on investment 
Net gain/(loss} on sale/ fair value changes of 

mutual funds 

% Change 

(74.49)% Refer sub-note (i) 

20.65% 

(41.56)% Refer sub-note (ii) 

(63.01)% Refer sub-note (iii) 

13.79% 

(12.09)% 

(4.82)% 

(0.18)% 

(23.80)% 

(7.16)% 

0.87% 

I Denominator 

Total current liabilities(-) current lease liabilities 

Average shareholder's equity 

Debt service =(Interest and Lease Payments+ 
Principal Repayments) 

Average shareholder's equity 

Total revenue from operations 

Total revenue from operations 

Cost of materials and services consumed or used 

Total revenue from operations 

Total revenue from operations 

Average Capital employed 
Capital employed = Total equity+ Borrowings + 

Lease liabilities + Deferred tax liabilities 

Time weighted average 
investments in mutual funds 

Notes: 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii} 

Current ratio has decreased due to investment in Neelachal !spat Nigam Limited from the proceeds of NCRPS which were invested in short 
term deposits during FY22. 

Debt service coverage ratio has decreased due to lower profitability during the year. 

Return on equity has decreased due to increase in finance cost on account of interest on NCRPS. 

48 The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956. 

49 The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023 under the applicable law or accounting standards as it does not have 
any material foreseeable loss on long term contracts. The Company did not have long term derivative contracts. 

50 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company except 
for amounts aggregating to Rs. 0.06 crores as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 0.06 crores) which is held in abeyance due to pending 
legal cases. 

51 The Company has not granted loans to its promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and the other related parties (as defined under 
the Companies Act, 2013) which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment or any other loans or advance in 
the nature of loans. 

































TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

1. Corporate information

Tata Steel Long Products Limited ('TSLPl' or 'the Holding Company') is a public limited Company incorporated in India with its

registered office at Joda, Odisha, India. The Holding Company is a subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited. The Holding Company has a

subsidiary Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited (NINL) (Refer Note 38 and Note 45).

The·Holding Company and its subsidiary (.collectively referred to .is 'the.Gwup') hc1ve.presence across the entire value chain of

steel manufacturing from mining and processing iron ore to producing and distributing steel based long products.

The equity shares of the Holding Company are listed on two of the stock exchanges in India i.e., National Stock Exchange of

India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE).

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue with the resolution of the Holding Company's

Board of Directors on April 25, 2023.

2. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.01 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

TSLPL on July 4, 2022 has completed the acquisition of NINL [refer note 38] for a total consideration of Rs. 12,100.00 crores 

as per the terms and conditions of Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA). The Company has prepared the consolidated 

financial statements with the acquisition of NINL from July 4, 2022 [refer note 38]. Accordingly, figures for the year ended 

March 31, 2022 are not applicable and not provided with in accordance with applicable accounting standards. For the 

purposes of disclosure of opening balance/movement during the year as required as per the relevant accounting standard 

/ Schedule Ill and Other pronouncements, opening balance (April 1, 2022) has been considered as balances of TSLPL as 

on March 31, 2022, from the audited standalone financial statements. 

(ii) Historical Cost Convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following: 

• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value.

• assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell.

• defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

(iii) Current versus Non-current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 

• expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

• held primarily for the purpose.of trading,

• expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

• it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

• it is incurred primarily for the purpose of tra·ding,

• it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

TSLP 
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• there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period.

All other lial;lilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

2.02 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Holding Company and entities controlled 

by the Holding Company i.e., its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Holding Company is exposed to or has rights 

to the variable returns of the entity and the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities 

of the entity. 

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of Profit 

and Loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Wherever necessary, 

adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used 

by other members of the Group. 

Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. 

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity. 

The interest of non-controlling shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling 

interests' proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis 

is made on an acquisition-by acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying value of non-controlling interests 

is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent changes in 

equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if it results in the non-controlling 

interests having a deficit balance. 

2.03 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions, that impact the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial 

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from 

these estimates. 

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, and future periods impacted. 

This Note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which 

are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally 

assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with 

information about the basis of calculation for each impacted line item in the financial statements. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 

(i) Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation) - Refer Notes 02.17 and 37

Post-employment benefits represent obligation that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to project benefit 

obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit cost over the 

employees' approximate service period, based on the terms of plans and the investment and funding decisions made. The 

accounting requires the Group to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate and rate of compensation 

increase. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact on the defined benefit obligations. 

(ii) Estimation of expected useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment - Refer Notes 02.04 and 03

Management reviews its estimate of useful life of property, plant & equipment at each reporting date, based on the 

expected utility of the-assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may 

e the utility of property, plant and equipment. 
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(iii) Provision and Contingent liabilities - Refer Notes 02.20, 02.21, 16, and 33

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These 

are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities, as 

disclosed in Note 33, are not recognised in the financial statements. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is 

often difficult to predict the final outcomes. In the normal course of business, the Group consults with legal counsel and 

certain other experts on matters related to litigations. The Group accrues a liability when it is determined that an adverse 

outcome is probable, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible, 

or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed. 

(iv) Fair value measurements and valuation processes - Refer Notes 02.10 2.17, 8, 16, 31 and 37

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. When the fair value 

of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in 

active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model and 

Comparable Company Method. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where 

this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of 

inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 

reported fair value of financial instruments. 

(v) Impairment - Refer Notes 02.08 and 40

The Group estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering 

current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future 

economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are 

discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. 

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable 

cash inflows which are largely indepe_ndent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. The Group has 

identified three CGUs - Integrated steel manufacturing plant at Gamharia, Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited and Sponge iron 

manufacturing plant at Jada. 

(vi) Impairment of Goodwill - Refer note 40

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units or groups of 

cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash generating units to which 

goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the 

unit's value may be impafred. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying value of the 

unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying value of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to 

the other assets of the unit in proportion to the carrying value of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised 

for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is 

included in the determination of profit or loss on disposal. 

(vii) Goodwill Arising on Consolidation - Refer note 38 and 40

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less impairment losses, if any. Refer note 

02.03(vi) for Impairment of Goodwill. 

(viii) Loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses - Refer note 11

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on the days past due. The expected 

loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over past quarters before the reporting date and the corresponding 

historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward­

looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The 

assumptions and estimates applied for determining the loss allowance are reviewed periodically. 
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(ix) Allocation of consideration over the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination - Refer

Notes 02.09 and 38

Assets and liabilities acquired pursuant to business combination are stated at the fair values determined as of the date of 
acquisition. The carrying values of assets acquired are determined based on estimate of a valuation carried out by 
independent professional valuers appointed by the Group. The values have been assessed based on the technical 
estimates of useful lives of tangible assets and benefits expected from the use of intangible assets. Other assets and 
liabilities were recorded at values that were expected to be realised or settled respectively. 

2.04 Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated i":pairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount or recognised as 
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for 
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation Method, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Values 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line method to allocate 
their cost, net of their estimated residual values, over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives determined are in line 
with the useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Act except in respect of certain plant and machinery, furniture and 
fixtures and vehicles, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed, taking into account the nature of the asset, 
the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 
technological changes, etc. 

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as under: 

Category of assets 

Buildings 

Plant and equipment and electrical installations 

Furniture and fixtures 

Office equipments 

Vehicles 

Railway sidings 

Useful life 

3 - 60 years 

2 - 35 years 

1 -10 years 

2 -10 years 

1-8 years

8 -35 years

Mining assets are amortised over the useful life of the mine or lease period, whichever is lower. 

Each component of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the cost of that 
item is depreciated separately if its useful life differs from the other components of the item. 

The useful lives, residual values and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount and are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss within 'Other 
Income' /'Other Expenses'. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each 
balance sheet date is classified as 'Capital Advances' under other non-current assets and the cost cit property, plant and 
equipment not ready to use are disclosed under 'Capital Work-in progress'. 

2.05 Leases 

-

The Group as a lessee 

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right­
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for 
short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less ��:ru::lWI�� s. For these 
leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense 

----�a•:�:��••=�=-;-:.-=-�· 
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lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the 

leased asset are consumed. 

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 

present value of the following lease payments: 

• fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable,

• variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date,

• amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees,

• the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

• payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, 

which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the 

individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use 

asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 

(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or 

before the commencement day and any Initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful 

life of the underlying asset. 

Payments associated with short-term leases of offices are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. 

Variable lease payments that depend on output generated are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in 

the period in which the condition that triggers those payment occurs. 

2.06 Intangible assets 

(i) Railway sidings (constructed)

Railway sidings is included in the Balance Sheet as an intangible asset where it is clearly linked to long term economic 

benefits for the Group. In this case it is measured at cost of construction and then amortised on a straight-line basis over 

their estimated useful lives. 

Railway sidings are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives i.e. 5 years. 

(ii) Computer software (acquired)

Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. It has a finite useful life and 

are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs associated 

with maintaining such software are recognised as expense as ihcurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of 

implementation/system integration services, where applicable. 

Computer software are amortised over a period of 5 years. Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically 

including at each financial year. end. 

(iii) Mining rights (fair valued on acquisition)

Savings in the form of the differential in cost of acquisition of iron ore mined from the acquired mine and the cost incurred 

to acquire iron ore from the open market, adjusted for costs incurred to develop and maintain the acquired mine is 

accounted as intangible assets. 

Mining rights are amortised on the basis of production from mines. 
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2.07 Research and Development 

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure on development that do not meet the specified criteria under Ind 
AS 38 on 'Intangible Assets' are recognised as an expense as incurred. 

2.08 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Upon acquisition of a new business, goodwill has been accounted for in terms of Ind AS 103. The goodwill so recognised 
is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be 
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets' carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and 

value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 

separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets 

(cash-generating units). 

2.09 Business Combinations 

Acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred 
in each business combination is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred, 

liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and equity interests issued by the Group in exchange 
for control of the acquiree. 

Acquisition related costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and measured at cost, being the excess of the consideration 
transferred in the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, 
liabilities assumed, and contingent liabilities recognised, as applicable. Where the fair value of the identifiable assets and 

liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, after re-assessing the fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, the 
excess is recognised as capital reserve on consolidation. 

Once control has been achieved, any subsequent acquisitions where the Group does not originally hold hundred percent 
interest in a subsidiary are treated as an acquisition of shares from non-controlling shareholders. The identifiable net 
assets are not subject to further fair value adjustments and the difference between the cost of acquisition of the non­
controlling interest and the net book value of the additional interest acquired is adjusted in equity. 

2.10 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets 

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Consolidated 
State"ment of Profit and Loss. 

2.11 Investments and Other Financial Assets 

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss), and
• those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of 
cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded in either the Consollda=,.--� 
er comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this de 
stment is held. 
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For investments in equity instruments, this depends on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time 

of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group 

reclassifies the debt investments when and only when the business model for managing those assets changes. 

(ii) Measurement

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 

financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair value measured on 

initial recognition of financial asset. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. However, trade 

receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction cost. 

Debt Instruments 

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing the asset and the 

cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt instrument as amortised cost measurement categories. 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal 

and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at 

amortised cost is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. 

Equity Instruments 

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to 

present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 

reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in the fair value of 

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in 'Other Income' in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 

and Loss. 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets which are not fair 

valued through profit or loss. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk. Note 31 details how the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit 

risk. 

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, 'Financial Instruments', 

which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial 

asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 

to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 

rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 

transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 

the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. 

Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing 

involvement in the financial asset. 

(v) Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. 

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective interest 

method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income. 
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Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except 

for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest 

rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance). 

(vi) Dividend Income

Dividends are received from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as 

other income in Consolidated Statement of profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established. 

(vii) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based 

on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include 

discounted cash flow analysis and available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general 

approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realised. 

(viii) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheet where there is 

a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and 

must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group 

or the counterparty. 

2.12 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

(i) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual 

arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

(ii) Measurement

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its 

liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. 

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) 

and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iii) De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or 

they expire. 

2.13 Derivatives and hedging activities 

In the ordinary course of business, the Group uses certain derivative financial instruments to reduce business risks which 

arise from its exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. The instruments are confined principally to forward foreign 

exchange contracts. 

The Group enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Derivative 

Instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-

ured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period, with changes included in 'Other lncome'/'Other 

es'. 
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Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting: 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is 

recognised in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss, within other gains/(losses). 

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the 

options as the hedging instrument. 

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash 

flow hedging reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of the options that relate to the hedged item ('aligned 

time value') are recognised within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity. 

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, 

as follows: 

• Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory), both

the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred forward

points, if any, are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in

profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example through cost of materials consumed).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge 

accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity 

until the forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the recognition of a non-financial asset. When the forecast transaction is 

no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity are 

immediately reclassified to profit or loss within other gains/{losses). 

2.14 Trade Receivables 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business 

and reflects Group's unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment ls due only on the passage of time). Trade 

receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The 

Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them 

subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. 

2.15 Trade Payables 

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which 

are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after 

the reporting period. 

2.16 Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount .is 

recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 

establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some 

or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is 

no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment 

for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these 

preference shares are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 

Hability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long term 

loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on 

demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting 

period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the 

breach. 
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2.17 Employee Benefits 

(i) Short-term Employee Benefits

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 

period in which the employees render t
0

he related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end 

of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities 

are presented as 'Provision for Employee Benefits' within 'Current Provisions' in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

(ii) Post-employment Benefits

(a) Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value 

of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit 

obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined 

benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the 

end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 

the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in 'Employee Benefits Expense' in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 

and Loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive Income. These are included in 'Retained 

Earnings' in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. 

Eligible employees (except certain employees) of the Group receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined 

benefit plan. Both the eligible employee and the Group make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to 

a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary. The Group contributes a portion to own trusts. The trust invests 

in specific designated instruments as prescribed by the Government. The remaining portion is contributed to the 

Government administered pension fund. The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust 

is being administered by the Government. The Group has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the 

return from the investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. The contributions made by the Group and the 

shortfall of interest, if any, are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under employee 

benefits expense. 

(b) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions under defined contribution plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses 

for the period in which the employee has rendered the service. 

(iii) Other Long-term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for compensated absences which are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 

the period in which the employees render the related service are considered other long term benefits. They are therefore 

measured annually by actuaries as the present value of expected future benefits in respect of services provided by 

employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using 

the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or 

loss. The obligations are presented under 'Provision for Employee Benefits' within 'Current Provisions' in the Balance Sheet 

if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, 

regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

2.18 Income Tax 

_..-:::;;;c-.-..:::,,.__ 

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable 

income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences, unused 

tax credits and to unused tax losses. 

Th current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 

'ng period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which 

cable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions wher o. unts 

cted to be paid to the tax authorities. 

A 

2 
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Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised 

if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 

other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit 

(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted 

by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred 

tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 

tax losses only to the extent that the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other 

evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be 

utilised. 

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 

investments in subsidiaries where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable 

profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 

liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are 

offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity, respectively. 

2.19 Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprises cost of purchases and 

all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Finished and semi-finished 

goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, 

the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on 

weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes the reclassification from 

equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of raw material. 

Provisions are made to cover slow-moving and obsolete items based on historical experience of utilisation on a product 

category basis, which involves individual businesses considering their product lines and market conditions. 

2.20 Provisions and Contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 

Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance 

sheet date. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are measured on a discounted basis. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 

which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot 

be made. 
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2.21 Provision for restoration and environmental costs 

The Group has liabilities related to restoration of soil and other related works, which are due upon the closure of its mining 
site. 

Such liabilities are estimated case-by-case based on available information, taking into account applicable local legal 
requirements. The estimation is made using existing technology, at current prices, and discounted using an appropriate 
discount rate where the effect of time value of money is material. Future restoration and environmental costs, discounted 
to net present value, are capitalised and the corresponding restoration liability is raised as soon as the obligation to incur 
such costs arises. Future restoration and environmental costs are capitalised in property, plant and equipment or mining 
assets as appropriate and are depreciated over the life of the related asset. The effect of time value of money on the 
restoration and environmeh,tal costs liability is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2.22 Revenue recognition 

(i) Sale of goods and product scrap

Revenue from sale of goods and product scrap is recognised when the control over such goods have been transferred,· 
being when the goods are delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivered 
to the specific location as the case may be, risks of loss have been transferred to the customers, and either the customer 
has accepted the goods in accordance with the safes contract or the acceptance provisions have lapsed or the Group has 
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from these sales are recognised based on 
the price specified in the contract, which is generally fixed. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is 
measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The 
transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration. No element of financing is deemed 
present as the sales are made against the receipt of advance or with an agreed credit period of upto 90 days, which is 
consistent with the market practices. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time 
that the consideration is unconditional_ because only passage of time is required before payment is due. 

(ii) Sale of Power

Revenue from the sale of power is recognised when the control has been transferred to the customer, being when the 
power have been transmitted to the buyer as per the terms of contract with the customer. Revenue from sale of power is 
recognised based on the price specified in the agreement, which is fixed. No element of financing is deemed present as 
the sales are made with an agreed credit period of 30 days, which is consistent with the market practices. A receivable is 
recognised when the power have been transmitted as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional 
because only passage of time is required before payment is due. 

(iii) Income from services

The Group acts as a conversion agent for conversion of iron ore into sponge iron and iron ore fines into pellets and provides 
marketing and sales support services for facilitating sales of sponge iron products. Revenue from services is recognised 
when the control has been transferred to the customer, being when the service is rendered to the buyer as per the terms 
of contract with the customer. A receivable is recognised when the converted pellets are despatched or sponge iron 
products are sold as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only passage of time is 
required before payment is due. 

2.23 Government grants 

Government grants are recognised at its fair value, where there is a reasonable assurance that such grants will be received 
and compliance with the conditions attached therewith have been met. 

Export incentives are recognised when the right to receive the credit is established and when there does not exist any 
uncertainty as to its collection. 
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2.24 Foreign currency transactions and translation 

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the Group operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian 

Rupee (Rs.), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. 

(ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at 

the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The exchange differences arising from settlement of foreign 

currency transactions and from the year-end restatement are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis 

within 'Other Income' /'Other Expenses'. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and 

liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. 

2.25 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying value and 

fair value less costs to sell. 

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered through a sale transaction 

rather than through continuing use. This condition is only met when the sale is highly probable and the asset, or disposal 

group, is available for immediate sale in its present condition and is marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in 

relation to its current fair value. The Group must also be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for 

recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

Where a disposal group represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a 

single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, then it is 

treated as a discontinued operation. The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation together with the gain or 

loss recognised on its disposal are disclosed as a single amount in the statement of profit and loss, with all prior periods 

being presented on this basis. 

2.26 Borrowings costs 

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets 

that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those 

assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the 

temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 

and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

2.27 Earnings per share 

(i) Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to owners of the Holding Company by 

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity 

shares issued during the year. 

(ii) Diluted Earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account 

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and the 

weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 
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2.28 Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on 

hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 

or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 

value. 

2.29 Segment Reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 

decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of 

the operating segments. Refer Note 42 for segment information presented. 

2.30 New and amended standards adopted by the Company. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2022. These 

amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly 

affect the current or future periods. 

2.31 New amendments issued but not effective. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1 April 2023. The Rules 

predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments 

to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications. These amendments are not expected to have 

a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. 

Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as accounting policy 

already complies with the now mandatory treatment. 

2.32 Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest crores (Rs. 0,000,000) 

as per the requirement of the Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Nota to the Con110Udatad fln•nclal atatamenta 

03 Property, pJant and equipment and Cap.ta! work-in-progreas 

Carrying amounta of: 

Freehold land 
Freehold buildings 

Plant and equipment 

Fumiure •ncl fOltl..H'ei-

Electrk:al Installations 
Office equ.,ments 
Vehicles 

Mining lease and development 

Railway Siding!! 

T-1 

Capital work-in-progress (Refer note 03 06) 

Less: ClaS&ffied as Held for Sale (Refer note 41) 

Total 

CoatJdaemed coat 
Balance a at APfil 01, 2022 
Additions during the year 
Assets acquired under business combination (Refer Note 38) 

Assets disposed I 'M'ltten off during the year 

Bal-anai u at Minch 31, 202:J 

Accumulated deprecieUon 
.Accumula1ed depreclation aa at April 01, 2022 
Charge for the year 
Deprecialion on assets disposed I written orr during the year 
Pccumulatad depreciation a at March 31, 2023 

Carrying amount 
eaionoe u at t.40,ch l1, 202:l 

Nata: 

Aul 

March 31, 2023 

200,89 
431.71 

4,891.73 
1,114 

332.99 
1U8 

0,29 
7.88 

<4e,76 
5,732.85 

247,24 
(12.58) 
234.68 

Freehold FrNhokt 
land bulldings 

200,55 252.61 
11.ae 

0.1-4 228.80 

200,89 497,07 

,45,28 

20,08 

-

85,36 

200.80 431.71 

03 91 Refer Nole 44 for information on pfOperty, planl and equipmenl hypothecated ae security by lhe Group. 

Plant and Furniture Electrk:.al Offl .. 
Vehlcleo 

equipmen1 and fixtures lnatallationt1 equipmenta 

3,449.94 1,90 <4e2.07 18,07 0.57 
120,97 1.2◄ 3.33 12.38 

2,253.54 0.02 0.07 0,05 
6.26 - 0,15 

5,618.10 3.16 <4e5.40 30,37 0.82 

058.80 1.00 127.63 6.25 0.19 
487.82 0,20 24.58 5,29 0.1◄ 

1,96 - 0,15 
1,124.48 1.32 152.41 11.39 0,33 

-4.881.73 1.64 331:.99 18.98 0.20 

03 02 Depredation on property, plant ilnd equipment hn been included under 'Depreciation and amortisation expenae' in the Consolidated Statement of Profit ilnd LOS$ (Refer Nole 28). 
03 03 On transition to Ind AS, lhe Group had chosen lo carry forward pfevioUS GAAP carrying amount and accordingly lhe net carrying amounl on transition date was considered as the deemad cost 
03 04 Refer note 34 for dilciOSllre of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
03 05 The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right�f-uae asseta) and intangible asaels during the current year 

Ra..ln CR)fctl 

Mininglaaae Railway and Total 
dewlopmen.t SkUnga 

20.<4e 27,94 4,454,33 
- 155.58 

30.14 2,510.56 
- - 8,41 

20,<4e 58.08 7,112.08 

9.09 7,04 055.54 
3,53 4.28 525,78 

2.11 
12,82 11.32 1,379.21 

7,68 <4e.78 5,731:.65 
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03 Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress (continued) 

Notes: 
03.06 Details of Capital work-in-progress 

(a) Ageing of Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) 

Particulars 
Less than 1 year 

As at March 31, 2023 

Projects in progress 85.44 

Projects temporarily suspended . 

Total 85.44 

Amount ln·CWIP-fora period of 

1 -2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years 

2.82 0. 21 146.07 
. - 0.14 

2.82 0.21 146. 21 

(b) Completion schedule for Capital work-in-progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan 

Particulars 
To be completed In 

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years 

As at March 31, 2023 

Projects in progress 

Improvement projects . 98.09 . . 

Sustenance projects 23.41 23.48 . -

Projects temporarily suspended - - -

Total 23.41 121.5 7 -

Rs in crores 

Total 

234.54 

0.14 

234.68 

Rs In crores 

Total 

98.09 

46.89 

. 

144.98 

Rs. 1 21.57 crores represent amount in relation to the Subsidiary (NINL). Operations of NINL were shut since March 2020 and the capital projects got delayed as detailed 
above. Post acquisition of the Company by the Holding Company, the new management has made a detailed assessment, inter alia, involving external technical experts 
as applicable and expects the projects to be completed as detailed in the table above. 
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04 Leases 

(a) The Group as a lessee 

The Group has lease contracts for various Items of plaht and equipment, vehicles, offices, leased land. Leases of plant and equipment generally have lease terms between 
9 10 26 years. vehicles generally have lease lerrns uptc 5 years. cfllces generally have lease terms between 12 months lb 5 years and leases of land generally have lease 
terms between 30 years to 100 years. Generally, the Grcup Is restricted from assigning or .subleasing the leased assets Lease lerms are negotia1ed on an Individual basis 
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do no1 11T1pose any covcnanls other than the securily Interests in Ille leased assets that 
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may be used as sec;urity for borrowing purposes. 

The Group also has certain leases of offices, plant and machinary with lease term of 12 rrfohths or less The Group applies the 'short-term lease' recognition exemptions for 
these leases. 

(b) Following are the changes in carrying value of right of use assets 
Rs in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

Right-of-use land 732.49 

Righi-of-use plant and equipment 77.56 

Right-of-use buildings 2.30 

Right-of-use vehicles 2.53 

Total Right-of-use assets 814.88 

Rs. in crores 

Rlght-of-uso Right-of-use Right-of-use Total Right-of-
land plant and buildings Right-of-use vehicles use assets equipment 

Cost/deemed cost 
Balance as at April 01, 2022 134.44 119.12 4.21 0.56 258.33 

Ad(!itlons during the year . 2.21 2.34 4.55 

Assets acquired under business combination (Refer Note 38) 622.97 622.97 

As·sets disposed / written off during the year 3.30 . 3.30 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 757.41 119.12 3.12 2.90 882.55 

Accumulated depreciation 
Accumulated depreciation as at April 01, 2022 13.34 32.95 0.74 0.02 47.05 

Charge for the year 11.58 8.61 0.34 0.35 20.88 

Depreciation on assets disposed I written off during the year 0.26 0.26 

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023 24.92 41.56 0.82 0.37 67.67 

Carrying amount 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 732.49 77.56 2.30 2.53 814.88 

(c) Following are the c'1anges in carrying value of lease llablllt les Rs. in crores 

Asat 

March 31, 2023 

Balance as at beginning of the year 90.05 

Addttions during the year 4.55 

Acquired under business combination (Refer Note 38) 4.09 

Finance costs during the year 8.03 

Lease payments during the year (17.10) 

Balance as at end of the year 89.62 

Current lease liabilities 8 72 

Non-current lease liabilities 80.9Q 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis -
Rs. in crores 

Asal 
March 31, 2023 

Less than one year 15.91 

One to five years 58.13 

More than five years 81.85 

Total 155.89 
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04 Leases (continued) 

(d) Foilowlna are the amounts recognised In the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss 

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refer Note 28) 

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 27) 

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability 
(included in other expenses) (Refer note (ii) below) 

Total amount recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 

(i) The Group does not have any leases of low value assets and subleases. 

Rs. In crores 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

20.88 

8.03 

2.20 

8.69 

39.80 

(ii) Some of the plant and equipment leases, in which the Group is a lessee, contain variable lease payments that are linked to output generated. Variable lease 
payments are used to link rental payments to output generated and reduce fixed costs. The breakdown of lease payment is as below: 

Rs In crores 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
Fixed payments -

Variable payments 8.69 
Total payments 8.69 

Overall the variable payments constitute up to approximately 31 per cent of the Group's entire lease payments. The Group expects this ratio to be constant in future 
years. 

(Iii) Extension and termination options are included in major leases contracts of the Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing 
the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of extension and tem,ination options held are exercisable by both the Group and lessor. 

(iv) There are no residual value guarantees in relation to any lease contracts. 

(v) The Group had a total cash outflows of Rs. 17.10 crores for leases for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

05 Other Intangible assets 
Rs In crores 

Carrying amounts of: As at 
March 31, 2023 

Computer software (acquired) 2.66 

Railway sidings (constructed) . 

Mining rights (acquired) 8,713.36 
Total Intangible assets 8,716.02 

Rs. In crorus 

Computer 
Railway sidings Mining rights Total intangible 

software 
(acquired) 

(constructed) (acquired) assets 

Cost/deemed cost 

Balance as at April 01, 2022 1.64 7.26 330.86 339.76 
Additions during the year 2.06 - 6.63 8.69 
Assets acquired under business combination (Refer note 38) - . 8,612.00 8,612.00 
Assets disposed / written off during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.70 7.26 8,949.49 8,960.45 

Accumulated amortisation 
Accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2022 0.45 7.26 67.61 75.32 
Charge for the year 0.59 168.52 169.11 
Amortisation of assets disposed/ written off during the year - -

Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 1.04 7.26 236.13 244.43 
, 

Carrying amount 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 2.66 . 8,713.36 8,716.02 

Notes 
05.01 The amortisation has been included under 'Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses' in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Note 28). 
05.02 On transition to Ind AS, the Group had chosen to carry forward the previous GAAP carrying amount and accordingly net carrying amount on transition date was considered 

deemed cost. 
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06 Investments 

(I) Non-current investments 

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income: 

(a) Investments in equity shares 

(i) Unquoted 

Jamipol Limited
800,000 equity shares of Rs. 1 0 each fully paid up 

Total Non - current investments 

(ii) Current Investments 

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss: 

(a) Investment in liquid mutual funds• 

(i) Unquoted 

(1) Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
(2) TATA Liquid Fund· Direct Plan· Growth
(3) HDFC Liquid Fund· Direct Plan· Growth

(4) UTI Liquid Cash Plan · Direct Plan - Growth 

(5) Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(6) Kotak Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

(7) IDFC Cash Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(8) S8I Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth

(9) Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 
(10) ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
(11) DSP Liquidity Fund · Direct Plan · Growth
(12) TATA Overnight Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
(13) SBI Overnight fund - Direct Plan - Growth

Total current investments 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income [Refer Note 31(b)ml 

Refer Note 31 for information about fair value measurement, credit risk and market risk on investments. 

07 Loans 

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non-current Current 

Loan to employees 0.02 0.50 

0.02 0.50 

Rs. in crores 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

19.28 

19.28 

51.49 

179.94 

189.05 

42.38 

27.15 

55.30 

57.19 

202.19 

181.87 

56.62 

25.10 

18.06 

18.06 

1,104.40 

1,123.68 

1,104.40 

19.28 



TAT A STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

08 Other financial assets 
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

(a) Interest accrued on deposits and loans 
(b) Security deposits 

Considered good 
Credit impaired 
Less: Allowance for credit losses 

(c) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity (Refer note 08 01)
(d) Receivable against deallocation of coal block (Refer note 08.02) 
(e) Others (Refer note 08.03) 

Less: Others classified as held for sale (Refer note 41) 

Notes: 

Rs. in crores 
As at March 31, 2023 

Non-current Current 

0.27 0.39 

37.74 3.48 

0.40 0.23 

(0.40) (0.23) 

3.23 10.24 
. 178.81 
. 77.23 
. (5.38) 

41.24 264.77 

08.01 Out of the total non-current and current bank deposits Rs. 13.47 crores is earmarked. 

08.02 By judgement of September 24, 2014, the Hon'ble Supreme Court cancelled allocation of 214 coal blocks including Radhikapur (East) Coal 
Block ('RECB') which was allotted to the Holding Company on February 7, 2006. The carrying amount in books as at Ma"rch 31, 2023 towards 
amounts Incurred by the Holding Company on RECB, prior to de-allocation aggregates to Rs.178.81 crores. Pursuant to the fudgement of the 
Hon'ble Supreme Court, Government of India promulgated Coal Mines (Special Provision) Act, 2015 (the 'Act') for fresh allocation of the coal 
mines through auction. In terms of the Act, the prior allottee would be compensated for expenses incurred towards land and mine 
infrastructure 

The validity.of the Act has been challenged by Federation of Indian Mineral Industries ('FIMI') in 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to 
the extent-that ll1e Act does not provide grant of Just, fair and equitable compensation in a time bound manner to the prior allotees of tt,e coal 
blocks. After much follow-up with the relevant authorities for recovery of compensation, the Holding Company has filed an Interlocutory 
Application on December 15, 2022 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court in tl1e pending Writ of FIMI seeking to expedite disbursement of the 
compensation. 

Based on assessment of the matter by the Holding Company including evidence supporting the expenditure and claim and external legal 
opinion obtained by the Holding Company, the aforesaid amount is considered good and fully recoverable. 

08.03 Others includes upfront amount Rs. 46.89 crores paid to government authorities upon transfer of mining lease under Minerals (Transfer of 
Mining Lease Granted Otherwise than through Auction for Captive Purpose) Rules, 2016. 

09 Other assets 

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) Rs. in crores 
As at March 31, 2023 

Non-current Current 

(a) Capital advances 43.63 . 

Less: Classified as held for sale (Refer note 41) (39.21) 

(b) Indemnification assets 2.29 

(c) Advances lo related parties (Refer Note 36) • . 0.00 
(d) Other loans and advances 

(i) Advances with public bodies
Considered good 1.43 278.26 

Considered doubtful 6.09 7.91 

Less : Provision for doubtful advances (6.09) (7.91) 
(ii) Other advances and prepayments 

Considered good 15.38 38.88 

Considered doubtful . 13.08 

Less : Provision for doubtful advances . (13.08} 

21.23 319.43 

• Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Group 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS. LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

10 Inventories 
{lower of cost and net realisable value} 

(a) Raw materials 

(b) Finished and semi-finished goods 

(c) Stores and spares 

lnciuded above, goods-in-transit 

(a) Raw materials 

(b) Finished and semi-finished goods 

(c) Stores and spares 

Notes: 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

1,300.61 

822.79 

212.57 

2,335.97 

153.06 

78.36 

6.63 

238.05 

(i) Value of inventories slated above is after provisions of Rs. 61.95 crores for write-downs to net realisable value �nd provisiori for slow-moving and obsolete ttems. 

(ii) Refer Note 44 for infonnation on inventories hypolhecated as security by lhe Group. 

11 Trade receivables 

Unsecured, considered good 
Unsecured, credtt impaired 

Less : Allowance for expected credit loss 
Total trade receivables 

Trade receivables from related parties (Refer Note 36) 
Trade receivables other than related parties 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 

(i) Ageing of trade receivables excluding loss allowance is as below: 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

195.78 
0.67 

196.45 
(0.67) 

195.78 

173.63 
22.82 
(0.67) 

195.78 

Not due for 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Unbilled Less than 6 6 months - 1  payment 1 -2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years 
months year 

As at March 31, 2023 
Undisputed, Considered good . 148.89 45.96 0.93 . 
Undisputed, Credit impaired . - . 0.50 0.17 . 
Disputed, Considered good . - . 
Disputed, Cred� impaired . . 

Total 148.89 45.96 0.93 0.50 0.17 
Less: Allowance for credit losses 

Total trade r&eelvables 

(ii) Movements in allowance for credit losses of receivables is as below· Rs in crores 

As at 
March 31,. 2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year 0.67 

(Release) / Charge during the year 
Utilised during the year 

Balance at the end of the year 0.67 

�d 
' 0 p\1" MC-13 -"l

\erect Ac�n 

Rs. In crores 

Total 

195.78 
0.67 

196.45 

0.67 

195.78 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

11 Trade receivables (continued) 

12 

(iii) The Group considers ils maximum exposure lo credn risk wilh respect to customers (net of amount covered by letter of credn and allowance for credit losses) as at March 31, 
2023 to be Rs. 195.78 crores. 

Gross credit Covered by 
risk letter of credit 

As at March 31, 2023 
Amount not yet due 148.89 
One month overdue 25.02 -

Two months overdue 9.09 
Three months overdue 11.53 . 

Between three to six months overdue 0.32 
Greater than six months overdue 1.60 -

196.45 . 

(iv) There is one customer whose balance represents more than 10% of total balance of Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2023. 

(v) There are no outstanding receivables due from directors or other officers of the Group. 

(vi) Refer Note 31 for information about credit risk and market risk on receivables. 

(vii) Refer Note 44 for information on Trade receivables hypothecaled as security by the Group. 

(ii Cash and cash equivalents 
(a) Balances with scheduled banks 

(1) In current accounts 
(2) In fixed deposit accounts having original malurily of three months or less 

(b) Cash on hand 
Total Cash and cash equivalents 

(ii) Bank balances other than (i) above 

(a) In Unclaimed Dividend Ac.counts @ 
(b) In fixed deposit accounts (with original maturity of more than three months and maturing 

within twelve months from lhe balance sheet date) (Refer nole (ii) below) 
(c) In current account (Refer note (iii) below) 

@ Includes earmarxed balances in unclaimed dividend account, 
Notes: 

Allowance for credit 
losses 

-

-

0.67 

0.67 

Rs in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

52.08 
84.00 

0.01 
136.09 

2.08 

914.57 

27.45 
944.10 

2.08 

(i) There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to Cash and cash equivalents as at the year end of the current reporting period. 

Rs In crores 

Net credit risk 

148.89 

25.02 
9.09 

11.53 
0.32 
0.93 

195.78 

(ii) The fixed deposn represents the earmarked balance for the amount held back against the consideraLion payable for acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited ('NINL'). 

(Iii) The current account in bank balance represents interest credit by bank in escrow account on fixed deposits of Rs. 911.17 crores. 

b co Cnarler 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

13 Equity share capital 

A Details of authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 

Authorised share capital: 

75,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up : 

45,100,000 equily shares of Rs 10 each 

Fully paid equity shares 

B Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

As at April 01, 2022 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 

As at March 31, 2023 

C Shares held by parent company 

Fully paid equity s�ares 

Tata Steel Limited (Parent Company) 

D Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of outstanding shares 

Fully paid equity shares 

Tata Steel Limited (Parent Company) 

E Details of shareholding of promoters 

Sr. Equity Shares held by promoters at As at 
No. year end March 31, 2023 

Promoter name• Number of shares 
'lo total 
shares 

1 Tata Steel Limited 3,37,86,521 74.91% 

• Considered as per lhe return / document filed by the Hold Ing Company. 

F Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 

Rs. in crorns 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

75.00 

45.10 

45.10 

No. of equity Amount 
shares Rs. in crores 

4,51,00,000 4510 

4,51,00,000 45.10 

As at M_arch 31, 2023 

No. of equity 
% 

shares 

3,37,86,521 74.91% 

3,37,86,521 74.91% 

As at March 31, 2023 

No. of equity 
% 

shares 

3,37,86,521 74.91% 

%Change 
during the 

financial year 
2022-23 

NII 

The Holding Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 1 O per share Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held_ The dividend proposed by the Board of 
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible 
to receive the remaining assets of lhe Holding Company after distribution of all praferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding 

13 A Preference share capital 
Rs. in crores 

A Details of authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital As at 
March 31, 2023 

Authorised Share Capital: 

1,530,000,000 Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 100 each 15,300.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

1,270,000,000 Non-ConvRrtibie Redeemable Preference Share• of Rs 100 each 12,700.00 

B Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding 
No. of preference Amount 

shares Rs. in crores 

Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10D each 

As at April 1, 2022 1,27,00,00,000 12,700,00 

Changes in preference share capital during the year -

As at March 31, 2D23 1,27,DO,DD,OOD 12,700.DD 
' 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

C Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to preference shares 

The Holding Company has issued preference shares having a par value of Rs 100 per share, Preference shares carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 
2013 The Holding Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The preference shares shall carry a preferenlial right vis-il-vis equity shares of the Holding Company with respect to 
payment of dividend and repayment of capital. However, the hciders of the preference shares shall be paid dividend on a non-OJmulative basis. The preference shares shall be non-participating 
in the surplus funds and also in the surplus assets and profits which may remain after lhe entire capital has been repaid, on winding up of the Holding Co�ny 

For terms of redemption, refer sub-note (ii) of Note 15 - Borrowings 

14 (i) Other equity Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

General reserves 900.00 

Securities premium 1,449.99 

Retained earnings (1,439.51) 

Remeasurement (loss) on defined benefit plans (10.75) 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 14.67 

Gash flow hedge reverse (1.30) 

Total 913.10 

Rs In crores 

Reserves and surplus Other Reserves 

Remeasurement 
Equity 

General Securities Retained 
gain / (loss) on 

instruments 
Cash flow hedge Total 

Particulars reserves premium earnings 
defined benefit 

through other 
reserve 

(Refer(a) (Refer(b) (Refer(c) 
plans 

comprehensive 
[Refer (f) betow) 

below) below] belowj 
[Refer (d) below] 

income 

[Refer (e) below) 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 900.00 1,449.99 799.34 (5.83) 11.87 3,155.37 

Loss for the year - (2,248.47) . . (2,248.47) 

Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments . - - 3.60 3.60 

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefi1 plans - . (6.58) - (6.58) 

Change in fair value of hedging instruments . . (1.69) (1.69) 

Tax impact on items of other comprehensive income (OCI) - . 1.66 (0.80) 0.39 1.25 

Adjustment for changes in ownership interests - . 66.00 66,00 

Transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners 

Dividend paid during the year ( Refer Note 30 (b) ) - (56.38) (56.38) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 900.00 1,449.99 (1,439.51) (10.75) 14.67 {1.30) 913.10 

(a) General reserves 
Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Acl, 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations 
Consequent to introduction of Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to rnandat0<ily transfer a specified pell:entage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn though the Group 
may transfer such percentage of its profits for the financial year as it may consider appropriate Declaration of dividend out of such reserve shall not be made except in accordance with rules 
prescribed in this behalf under the Act, 

(b) Securttles premium 
Securities premium is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
The details of movemenl in securities premium is as below: 

Rs in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,449.99 

Balance at the end of the year 1,449.99 

(c) Retained Earnings 

Retained Earnings are the profits and gains that the Group has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to sharehrnders. 

(d) Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans 
The Group recognises remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans in Other Comprehensive Income These changes are accumulated within the equity under "Remeasurement gain I 
(loss) on defined benefit plans" reserve within equity 

(e) Equity instruments through other comprehensive Income 
The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in equity instruments (Other body corporates) in Other Comprehensive Income. These changes are accumulated 
within the "Equity instruments through other comprehensive income" reserve within equity, The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to Retained Earnings when the relevant equity shares 
are derecognised, 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

(f) Cash flow hedge reserve 
(i) The cumulative effective portion of gain or losses arising from changes in fair value of hedging instruments designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in cash flow hedge reserve 

Such changes recognised are reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the hedged item affects the profit or loss or are included as an adjustment to the cost of 
the related non-financial hedged item, The Group has designated certain foreign currency forward contracts as cash flow hedges in respect of foreign exchange risks. 

(ii) During the year, ineffective portion of cash flow hedges recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss amounted to Rs. Nil 
(iii) The amount recognised in cash flow hedge reserve (net of tax) is expected to impact the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as below: 

• within the next one year: loss of Rs. 1,30 crores. 

14 (ii) Non-controlling Interests 

Non-controlling interests represent proportionate share held by minority shareholders in the net assets of subsidiary which is not wholly-owned by the Holding Company 

The balance of non-controlling interests as at tile end of the year is as below: 

Balance at the end of the year 

Rs. In crores 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
429.65 

The Holding Company acquired 95 65% equity shares in Neelachal I spat Nigam Limited during the year ended March 31, 2023 (Refer Note 38) 

(a) The table below provides information in respect of subsidiary where material non-controlling interest exists: 

%of non. 
(Loss) 

Country of controlling 
attributable to 

Name of Subsidiary incorporation interests as at 
non-controlling 
interests for the 

and operation March 31, 
year ended 

2023 
March 31, 2023 

Neelachal lspat Niaam Limited India 6.85% (55,38) 

(b) Summaried Balance Sheet information of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 
Total assets (A) 

Non-currem llebllities 
Current liabilities 
Total llabllltles (B) 

Net assets (A - B) 

(c) Summaried profit and loss information of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 

Total income 
(Loss) for tile year 
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for tile year 

(d) Summaried cash flow information of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 

Net cash used in operating activities 
Net cash used in investing activities 
Net cash from financing activities 

Cash and cash equivalerts at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at tile end of the year 

15 Borrowings 

A Secured borrowings 

(a) Term loan 

(i) From banks (Refer sub-note (i)) 

B Unsecured borrowings 

(a) Liability component of non-convertible preference shares (Refer sub-note (ii)) 

Total borrowings 

Non-controlling 
ln!erosl.$ as at 
March 31, 2023 

429.65 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
11,594.27 

1,854.97 
13,449.24 

6,113.42 
1,063.56 
7,178.98 

6,272.26 

Rs in crores 
As al 

March 31, 2023 
1,700.18 

(1,218.31) 
(4.52) 

Rs. in crores 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
(1,374.50) 

(577.14) 
896.90 

1,077.92 
23.18 

Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non current 

687.92 

13,979.91 

14,667.83 

Current 

. 

-
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated nnanclal statements 

Notes: 
(II (a) Details of secured tfllTTl loan facilltles from banks is as below: 

Currency Terms of repayment 

Tenn loan is repayable in 

Indian Rupee 20 semi - annual instalments The Holding 
Company has pre-paid 16 instalments (originally 

scheduled to be repaid by March 31, 2029) 

Rs in crores 

Maturity date 
Interest rate As al 

(floating rate) March 31, 2023 

March 31, 2031 12 month MCLR 687,92 

(b) The above tenn loan is secured by first pari-passu charge over all present and future moveable and immovable tangible assets of the Holding Company excluding moveable and immovable 
tangible assets of iron ore mnes and land parcels of Joda unit of the Holding Company. 

(c) Mali.I ty profile of borrOWings ls as below: Rs. In crorcs 
As al 

March 31, 2023 
Nol later than one year or on demand . 

Later than one year but not two years 
Later than two years but not three years 
Later than three years but not four years 
Later than four years but not five years . 

More than five years 6119.00 
689,00 

Unamortised upfront fees on borrowings (1.08 
687.92 

(d) The tenn loan facility arrangements include financial covenants, which require compliance to certain debl•eqully and debt coverage ratios Additionally, cer1illn negative covenants may limit 
the Holding Company's ability lo borrow additional funds or to incur additional liens, and/or provide for lncroased costs in case of breach. The Holding Compafly has complied with these 
debt covenants. 

(II) Duril1{J lhe financial ye,ir ended March 31, 2022, Iha Holding Comf}any issued O 01% Non-Convertible Redeemable preference Shares ("NCRPS'} to Talll Steel Llmiled on pnvete placement 
basis. The NCRPS aro mandalorfly redeemable at the end or 20 years from the date or alloiment at premium of Rs. 574.63 per NCRPS. Tho NCRPS Shall be redeemebie at premium upon 
maturity or optional early redempllon with accrued Interest thereon computed on the basis of the effective yield of Iha lnstrulT]efll, al the option of the Holding Company on a quat1erty basis at 3-
month intervals from the date of allotment 

The dividend payment to holders of NCRPS is discretionary (non-guaranteed) and non-cumulative in nature and acoordingly these are accounted for as compound financial instruments. 

(Ill) Debt reconciliation Rs. in crores 

Total 

Debt as at April 1, 2022 13,391.55 
Cesh flows (Net) . 

lnlerest on liablllly component or non-<:0nvertible preference shares (Refer note 27) 1,273.11 
Amortlsalion of upfront fees 3.17 
Debt as at March 31, 2023 1� 667.8:1 

(Iv) The borrowings obtained by the Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such borrowings were taken 

16 Provisions Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non current Current 

(a) Provision for employee benefits 

(i) Post-<amployment defined benefits 17.51 15.33 

(ii) Compensated absences 93.44 3.35 

(b) Other provisions (Refer note 43) 

(i) Provision for VAT, entry tax and sales tax . 80.55 

(ii) Provision for cross subsidy surcharge payable 7.44 

(iii) Provision for interest on income tax . 20.68 

(Iv) Provision for mine restoration costs and other activities 27.77 12.42 

(v) Contingent liability recognised on business combination 0.29 

(vi) Others (Provision in relation to Mines Development and Production Agreement) 8.20 

T otat provisions 139.01 147.97 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

17 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

(I) The following la the analysis or deferred taxes prcscntod In the Consolidated Balance Sheet: 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

The balances comprises temoorarv differences attributable to: 

Deferred tax 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 liabilities/ (assets) as 

at March 31, 2022 

Deferred tax liabilities 

(i) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 156.87 

(ii) Redemption of non-rorwertible preference share investments -
(iii) Fair valuation of equity instruments designated as FVOCI 3.01 

(iv) Inventory -
(v) Others -

159.88 

D•ferred tax assets 

(i) Amount allowable on payment basis as per section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (5.33) 

(ii) Amount allowable under the Income Tax Act, 1961 on deferred basis (5.85) 

(iii) On unabsortled depredation and carry forward of business losses -
(11.18) 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 148.70 

Noles . 

Additions relating to 
acquisitions during 

the year 
(Refer Note 38) 

2,712.52 

47.92 
-

2,760.44 

(1.03) 

(1,385.51) 

(1,386.54) 

1,373.90 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31 2023 

2,954.79 

(1,667.72) 

1,287.07 

Rs. In crores 
Recognised 

Deferred tax 
Recognised in in other 

liabilities/ (assets) as 
profit or loss comprehensive 

income 
at March 31, 2023 

(25.33) 2,844.06 

88.08 88.08 

0.80 3.81 

(29.81) 18.11 

0.73 - 0.73 

33.67 0.80 2,954.79 

(39.40) (1.76) (46.49) 

(2.94) (0.39) (10.21) 

(225.51) - (1,611.02) 

(267.85) (2.15) (1,667.72) 

(234.18) (1.35) 1,287.07 

1, As part or business combination accounting [Refer Nole 38 to the consolidated financial statement], the Group has recognised deferred tax liabilities on the additional taxable temporary differences 
arising on acccunt of fair valuation or identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and deferred tax assets on the unabsort>ed depreciation and carry forward business losses. 

(II) 

2. As per the provisions of Ind AS 12, the Group has recognised gross deferred tax assets of Rs. 1,385 51 crores, on unabsortled depreciation and carry forward business losses of ear1ier years, 
considering that sufficient taxable temporary differences wm be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits shall be utilised 

3. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws. 
Rs in crores 

Reconciliation of income tax recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Current tax -
Deferred tax 

In respect of the current year (234.18} 

(234.18) 

Total tax expense (Refer reconciliation below) (234.18) 

Rs In crores 

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Loss before tax (2,538.03) 

Income lax expense calculated at enacted Income tax rate of 25.168"/4 (638.77) 

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 103.05 

Deferred tax liability recognised on redemption of NCRPS 88.08 

Effect of Net finance cost of NCRPS not deductible 223.53 

Deferred lax assets recognised on used tax losses and unused tax credits (16.19) 

Others 6.12 

Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (234.18) 
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TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

18 Trade payables 

Current 

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises_ 

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

(a) Trade payables for supplies and services 

(b) Trade payables for accrued wages and salaries 

Total Trade Payables 

Trade payable io related parties (Refer Note 36)* 

Trade payable other than related parties 

Total Trade Payables 

• includes payable to Tata Steel Long Products Limited Superannuation Fund 

Notes: 
(i) Ageing of trade payables Is as below

Particulars Unbilled Not due 

As at March 31, 2023 

(i) MSME 11.70 117.78 

(ii) Others 481.79 1,226.14 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - -

Total 493.49 1,343.92 

Refer Note 31 for information about liquidity risk relating to Trade payables. 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

134.42 

2,712.27 

61.84 

2,908.53 

1,730.92 

1,177.61 

2,908.53 

Rs in crores 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 1 More than 3 Total 

year 
1 -2 years 2 -3 years 

years 

3.36 - - 1.58 134.42 

529.75 503,38 17.04 16.01 2,774.11 
- - . - -

- - - - -

533.11 603.38 17.04 17.59 2,908.53 
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19 Other current liabilities 

(a) Advances from customers (Refer note 19.01) 

(b) Other payables

(i) Employee recoveries and employer contributions (Refer note 19.02) 

(ii) Statutory liabilities (GST,TDS, etc.) 

(iii) EPCG indemnified liabilities 

(iv) Liabilities for renewable energy purchase obligation 

Total other current liabilities 

Notes: 

Rs. In crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

258.00 

17.57 

109.59 

19.80 

23.61 

428.57 

19.01 Amount of revenue recognised during the year ended March 31, 2023, from amounts included in the advances from customers outstanding at the 

beginning of the year is Rs. 118.98 crores. 

19.02 Includes dues of Rs. 12.14 crores towards interest and penalty on delay in payment of provident fund, which has been created as per the provisions of 

The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. 

20 Other financial liabilities Rs. in crores 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non current Current 

(a) Interest payable 

(i) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings . 0.73 

(ii) Interest accrued on trade payables and others . 7.12 

(b) Creditors for capital supplies and services . 37.86 

(c) Unpaid dividends . 2.08 

.(d) Consideration kept in Escrow Account (Refer note (i) below) 828.21 113.45 

(e) Other credit balances (Refer note (ii) below) . 122.97 

Total Other financial liabilities 828.21 284.21 

(i) The Holding Company has completed the acquisition of NINL during the financial year. Out of the total consideration paid for acquisition Rs. 911.17 crores kept 
in Escrow Account held for resolution of the litigations and payment if required or release to the sellers at the expiry of the specified period. 

(ii) Includes net amount payable to Usha Martin Limited (UML) Rs. 80.37 crores towards purchase consideration pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement for
acquisition of steel business and liability towards employee family benefit scheme Rs. 5.61 crores. 

21 (i) Current tax liabilities (net) Rs. In crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

Provision for tax 
53.90 

[net of tax paid of Rs. 367.28 crores) 

Total current tax liabilities (net) 53.90 

21 (ii) Income tax assets (Non current) (net) Rs. In crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

Advance tax and Tax Deducted at Source 
84.11 

[net of provision of Rs. 263.10 crores) 

Total non current tax assets (net) 84.11 

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961, that has not been 
recorded in the books of account. 
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22 Revenue from operations 

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers 

(i) Sale of products 
(ii) Sale of power 
(iii) Income from services 

(b) Other operating revenue 

(i) Sale of olher products and product scrap 
Revenue from operations 

Notes: 
(a) Roconclllalion of revenue rocO!lnlsed with contract Drfce 

Contract price 
Adjuslment for: 

Refund liabilities 
Revenue from operations 

(b) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated on the basis of geographical region and major businesses 

India 

(i) Sale of products 7,570.10 
(ii) Sale of power 61.95 

(iii) Income from services 513.55 

Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,145.60 

(c) Customers who contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue 

(i) Customer 1 

(ii) Customer2 

(d) Contract balances 

Trade receivables (Gross) (Refer Note 11) 
Contract assets 

Contract assets 

Contract llebilltles 
Advance from customers (Refer Note 19) 

23 Other income 

(a) Interest income 

(i) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at FVTPL 

- Bank deposits carried at amortised cost 

- Other financial assets carried at amortised cost 

(b) Dividend inrome 

(i) From equity investments• 

(c) Net gain on fair value changes 

(i) Net gain on fair value changes of financial assets carried at FVTPL (Current) 

(ii) Net gain on sale of current investments 

(d) Gain on cancellation of forward contracts 

(e) liabilities no longer required written bock•• 

(I) Other non--0perating income 

Total other income 

Note: 

Rs in crores 

Year ended 
Marcb_31, :W23 

7,971.15 
61.95 

513.55 

445.13 
8,991.78 

Rs. In crores 

Year eooed 
March 31, 2023 

9,015.52 

(23.74) 
8.991.78 

Rs. in crores 

Outside looia Total 

401.05 7,971.15 

61.95 

513.55 

401.05 8,546.65 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

1,079.64 

1,885.05 

2,964.69 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

196.45 

_20.52 
216.97 

258.00 

Rs in crores 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

31.86 

7.29 

5.33 

21.34 

121.14 

14.21 

60.33 

42.63 

304.13 

• Includes dividend on equity instruments designated as fair value through other corrprehensive income held as at the reporting date, amounting to Rs. 5.33 crores for the 
year ended March 31, 2023. 
•• uabilities no longer required written back includes, foreign currency payables Rs. 30.16 crores. 
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24 Cost of materials consumed 

Opening stock 

Add: Purchases of materials 

Add: Acquired under business combination (Refer Note 38) 

Less: Closing stock 

Total cost of materials consumed 

25 Changes in inventories of finished and semi-finished goods 

Finished and semi-finished goods 

Opening stock 

Add: Acquired under business combination (Refer Note 38) 

Less: Closing stock 

Net increase in finished and semi-finished goods 

26 Employee benefits expense 

(a) Salaries and wages

(b) Contribution to provident and other funds

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense 

27 Finance costs 

(a) Interest expenses

(i) Non-convertible redeemable preference shares (Refer Note 15)

(ii) Bank borrowings and others

(iii) Leases

(b) Unwinding of discount on provisions

(c) Other borrowing costs

Total finance costs

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 03)

(b) Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 04)

(c) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 05)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

979.27 

6,981.48 

193.05 

8,153.80 

1,300.61 

6,853.19 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

301.71 

131.72 

822.79 

(389.36) 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

346.42 

28.39 

15.79 

390.60 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

1,273.11 

101.22 

8.03 

1.06 

4.02 

1,387.44 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

525.78 
-

20.88 

169.11 

715.77 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

29 Other expenses 

(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts

(b) Fuel oil consumed

(c) Purchase of power

(d) Rent

(e) Repairs to buildings

(f) Repairs to machinery

(g) Insurance

(h) Rates and taxes

(i) Freight and handling charges

U) Commission, discounts and rebates

(k) Packing and forwarding

(I) . Royalty

(m) Conversion charges

(n) Other expenses

(1) Legal and professional fees

(2) Advertisement, promotion and selling expenses

(3) Travelling expenses

(4) Net Loss on foreign currency transactions

(5) Corporate social responsibility expenses

(6) Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment

(7) Net loss on fair value changes of financial assets /liabilities carried at FVTPL

(8) Other general expenses

Total other expenses 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

947.63 

312.16 

189.60 

6.91 

24.38 

436.69 

17.05 

57.86 

455.30 

5.42 

9.47 

167.78 

86.70 

21.49 

OAO 

9.23 

17.46 

7.72 

1.82 

0.83 

98.70 

2,874.60 
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30 Capital management 

(a) Risk management 
The objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Group The Group detennines the capital 
requirement based on annual operating plans and long-tenn and olher slrategic investment plans The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from operations, long-temi and 
short-term bank borrowings. 

The Group monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Group 

Net debt includes interest bearing borrowings, lease liabilities and liability component of preference shares less cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances (including non-current 
earmarked balances) and current investments 

The table below summarises the capital. net debt and net debt to equity ratio of the Group, 

Rs In crores 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

Equity share capital 45.10 
Other equity 913.10 
Total equity (A) 958.20 

Non�rrent borrowings 14,667.83 
Lease liabilities 89.62 
Gross debt (B) 14 757.45 
Total capital (A+B) 15,715.65 

Gross debt as above 14,757.45 
Less: Current investments 1,104.40 
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 136.09 
Less . Other balance with banks (induding non-current earmarked balances) 5.31 
Net debt (C) 13.511.65 

Net debt to equity ratio (Refer Note (i) below) 6.50 

(i) Net debt to equity ratio has been computed based on average of opening and closing equity. 

(bl Dividend on equity shares Rs. In crores 
As at 

March 31 2023 
Dividend declared and paid during the year 
Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022 of Rs. 12.5 per fully paid share 56.38 

Proposed dividend not recognised at the end of the reporting period . 

31 Disclosures on financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management 

The Groups's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk In order to safeguard against any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group, derivative financial 
instruments viz foreign exchange forward contracts are entered where considered appropriate to hedge foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging 
purposes and not as trading or speculalive instruments. 

The Group's senior management oversees the management of above risks, The senior executives working to manage the financial risks are accountable to the Audit committee and the 
Board of Directors This process provides assurance that lhe Group's financial risks-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are 
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and the Group's risk appetite. 

This Note explains the sources of risk which the entity ls exposed to and how the entity manages the risk The Board of Directors review and approve policies for managing each of these 
risks, which are summarised below : 

(i) Credit ris k management 

Credtt risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its C011tractual obligalions resulting in financial loss to the Group The Group's exposure to credit risk primarily arises 
from trade receivables, investments in mutual funds and balances with banks 

Trade receivables and contract assets 
1 

Trade receivables are typically unsecured, considered good and are derived from revenue earned from customers_ Cuslomer credit risk is managed as per lhe Group's policy and 
procedures which involve credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continually monitorinQ the credit worthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal 
course of business, Contract assets mainly relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. 
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and the shipments to customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other fonTis of credit assurance 

Other Financial Assets 

Credit risk from balances with banks, term deposits, loans and investments is managed by the Group's finance department Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved 
counterparties who meet the minimum threshold requirements The Group monitors ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of its counterparties 

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk as disclosed in 31 (b)(i) The credtt risk relaling to trade receivables is shown under Note 11 
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(ii) Liquidity risk ma nagement 

Liquidily nsk is the risk thal the Group may not be able lo meel its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Group·s objective is to, 
at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position and maintain adequate source of financing. 

The Group has obtained fund.and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermore, the Group has access lo funds from debt markets through commercial paper 
programs. The Group invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits and in mutual funds, which cany no or low market risk. 

a. Financing arrangement 
The Group has unutilised fund based arrangement with banks for Rs.1,694.84 crores The Group has also Non-Fund based facilities with banks far Rs. 1923.18 crores which may 
be utilised at any time. 

b. Maturities of financial liabilities 

The roUOwmg table Slho\1..S a malurlty analytls of the aoticiprue.d cash 11cms. including interest obligations for the Group's dem,otive and non-denvahve financial liabilities on an 
undii.counled basis. which thererOfl! dltter from both eanylng value and fnir value. Floating rate interest is estimated using the prevailing interest rate al the end of lhe reporting period. 
Cash flows In foreign COIT ncies ore translated using the penod end spOI mtes_ 

Rs in crores 
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying value Contractual cash less than one year between one to five More than five 

flows years years 
Financial liabilities 
Borrowings induding interest obligations 687.92 1,108.48 58.22 232.88 817.38 

Liability component of non-convertible preference shares capital 13,979.91 85,678.01 . 85,678.01 

Lease liabilities 89.62 155.89 15.91 58.13 81.85 

Trade payables 2,908.53 2,908.53 2,908.53 

Derivative liabilities 2.70 2.70 2.70 . 

Other financial liabilities 1,112.42 1,112.42 284.21 828.21 

18,781.10 90,966.03 3,269.57 1,119.22 86,577.24 

(iii) Markel risk 

a. Foreign currency risk 
Foreign ourroricy n•� is the n£1c tho! tho feir wlue or tho ruture Cil5h nows or a financial instrument will fluctuato l>eQause of changes lh fon,\gn e,o:hange ral!!s. The Group 1ransact.s 
business In local cummcy a[ld In fore)on cunencI1!8 (pnntarily US DoBars). The Group has foreign currency trade puynbles and Is therefC11e exposed to foreign currency n Foreign 
currency risk e,posure Is ovaluated and managed l�rou_gh operat,na procedures and sourcing policies. The.Group •• per its risk management pof,cy, USO$ fo,ward·COfltract derivallve 
Instruments primarily lo hedge foreign e,cchango lluctuallons 

USO In crores 
As al 

Ma rcti 31 -2023 
Flnanclol assets 
Trad.a receivables . 
Net exposure to foreign currency 
risk (Assets) 

Flnnnolal liabilities 
Tredo payables 900 
Deova11ves 
Formgn exchange forward contracts 1080 
Net exposure to foreign currency . 

r i sk (Liabilities) 

Not oxposuro to foreign curroncv risk IAssots • Llablliticsl . 

Foreign currency sensitivity 
The following tables demonstrate lhe sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, The impact on the Group's profit before 
tax and profit after tax is due to changes in th� fair value of monetary assets and liabilities The Group's exposure to foreign currency changes for all currencies other than US Dollars 
is  not material. 

Rs in crores 
Impact on profit Impact on profit 

before tax after tax 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 Marc!! 31, 2023 

lncrE.Js.e ln rate of 1 USO against Rs. by 10% 
Decrease in rate of 1 USO against Rs. by 10% 
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b. Interest rate risk 
Interest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Group's exposure to the risk 
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to lhe Group's long-teri,, debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held 
constant, the Group's profit before tax and profit after tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as foHows 

Rs. in crores 
Impact on profit Impa ct on profit 

before tax after tax 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 

Increase in interest rate by 100 basis points (6.89) (5.16) 
Decrease in lnleresl rate i,y iOO basis poinls 6.89 5.16 

The rtsk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes lhat \he cnange occurs at the balance sheet 
dl;to and h85 been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding a• at that date The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the avcr3lle debt outstanding during 
\ho period 

(Iv) Securities Price risk 

The Group is e>q:XJsed to price risks arising from fair valuation of Group·s investment in mutual funds The carrying amount of the Group's investmenls designated as at fair value 
through profit or loss at the end of the reporting period (Refer Note no 8{ri)I. 

Rs In crores 
Impact on profit Impact on profit 

before tax after tax 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31 2023 March 31, 2023 
NAV-lncrease by 1%• 11.04 8.26 
NAV-Oecrease by 1%'" 111.041 f8.26l 
• Holding all other vanobles conslant 

(v) Commodity Price risk 
E•po,wn, to mancet rial( with resp,>Qt 10 commodity pnces prlmonly an•e.s from tne Group·s purcnose or Imported coal for production of finls�,ed goods. Cost or raw m91erwls forms the 
tames! po_rt/on of lhe Group's cost of �es Mnrllel farces generolly determine pnces tor the coal purchased by the Group These pricos may be Influenced by factors such u supply 
and demand. production co!l15 and globah1nd regional e,:onomlo conditions and growth Adverse Cllonges on any of these factors may Impact the results of the Group. However, Sleel 
pnces fqfow the trend of commodlly prices over a peliod and pro-Me a nolurnl hedge to the buolness 

Commodity price risk exposure is evulualed and managed through operating procedures and sourcing policies. The Group, as per its risk management policy, uses forward contract 
derivative instruments primarily to hedge foreign o,cchange fluctuations. 

(bl Financial lnstrumenta by Category 

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments 

(i) Financial assets and l iabilities 
The following tables present \he carrying value and lair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at Maren 31, 2023. 

Fair value Derivative 

As at March 31, 2023 Amortised cost through other lnstuments in 
comprehensive hedging 

Income relations hip 
Financial assets 
lnveslmenls in Mulual fund . 

Investment in body corporates 19.28 . 

Trade receivables 195.78 . -

Loans 0.52 . 

Cash and cash equivalents 136.09 
Other bank balances 944.10 -

Derivative assets 
Other financial assets 306.01 . 
Total 1,582,SO 19.28 -

Financial llablllUes 
Borrowings 14,667.83 
Lease liabilities 89.62 
Trade payables 2,908.53 
Derivative liabilities 1.53 
Other financial liabilities 1,112.42 
Total 18,778.40 1.53 

Derivative 
lnstuments not in 

hedging 
relatlan,hip 

-

-

. 

. 

. 

1.12 
-

1.12 

-

1.17 

1.17 

Rs in era.res 

Fair value through Total carrying Total fair value profit or l o ss  value 

1,104.40 1,104.40 1,104.40 
- 19.28 19.28 
- 195.78 195.78 

0.52 0.52 
136.09 136.09 
944.10 944.10 

1.12 1.12 
306.01 306.01 

1,104.40 2,707.30 2,707.30 

- 14,667.83 12,040.88 
- 89.62 89.62 
. 2,9()8.53 2,908.53 
- 2.70 2.70 

1,112.42 1,112.42 
18,781.10 16,164.15 

�' 
�c;,�; 

r\Hrecl. Account· 
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(IIJ Fillr value musurcmonl 
The fair values of financial assets and liabi�ties are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

(a) The maragement assesse<l that fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalenls, other bank balances, other financial assets (cunrent), trade payables, and other 
financial NabiNties (current), a,oproximate to their carrying amounts due to the short-term matL1rities of these instruments 

{b) In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements Net asset 
values represent lhe price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors Accordingly, such net 
asset values are analogous to fair mar1<et value with respect to these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such prices between investors and the 
issuers of these units of mutual funds 

Fair value hierarchy 
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in delennining fair value, 
the Group has classrfied ils financial instrumenls into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard An explanation of each level follows below 

Quoted prices in an ;acttvn marlcat {Level 1 ): This level hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds. The mutual funds are 
valued using the ci<l!i!ng Nel A55'll Value. 

Valuation techniques with observable inputs {Level 2): The fair value of Financial instruments that are not traded in an active mar1<et (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is 
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable mar1<et data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to 
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2, This is the case for derivative instruments 

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3. 

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period There were no amount required to be transferred 
as at the end of the current year. 

Rs in croros 

[As al l',larch 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Flnanclal assets 
lnvssll)1anl in mulual funds 1,1 04.40 . 1 ,104.40 
Denvatfve assets 1 .1 2 . 1.1 2 
lnveslmonl in equity instruments al FVTOCI (Unquoted) 19.28 19.28 
Total 1 ,1 04.40 1.1 2 19.28 1,124.80 

Flnonclal llabllltios 
Derivative JlabilitlBS 2.70 . 2.70 

Rs. in crores 

Reconclllatlon of Level 3 ralr valuo me11uremont Is as be-low· 
Asat 

March 31 , 2023 
Opening balance 1 5.68 
Changes in fair value recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 3.60 
Closlng balance 1 9.28 

Valuatlon technique used for Level 3 invesiments 

Fair valuation of lhe equity investments as at March 31, 2023 have been determined using the market approach Significant unobservable input used in the valuation was earnings 
multiple 

The Increase I decrease of 1 earnings multiple (keeping other variables constant) would result into an increase / decrease in fair value by Rs. 2.40 crores and Rs. 2.32 croras 
respectively. 

(iii) Derivative financial instruments 

Derivative instruments used by the Group are forward exchange contracts. These financial instruments are utilised to hedge future transactions and cash flows and are subject to 
hedge accounting under Ind AS 109 'Finandol lnstrumenls" wherever possible. The Group does nol hold or issue derivative financial inslrumenls for trading purposes. All transactions 
in derJvaUve financial instruments are undertaken to manage risks ansing from underlying business activities. 

The following table sets out lhe fair value of derivative assets I liabilities held by the Group as at the end of each reporting period 

Foreign currency forwards 

Classified as: 
Non--¢.Jrrent assets 
Current assets 

Non.current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

As at lhe end of the reporting period total notional amount of outstanding foreign currency contracts that the Group has committed to is as below: 

Foreign currency forwarns 

Rs ln crores 
Asal 

March 31, 2023 
1.58 

. 

1.12 

2.10 

USD In cron,,o 
Asal 

March 31, 2023 
12.35 



TATA STEEL LONG PRODUCTS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements 

32 Earnings per equity share 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Net loss for the year (Rs. in crores) (2,248.47) 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 4,51,00,000 

Nominal value per equity share (Rs.) 10 

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.) (498.55) 

Note: 
(i) The Holding Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities. 

33 (a) Contingent liabilities: Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 

(a) Income tax 

(b) Customs duty

(c) Demand from suppliers

(d) Excise duty 

(e) Sales tax 

(f) Service tax

The details of significant demands are as below: 

Notes: 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

0.11 

33.49 

1.52 

721.85 

23.09 

33.33 

813.39 

1. Custom Duty: Rs. 33.49 crores • Demand received from Commissioner of Customs (Preventive) aggregating to Rs. 43.99 crores pertaining to the
financlal year 2012-13 on account of levy of additional customs duty on classification of the imported coat as bituminous coal as against the Holding
Company's classification as steam coal. The Hold Ing Company has filed an appeal against the aforesaid order In the Customs, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal, Kolkata. The Holding Company had paid an amount of Rs. 10.88 crores and recognlsed the non-cenvatable portion of the 
duty and applicable interest as expense whereas cenvatable portion had been recognised as an advance In the year ended March 31. 2013, for 
which the Holding Company has recognised a provision in lhe year ended March 31, 2021. 

2. Excise Duty: Rs. 512.89 crores (For improper avallment of Cenvat credit) - The dispute pertains to Improper avallment of Cenvat credit on
common lnput and input services for the period 2005-2006. 2006-07 and 2007-08. Against the order of adjudication by the learned Commissioner,
NINL had filed a Writ Petition before the Hon'ble High Court on, the ground of delayed adjudication by the learned Commissioner. The order passed
by the Commissioner was without authority of law and ultra vires the scheme introduced vide Section 73 of the Finance Act, 2010, where under
provisions of Rule 6 of the Cenvat Credit Rules,2004 was retrospectively amended. The Company had complied the statutory conditions prescribed
under Sec.73 of the Finance Act, 201 O and proportionately reversed Cenvat credit amounting to , 0.72 crores with due intimation to the
Commissioner. The Hon'ble High Court had been pleased to admit the writ petition and further as an interim measure directed that there shall be no
coercive measures for recovery of the alleged tax demand. 
Hon'ble Odlsha High Court heard the case on December 7, 2022 and pennitted to file an appeal in Tribunal and required appeal has been filed 
before Central Excise, Customs & Service Tax, Kolkata. The potential liability, as at March 31, 2023 is, 512.89 crores. 

3. Excise duty: Rs. 181.02 crores (Transfer of Cenvat credit on merger of KMC.L)" - The dispute involved In the present case relates to transfer of
Cenvat credit lying In the books of accounts of Konark Met Coke Limited (KMCL) to NINL as result of merger of KMCL with the Company. There is
no legal impediment for transfer of such credit in tenns of Rule 1 o of Cenvat credit Rules (CCR). Matter Is pending witn Commissionerate of Central
Excise, Customs & Service Tax, Bhubaneswar. The potential liability, as at March 31, 2023 is, 181 .02 crores.

4. Service tax: Rs. 33.33 crore (Demand of Service Tax under RCM)- NINL is granted lease ol mines by Govt of Odisha. For the said mining project,
NINL sought forest clearance so that forest land falling under the said project -can be utilised for non-forestry purposes and accordingly such
clearance was granted from Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change, Govt of India, on payment of charges, namely "Net Present
Value" (NPV), In the Compensatory Afforestation Fund Management and .Planning Authority Fund, Government of India (CAMPA Fund). An 
Investigation was initiated by Director General of Goods & Services Tax Intelligence (DGGI) and letter has been issued demanding Service 
Tax/GST on these payments on the ground that Service TaxlGST Is payable on these amount under Reverse Charge Me9hanism (RCM) and Show
Cause Notice was issued demanding Service Tax. A reply was-submitted stating that such payment are against sovereign/ public authorities under
statute and hence It cannot be considered as provision of service as it is collected as per the provision of the relevant statute for perfonning
mandatory and statutory functions under any provision of law are not lo be treated as service provided for consideration.
Learned Principal Commissioner (GST&CE) confirmed such demand on 30 September, 2022. Subsequently, NINL have filed an appeal before
CSTAT, Kolkata on December 13, 2022. The potential liabilfly, as alMarch 31, 2023 is , 33.33 crores.
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(b) 

Rs. in crores 

Contingent liabilities: Other matter for which the Group is contingently liable As at 
March 31, 2023 

(i) Renewable energy purchase obligation 6.33 

(ii) Excise Duty 30.41 

(iii) Water Conservation fund 32.35 

(iv) Electricity charges 4.39 

73.48 

The details of significant demands are as below: 
The amount of Rs. 32.35 crores has been demanded Irrigation Department in 2017 under the by Orissa Irrigation Act, 1959. Orrisa High Court has 
granted a stay in NINL's favour. 

(c) Cross subsidy surcharge payable to power distribution companies
In 2012-:13, the Holding Company injected power to State Grid due to denial of permission for open access by Orissa Power Transmission
Corporation Limited ("OPTCL") to supply power to the parent Company, Tata Steel Limited, beyond the period of invocation of section 11 of
Electricity Act, 2003 by the Government of Odisha i.e., June, 2012. As a result, the Holding Company could not meet the minimum stipulated criteria
of 51% self-consumption of generated power as a captive power plant and the provisions of Cross Subsidy Surcharge under Electricity Act, 2003 
became applicable. The Holding Company filed a case before the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission ("OERC") for relief which was denied
and consequently the Holding Company had filed a case before Appellate Tribunal of Electricity ("ATE"). Appeal filed by the Holding Company 
before ATE was allowed and the matter stands remitted back to the OERC for reconsideration afresh. On 01.02.2021, OERC directed NESCO to 
compute the quantum of electricity supplied to the Slate Grid afresh. Against this, TSLPL filed an Appeal before APTEL and got Interim stay order 
on 31.32021. However, on 05.12.2022, APTEL admitted TSLPL's appeal but vacated the ln.terim stay granted earlier. The matter is at present 
pending before APTEL for further hearing. As a matter of prudence, pending finalisation of the matter, an amount of Rs. 7.44 crores (Including 
delayed payment surcharge) has been provided in the books. 

In respect of above, ii is not practicable for the Holding Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, pending resolution of the 
respective proceedings. The Holding Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above. 

34 Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (Property, plant and equipment) and not provided for is Rs. 94.36 crores net 
of advances of Rs. 2.71 crores. 

35 Exceptional items 

Acquisition related expenditure 
Acquisition related expenditure represents expenses incurred on stamp duty and registration fees for a portion of land parcels and buildings transferred in 
the name of the Holding Company, which were part of the acquired business from Usha Martin Limited. 
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36 Related party transaction 

A List of related partlos 

11/omo artho rol•l�d P•rty 

Tata Sons Prtvate Limited 

Where control exists 

Tata Steel Limited 

Others with whom transactions have taken place during the current or previous year 

The Tata Pigments Limited (Subsidiary of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited) 

l<Bliniall Global Shared Services Limited (Subsidiary of Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limned) 

The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited 

Tata Metaliks Limited 

Tatu Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited 

Tata Steel Global Procurement Company Pie Ltd 

Tata Steel Foundation 

Modica TS Hospital Pvt Ltd, 

Tata Steel Mining Limited 

TM International Logistics Limited 

mjunction servtees limited 

Jamipol Limited (Joint venture of fellow subsidiary) 
Tata Bluescope Steel Prtvate Limited (Joint Venture of fellow subsidiary) 

Talll NYK Shipping PTE limited 

Himalaya Steel Mills Services Prtvate Limited (Joint Venture of fellow subsidiary) 

Tl<M Global Logi&tic Limited (Joint venture v,ith Joint venture of Tata Steel Um\led) 

Tata International Limited 

Tata Communication Limited 

Tula Consultancy Services Limited 

Tota 1mg Heattticare Solutions Private Umited 

Tato Limited 

Tats Asset Management Private Limited 

Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

Mr Ashish Anupam 

Mr.TV Narendran 

Mr Koushik Chatterjee 

Mrs. Meena Lall 

Mr. Debashish Bhattacharjee 

Dr. Sougata Ray 

Mr. Ansuman Das 

Mr. Srikumar Menon 

Mr. Shashi Kant Maudgal 

Mrs. Neeta KDnnokor 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Employee Provident Fund Trust 

Tam Steel Long Produc:ts Limited Superannuation Fund 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Gratuity Fund 

B Particulars of transactions during the year 

Name of the related party Nature of relationship 

Tata Steel Limited Holding Company 

Tata International Limited Subsidiary of Tata Sons Privale Limited 
Total - Sale of good• 

Tata Steel Limited Holding Company 

Total - Sale of power 

Tata Steel Limited Holding Company 

Total - Services rendered 

Relationship 

Company ha>Jing significant influence in the 
Parent Company 

Holding Company 

Fellow Subsidiary 

Joint venture with Tata Steel Limited 

Subsidiary and Joint venture of Tata Sons 
Private Limited 

Key Management personnel - Managing 
Director (MD) 

Key Management personnel -Non-
Executive Director (NED) 

Post Employment Benefit Plans (PEBP) as 
per lndAS24 

Year ended 
31 March, 2023 

1,347.13 
270.1� 

1.617.29 

54.14 
54,14 

603.27 

603.27 
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B Particulars of transactions during the year (continued) 

Name of the related party 

Tai.a-Steel Limited 

T::ita Steel Global Procurement Company Pte Ltd. 

Tho Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited 

Tata Steel Mining Limlled 

Tata Bluescope Steel Private Limited 

Jamlpol Limited 
Ta!.o Limited 

Total - Purchase of goods 

Tata Steel Limited 

Tata Steel Global Procurement Company Ple. Ltd 
Tata International Limited 

Total - Reimbursement of expenses 

Tota Steel Umiled 

Ta1a Metaliks Limited 
Tota.I -Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Tata Steel Umited 

Tat, Steel Utilities and lnfraslructure Services Limited 

The T ala Pigments Umited 

"The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited 

Tatn Steel Foundation 

Tata Consultancy Services Limited 
T;:iu, AIG General Insurance Company Limited 

Tata Communication Limited 
TM International Logistics Limited 

TKM Global Logistic Limited 
Mjunction services limited 
Kal,mau Global Shared Services Limited 

T�ta 1mg Healthcare Solulions Private Limited 

Modica TS Hospital Pvt Ltd 
Himalaya Steel Mill Services Pvl I.Id 
Tata Asset Management Private Limited 

Total - Services received 

Jamipol Limited 
Total - Dividend income 

Tota Steel Limited 

Total. Dividend paid 

Mr Ashish Anupam 

Total - Short term employee benefrts 

Mr Ashish Anupam 
Total 4 Post employment benefits 

SJtting fees 

Commission 

Tote Steel Limited 
1 olal • Interest expense recognised 

Tai.a Steel Long Products Limited Employee Provident Fund Trust 
Tala Steel Long Products Limited Superannuation Fund 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Gratuity Fund 

TolDI -Contrlbullon made 

Nature of relationship Year ended 

31 March, 2023 

Holding Company 1,623.24 

Fellow subsidiary 2,835.82 

Fellow subsidiary 4.35 

Fellow subsidiary 61.09 

Joint-venture of Fellow subsidiary 16.47 

Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 26.90 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 0.41 

4,568.28 

Holding Company 31.75 

Fellow subsidiary (3.05) 

SUbsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 13.60 

42.30 

Holding Company 10.32 

Fellow subsidiary 0.05 

10.:17 

Holding Company 46.91 

Fellow subsidiary 4.83 

Fellow subsidiary 5.82 

Fellow subsidiary 0.01 

Fellow subsidiary 1.55 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Umited 3.17 

Joint venture of Tata Sons Private Limited 9.75 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 3.50 

Joint venture of Tata Steel 69.00 

Joint fe'enture of Joint venture wtth Tata Steel 0.08 

Joint venture of Tala Steel 2.57 

Fellow subsidiary 0.10 

Step dcM,i subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 0.07 

Fellow subsidiary 0.11 

Joint venture of Fellow subsidiery 1.05 

Subsidiary of Tala Sons Private Limited 0.08 

148.60 

Joint venture of Fenow subsidiary 5.33 

5.33 

Holding Company 42.23 

42.23 

MD 4.66 

4.66 

MD 0.13 
0.13 

Non- Executive Directors 0.20 

Non- Executive Directors 0.50 

Holding Company 1,273.11 
1,273.11 

PEBP 4.78 

PEBP 3.74 

PEBP 3,99 

12.51 
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C Balances outstanding 

Name of the related party 

Tola Sl<lel Limited 
The Indian Steel & Wire Products Ltd • 
Total -Trade receivables 

Tata Steel Limited 
Total- Financial assets 

Tata Steel Limited 
Tata Steel Global Procurement Company Pte. Ltd 
Ta!a Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Limited 
The Indian Steel and Wire Products Limited 
The Tata Pigments Limfted 
Tata Steel Mining Limited 
Medics TS Hospital Pvt. Ltd 
mjunction servk".es limited 

TM International Logistics Limited 
Tato Bluescope Steel Private Limited 
Jaml!l�lim� 
Tata Communication Limfted 
lilmaillya Steel Mill Services Pvt ltd 
Tau, Limiled 
Kalima� Global Shared Services Limited 
Total -Trade payables for supplies and ser,ices 

Tata Steel Long Products Limited Employee Provident Fund Trust 
Tata Steel Long Products limited Superannuation Fund 
Tota Steel Long Products Limited Gratuily Fund 
Total -Payable to PEBP 

Tnta International Limited• 
Total -Advances paid 

Jnmjpol Limited (Al cost) 
Total -Investments 

Tara Steel Limited 
Total - Non�onvertib_le prefentnce shares 

Mr. Ashish Anupam 
Total-Trade payables for accrued wages and salaries 

,\n,ount below rounding off nonns adoplad by lhs Group 

Relationship Asal 
March 31, 2023 

Holding company 173.63 
Fellow subsidiary 0.00 

173.63 

Holding company 20.03 
20.03 

Holding company 936.27 
Fellow subsidiary 758.15 
Fellow subsidiary 4.97 
Fellow subsidiary 0.01 
Fellow subsidiary 0.92 
Fellow subsidiary 7.02 
Fellow subsidiary 0.02 
Joint venture o!Tata S!eel Limiled 1.63 
Joint venture of Tata Steel limited 8.54 
Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 5.38 
Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 2.55 
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited 0.41 
Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 0.52 
Subsidiary of Tata Sons Prtvate Limfted 0.18 
Fellow subsidiary 0.05 

1,726.62 

PEBP 1.36 
PEBP 0.30 
PEBP 1.23 

2.89 

Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limfted 0,00 
0.00 

Joint venture of Fellow subsidiary 0.80 
0.80 

Holding Company 13,979.91 
13,979.91 

MO 4.00 
4,00 
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37 Employee benefits 

37.01 - Post employment defined contribution plans 
Rs. In crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

(i) Provident fund contribution• 9.94 

(ii) Superannuation fund@ 3.74 

13.68 

• Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the recognised state managed funds. Such provident fund benefit is classified as defined 
contribution scheme as the Group does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which is recognised as expense in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Lass. 

@ The Group has a superannuation plan for the benefit of its employees. This benefit is defined contribution scheme as the Group does not carry any further 
obligations apart from the contributions made which are recognised as expense under 'Contribution ta Provident and Other Funds' in Note 26. 

37.02 - Post employment defined benefit plans 

(a) Description of plan characteristics

(i) Gratuity 

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Gratuity liability arises on retirement, 
resignation, and death of an employee. The plan provides for a lump-sum payment to vested employees an amount equivalent to 15 to 30 days salary 
payable far each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon complellon of five years of service. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial 
valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. 

The Scheme is funded by way of a separate Irrevocable Trust and the Group is expected to make regular contributions to the Trusl The fund is managed by 
an insurance Group and the assets are Invested In their conventional group gratuity product. The fund provides a capital guarantee of the balance 
accumulated and decla'res Interest periodically that is credited to the fund account. The Trust assets managed by the fund manager are highly liquid in 
nature and the group do not expect any significant liquidity risks The Trust is responsible for investment of assets of the Trust as well as day to day 
administration of the scheme. 

(ii) Long term service award 

Eligible employees of the Group rendering services for more than twenty years will receive long service award on all causes of exit as per the Group's policy. 
The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined by actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method by independent qualified actuaries 
at the year end. 

(Iii) Ex-MD Pension and Post Retirement Medical Benefit 

The Board of Directors or the Group grants approval for provisions of special retirement benefits to Managing Directors. The retirement benefit inlcudes 
indexed monthly pension which Is reviewed in every three years and medical benefits. The benefits in short are called as Ex-MD pension and Post 
Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB). Both the benefit schemes are available to the spouses of concern MDs. 

The said benefits are not contractual obligation of the Group. The provisions of the above benefits can only be given after signing the agreement containing 
the no-compete clause. The liabilities are not funded by the Group and disclosed as defined benefit plan. 

(b) Risk analysis 

The Group is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefit plans and management's estimation of
the impact of these risks are as follows

(i) Interest risk

A decrease in the Indian government bond yield rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability. 

(ii) Salary risk 

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the 
rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obllgation will have a 
bearing an the plan's liability. 

(Iii) Investment risk 
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government bond yields. If the return on 
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. 

(iv) Longevity risk 

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference ta the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after 
their employment. An increase In the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 
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(c) Details of defined benefit obligations and plan assets 

A. Gratuity (Funded) 

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation 

a. Opening defined benefit obligation 

b. Acquired through business combination (Refer Note 38) 

C. Current service cost 

d. Interest cost 

e. Remeasurement (gains)/losses 

f. Benefits paid 

g, Acquisitions (credit)/cost 

Closing defined benefit obligation 

(ii) Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows 

a. Opening fair value of plan assets 

b. Acquired through business combination (Refer Note 38) 

C. Interest income 

d. Remeasurement gains/(losses) 

e. Contributions from the employer

f. Benefits paid

g, Acquisitions (credit)/cost 

Closing fair value of plan assets 

(iii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations 

a. Fair value of plan assets 

b. Present value of obligation 

c. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 

- Retirement benefit obligations - Non�urrent 

- Prepaid Gratuity - Other non-financial current assets 

(iv) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Employee benefit expenses 

a. Current service cost 

b. Net interest expense 

Other Comprehensive income 

a. Return on plan assets exduding amount included in employee benefits expense 

b. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 

c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 

Total defined benefit costs 

Rs. in crores 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

56.79 

84.59 

5.84 

8.14 

7.07 

(8.33) 

0.19 

154.29 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

57.69 

21.33 

7.44 

0.86 

74.22 

(8.25) 

0.19 

153.48 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

153.48 

154.29 

0.81 

0.81 
. 

0.81 

Rs in crores 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

5.84 

0.70 

6.54 

(0.86) 

0.75 

6.32 

6.21 

12.75 

(v) The plan assets of the Group relating to Gratuity are managed through a trust and are invested through Life Insurance Corporation (UC). The details of
investments relating to these assets are not shown by UC. Hence, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the percentage or amount that each

major category constitutes to the fair value of the total plan assets has not been disclosed. 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

Category of Plan Assets: In % 

Funded with LIC 100% 
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(vi) Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations As at 

March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.10% to 7.30% 

b. Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) 7.00% to 8.00% 

Indian Assured Lives 

c. Mortality rate Mortality (2006-08) ult. 

d. Withdrawal rate 
- Ages from 20-25 

}
- Ages from 25-30 

- Ages from 30-35 1.00% 

- Ages from 35-50 For all ag e group 

- Ages from 50-55 

- Ages from 55-65 

(vii) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 6 to 13 years

(viii) The Group expects (best estimate) to contribute Rs. 0.38 crores to the plan during the next financial year. 

(ix) Sensitiv ity analysis 

Significant actuarial assumptions for ,the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below 
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, whlle holding all other 
assumptions constant. The lable below outlines the effect on gratuity obligation In the event of a decrease/increase.of 1 % in· the assumptions used. 

Rs. in crores 

Assumption As at 
March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate increase by 1 % Decrease by 13.83 

b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 14.36 

C. Expected salary growth increase by 1 % Increase by 9.73 

d. Expected salary growth decrease by 1 % Decrease by 10.35 

The sensi!ivlty-analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit obligation as It is unlikely that the change in 
assumptions would occur in Isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated Furthermore, In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as 
that applied In calculating the defined benefit obligallon liability recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

The Group ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long term 
investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Group's ALM objective Is to match assets to the 
gratuity obligations by investing with UC. 

B. Long term service award (Unfunded)
Rs. in crores 

(i) Reconclllatlon of opening and closing balances of obligation Asat 

March 31, 2023 

a. Opening defined benefit obligation 0.71 

b. Current service cost 0.04 

C. Interest cost 0.05 

d. Remeasurement (gains)/losses (0.01) 

e. Benefits paid (0.08) 

Closing defined benefit obligation 0.71 

Rs. In crores 

(ii) Reconciliation of fa ir value of assets and obligat i ons Asat 

March 31, 2023 

a. Fair value of plan assets -

b. Present value of obligation 0.71 

0.71 

c. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 
- Retirement benefit obligations - Non-current 0.66 

- Retirement benefit obligations - Current 0.05 

0.71 
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Rs. In crores 
(ill) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Employee benefit expenses 
a. Current service cost 0.04 
b. Net interest expense 0.05 

0.09 

Other Comprehensive income 
a. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.01) 

b. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.00 

(0.01) 

Total defined benefit costs 0.08 

(iv) Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations As at 
March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 

b. Expected rate of salary increase (per annum) Not applicable 

Indian Assured Lives 

C. Mortality rate Mortality (2006 - 2008) 
Ult. 

d.- Withdrawal rate 

-�sf=��}
- Ages from 25-30 

- Ages from 30-35 1.00% 
- Ages from 35-50 For all age group 

- Ages from 50-55

- Ages from 55-65

(v) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 10 years. 

(vi) Sensitivity analysis 

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation is discount rate. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The table

below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1 % in the assumption used. 

Rs. in crores 
Assumption As at 

March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate increase by 1% Decrease by 0.06 
b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 0.07 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in 
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the s.-me as 
that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

C. Ex-MD Pension (Unfunded) 

Rs. in crores 

(I) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation As at 
March 31, 2023 

a Opening defined benefit obligation 12.80 
b. Interest cost 0.87 
C. Remeasurement (gains)/losses 1.11 
d. Benefits paid 10.79) 
<i:loslna defined benefit obliaation 13-99 

(ii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations As at 
March 31, 2023 

a. Fair value of plan assets -

b. Present value of obligation 13.99 

13.99 

C Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 

- Retirement benefit obligations - Non-current 13.18 
- Retirement benefit obligations - Current 0.81 

13.99 
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Rs in crores 
(iii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Employee benefit expenses 
a. Net interest expense 0.87 

0.87 
Other Comprehensive income 
a. Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.31) 
b. Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from changes in experience adjustments 1.42 
c. Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from changes in demographic assumptions -

1.11 

Total defined benefit costs 1.98 

(iv) Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations As at 
March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% 
b. Pension inflation rate (per annum) 6.00% 
c. Mortality rate LIC (2012-15) 

Annuitants ultimate 
d. Withdrawal rate - The effects of mortality and withdrawal have been factored by

constructing a Multiple Decrement Table taking into account the above mortality 
table. 

(v) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 11 years. 

(vi) Sensitivity analysis 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and pension inflation rate. The sensitivity analysis below have 
been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other 
assumptions constant. The table below outlines the effect on obligation in the event of a decrease/increase of 1 % in the assumptions used. 

Rs. in crores 
Assumption As at 

March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate increase by 1 % Decrease by 1.39 
b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 1.65 

c. Pension inflation rate increase by 1% Increase by 1.65 
d, Pension inflation rate decrease by 1% Decrease by 1.41 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in 
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as 
that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet. 

D. PRMB (Unfunded) 
Rs in crores 

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation As at 
March 31, 2023 

a, Opening defined benefit obligation 0.69 

b. Acquired through business combination (Refer Note 38) 2.99 

c. Interest cost 0.20 

d. Current Service Cost 0.13 

e. Remeasurement (gains)llosses (0.35) 

f. Benefits paid (0.14) 

Closing defined benefit obligation 3.52 

�'-C 

lMC.4 
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Rs in crores 
(ii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations As at 

March 31, 2023 

a. Fair value of plan assets . 

b. Present value of obligation 3.52 

3.52 

c. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 
- Retirement benefit obligations - Non-<:urrent 2.88 

- Retirement benefit obligations - Current 0.64 

3.52 

Rs. in crores 
(iii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Employee benefit expenses 

a. Net interest expense 0.33 

0.33 

Other Comprehensive income 

a. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.57) 

b. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments 0.22 

C. Actuarial (gain)lloss arising from changes in demographic assumptions . 

(0.35) 

Total defined benefit costs (0.02) 

(iv) Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations As at 

March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate (per annum) 7.20% to 7.30% 

b. Medical cost - % of annual entitlement utilised (per annum) 20.00% 

C. Mortality rate LIC Annuitants 
(2012-15) 

Ultimate/Indian 

Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) 

(modified) Ult 

d. Withdrawal rate • The effects of mortality and withdrawal have been factored by 
constructing a Multiple Decrement Table taking into account the above mortality 
table. 

(v) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation representing average duration for active members is 9 to 16 years. 

(vi) Sensitivity analysis 

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation is discount rate. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on 
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. while holding all other assumptions constant. The table 
below ouUines the effecl on obligation in the event of a decrease/Increase of 1 % in the assumptions used. 

Rs. in crores 

Assumption As at 

March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rate increase by 1 % Decrease by 0.45 

b. Discount rate decrease by 1 % Increase by 0.55 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in 
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as 
that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance Sheet. 
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E. Provident fund

Eligible employees (except certain employees covered under Note 37 01) of the Holding Company receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined 

benefit plan. Both the eligible employee and the Holding Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the 
covered employee's salary The Holding Company contributes a portion to the 'Tata Sponge Employees Provident Fund Trust'. The trust invests in specific 
designated instruments as prescribed by the Government. The remaining portion is contributed to the Government administered pension fund The rate at which 
the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust is being administered by the Government The Holding Company has an obligation to make good 
the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate 

The Actuary has carried out year-end actuarial valuation of plan's liabilities and interest rate guarantee obligations as at the Balance Sheet date using Projected 
Unit Credit Method and Deterministic Approach as outlined in the Guidance Note 29 issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India. Based on such valuation, the 
Holding Company has recognised/(reversed) interest rate guarantee shortfall amounting to Rs. 0.34 crores in the Statement of Profit and Loss and also 

recognised excess of liabilities over trust assets amounting to Rs. 1.17 crores. Further during the year, the Holding Company's contribution of Rs. 5.11 crores to 
the Provident Fund Trust has been expensed under the 'Contribution to Provident and Other Funds' in Note 26. Additionally, during the year ended March 31, 

2023, the Holding Company contributed Rs. 0.54 crores to the trust, which has been expensed under the 'Contribution to Provident and Other Funds' in Note 26 

Disclosures given hereunder are restricted to the information available as per the Actuary's Report. 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

a. Discount rates 7.20% 

b. Expected yield on plan assets 7.55% 

C, Guaranteed Interest Rate 8.15% 

37 .03 Other contributions 

(i) Employees Pension Scheme - Total amount charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year Rs. 3.50 crores. 

(ii) Employees State Insurance - Total amount charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year Rs. 0.04 crore 

Contribution to these schemes are made by the Group as per the statute 

37.04 The Holding Company has assessed the impact of the Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident 
Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal" and the related circular (Circular No. C-1/1 (33)2019Nivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the 
Employees' Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the 
purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. In the assessment of the 
management (supported with a view from a legal expert), the aforesaid matter is not likely to have any impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in 
these Financial Statements, 
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311 Business Combinations 

Acquisition of Neelachal !spat Nlgam Limited 

The Holding Company on July 4, 2022 had completed the acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited ("NINL") for a total consideration of Rs. 

12,100.00 crores as per the terms and conditions of Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) executed on March 10, 2022. 

As part of the transaction, following-have been <XJmpleted -

Acquisition of 0.01o/o, 456,054,252 Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ('NCRPS') of face value of f100/- each aggregating to 

Rs. 4,560.54 crores. 

Acquisition of 484,375,000 equity shares of face value Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 3,100.00 crores. 
Purchase of 694,029,741 equity shares from MMTC Limited, NMDC Limited, MECON Limited, Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited, Industrial 

Promotion and Investment Corporation of Odisha Limited, and Odisha Mining Corporation Limited ("Sellers") for Rs. 4,439.46 crores. 

The total consideration has been discharged by the Holding Company in the manner set out in the SPA including, inter alia, payment of financial 

creditor dues of NINL prior to the completion of aforesaid acquisition. 

TSLP has further invested Rs. 600 crores in the equity shares of NINL after acquisition, towards capital expenditure, initial working capital and 

operating cost to restart the plant. The Company's holding in NIN L's equity shares is 92.68% as on March 31, 2023. 

The aforesaid acquisition will provide an inorganic growth opportunity for the Group to grow in the long products business and leverage the captive 

iron ore mines of NINL. 

(i) Details of consideration 

Particulars 

Cash paid for acquisition of equity shares of NINL 

Total consideration for acquisition of equity shares on NINL 

(ii) The fair value of assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows 

Particulars 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Right-of-use assets 

Capital work-in-progress 

Other intangible assets 

Other financial assets 

Income tax assets (net) 

Other non-current assets 

Current assets 

Inventories 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Total assets (A) 

Non-current liabilities 

Borrowings 

Lease liabilities 

Provisions 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Current liabilities 

Lease liabilities 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities (B) 

et assets (A - B) 

Rs. in crores 

7,539.46 

7,539.46 

Rs. in crores 

2,510.58 

622.97 

143.08 

8,612.00 

7.89 

0.78 

0.38 

11,897.66 

357.18 

1,077.92 

0.74 

58.85 

1,494.69 

13,392.35 

4,560.54 

3.65 

66.60 

1,373.90 

6,004.69 

0.44 

191.65 

69.44 

92.26 

438.78 

792.57 

6,797.26 
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(iii) Calculation of goodwill on business combination 

Particulars 

Consideration for acquisition of equity shares 

Add : Fair value of non-controlling interests 

Less : Fair value of identifiable net assets 

Goodwill 

Rs. in crores 

7,539.46 

251.32 

(6,595.09) 

1,195.69 

Goodwill is attributable to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market development and the assembled workforce of 
NINL. These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible 
assets. 

Goodwill arising on this acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes_ 

(iv) Consideration - cash outflow during the year 

Particulars 

Cash paid for acquisition of equity shares of NINL 

Cash paid for acquisition of non-convertible preference shares of NINL 

Total consideration 

Less : Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired 

Less : Advance against equity instrument 

Net outflow of cash - investing activities 

(v) Acquisition related costs 

No material cost was incurred towards the acquisition. 

(vi) Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group 

Rs. in crores 

7,539.46 

4,560.54 

12,100.00 

(1,077.92) 

(1,210.00) 

9,812.08 

a The acquired business contributed Rs. 1,645.55 crores of revenue from operations and Rs. 1,508.36 crores loss before exceptional 
items to the Group for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

b If the business combinations had been effected at April 1, 2022, the revenue from operations of the Group would have been Rs. 1,652.17 

crores and the loss before exceptional items for the year would have been Rs. 1, 7D1 .39 crores. The management consider these 'pro­
forma' numbers to represent an approximate measure of the performance of the Group on an annualised basis. 
However to provide a reference point for comparison In future periods, the aforesaid annualised pro-forma numbers to be read in 
conjunction with the NINL's business plan of operating at full capacity of 1.10 MTPA for the entire financial year ending March 31, 2024 as 
against gradual stabilisation of production to that level in March 2023 from the acquisition date when the plant was not In operaOons and 
was shut down from March 2020. 

39 Th!! Board of Directors of the Company and Tata Steel Limited ("the Parent Company') approved the Scheme for Amalgamation of the Company Into the 
Parent Company ("the Scheme") at their respective meetings held on September 22, 2022. The Board of Directors recommended an exchange ratio of 
67 fully paid-up equity shares of Re. 1 each of the Parent Company for every 1 O fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 1 O each held in the Company. The 
Company had submitted the Scheme to Stock Exchanges on October 11, 2022 and received no objection/ no adverse observations from the National 
Stock Exchange of India Limited anc! BSE Limited respectively vide letters dated March 31. 2023. The Company has subseqlienUy filed the Scherne with 
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT"), Cuttack Bench on April 05, 2023 for approval. 
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40 Goodwill 

A. Movement in goodwill during the year 

Opening balance 

Add : Additions during the year due to acquisitions (Refer Note 38) 

Closing balances 

B. Impairment tests for goodwill 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

6.16 

1,195.69 

1,201.86 

(i) The Goodwill of Rs. 6.16 crores represents the goodwill accounted on the acquisition of Steel Business (CGU) from Usha Martin Limited. The entire goodwill as 
mentioned above is attributable to the aforesaid acquired business CGU i.e. lnlegrated steel manufacturing plant. The outcome of the impairment assessment as on 
31 March 2023 has not resulted in any impairment of goodwill. 

(ii) The carrying value of goodwill of Rs. 1,195.69 crores relates to the goodwill that arose on the acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited (CGU). The Recoverable 
Value of the CGU has been assessed based on higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use for the underlying businesses. 

The fair value less costs to sell model uses cash flow forecasts based on the most recently approved financial plan for FY24. Beyond FY24, the cash flow forecasts 
is based on strategic forecasts which cover a period i.e. estimated time to extract the total usable mineral reserves for mining business and six years for steel 
business and future projections taking the analysis out to perpetuity which includes capital expenditure for capacity expansion of steel making facilities from the 
current 1.1 MTPA to 4.56 MTPA by FY 29 as well as estimated EBITDA changes due to implementation of the expansion strategy and operating the assets. 

Key assumptions to the fair value less costs to sell model are changes to selling prices and raw material costs, steel demand, amount of capital expenditure needed 
for expansion of the existing facilities, EBITDA, and a post-tax discount rate of 10.10%. The estimates of capital expenditure for capacity expansion of steel making 
assets is based on management's internal estimates of implementing the expansion strategy. 

For the fair value less costs to sell model, a 4.00% growth rate is used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the specifically forecasted period of six years in respect 
of which strategic forecasts have been prepared. T�e outcome of the impairment assessment as on 31 March 2023 has not resulted in any impairment of goodwill. 

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis including discount rate on the impairment assessment of goodwill. The Group believes that no reasonably possible 
change in any of the key assumptions used in the model would cause the carrying value of goodwill to materially exceed its recoverable value. 

41 Assets classified as held for sale 

To optimise available crude steel production, the Holding Company had initiated the construction of 0.5 MTPA Special Bar and Wire Rod-Cambi Mill. However, due to 
strategic reasons the Board of directors of the.Company decided to transfer the mill (project) to The Indian Steel & Wire Products Ltd (ISWP) along with all the Capital 
advances, Capital Work In Progress elc. within next twelve months. Thererore, the Group recorded the above mentioned assets [Capital Advances Rs. 39.21 crores, 
Capital work in progress Rs, 12.56 crores and Deposits Rs. 5.38 crores] as 'held for sale' in accordance with Ind AS 105: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations. 

The Company has measured 'the Assets' at lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to sell amounting to Rs. 57.15 crores . The fair value of 'the Assets' were 
determined as fair value of other assets (consideration approximating the cost) to be received against 'the Assets'. This is a level 3 measurement as per the hierarchy set 
out in fair value measurement disclosures (Refer Note 31(b)(i

°

i)). 

42 Segment reporting 

(i) The Group is in the business of manufacture of steel and allied products and accordingly, steel and allied products is the only reportable segment in accordance with 
Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. 

(ii) All non-current assets of the Group are located in India. 

(Iii) Details of revenue based on geographical location of customers is as below: Rs. in crores 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 
(i) India 8,145.60 
(ii) Outside India 401.05 

Total 8,546.66 

(iv) Customers who contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenuo Rs. in crorea 
Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

(i) Customer 1 1,079.64 

(ii) Customer2 1,885.05 

Total 2,964.69 
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43 Disclosure relating to provisions as per Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

]"he details of movement in provision balances and nature of provision is below -

Mines restoration 
VAT, entry tax Cross subsidy Interest on 

and other 
and sales tax surcharge income tax 

activities 

Carrying amount as at beginning of the year 2.63 6.01 20.68 29.29 

Add.itions relating to acquisitions 90.37 - - -

Add : Provision made during the year 0.84 1.43 - 11.35 

Less : Amount paid during the year 13.28 - - 0.45 

Less : Amount reversed dunng the year 0.01 - - -

Carrying amount as at the end of the year 80.55 7.44 20.68 40.19 

(Refer Note (16(b)) 

Nature of obligation VAT, entry tax and Cross subsidy Interest on income Activities to be 
sales tax including surcharge payable tax performed at the 

interest thereon to power lime of final mine 
distribution closure or dunng 
companies the mining 

Expected timing of resultant outflow On decision by competent authonty Upon closure of 
mines or during 

the mining 

Indication of uncertainty about those outflows The above matters are under dispute with authonties None 

Major assumptions concerning future events The matter is with higher authorities for adjudication. None 
Provision has been made on the grounds of prudence. 

Amount of any expected reimbursement, i.e., Nil Nil Nil Nil 
amount of any asset that has been recognised 
for that expected reimbursement 

Rs. in crores 

Contingent liability 
recognised on 

Others 
business 

combination 

0.29 3.48 

- -

- 4.72 

- -

- -

0.29 8.20 

Demand for Provision in 
electricity charges relation to Mines 
and labour related Development and 

matters on acquired Production 
steel business Agreement 

On decision by competent authority 

The above matters are under dispute 
with authonties 

The matter is with higher authorities for 
adjudication. Provision has been made 

on the grounds of prudence. 

Nil Nil 
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44 Assets hypothecated as security 
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings and working capital requirements as follows 

Non-current assets 

First charge (against term loan from banks) 

(i) Property, plant and equipment

(ii) Leased assets

Current assets 

First charge (against working capital requirement from Banks) 

(i) Inventories

(ii) Trade receivables

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Other balances with banks

(v) Loans

(vi) Other financial assets

(vii) Other current assets

45 Details relating to the Holding Company's subsidiary are as follows. 

Place of 
Name of subsidiary Principal activity incorporation and 

operation 

Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited Manufacturing of steel India 

Rs. in crores 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

3,384.83 

116.40 

3,501.23 

2,264.01 

196.05 

136.09 

5.48 

0.50 

265.20 

319.44 
3,186.77 

Proportion of 
ownership interest and 

voting power held by 
the Holding Company 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

93.15%* 

The Company on July 4, 2022 had completed the acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited ("NINL") for a total consideration of Rs. 12,100.00 

crores as per the terms and conditions of Share Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) executed on March 10, 2022. 

* Represents ownership based on share capital.
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46 Disclosure of add itional infonnation as required by Schedule Ill 

Net Assets 

Particulars As¾of 
consolidated Amount 

Rs. in crores net assets 

A Parent 

Tata Steel Long Producls Limited 210 00% 2,014 30 

B Subsidiaries 
Neelachal I spat Nigam Limited 655 00% 6,272 22 

C Adjustments due to consolidation (765 00)% (7,328 32) 
Total 100.00% 958.20 

D Non-Controlling Interests 
Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 429 65 

Consolidated (loss)/ profit after tax and net assets 1,387.85 

Share in profit or (loss) 

As%of 
consolidated 

Amount 
Rs. in crores 

profitl(loss) 

4800% (1,085 49) 

54 00% (1,218 34) 

(2 00)% 55 36 
100.00% {2,248.47) 

(55,38) 

(2,303.85) 

Share in other Share in total comprehensive 
comprehensive income income 

As% of As 0/. of 

consolidated other Amount consolidated total Amount 
comprehensive Rs. in crores comprehensive Rs. in crores 
income I (Loss) income/(Loss) 

(23.00)% 0.80 4800% (1,084 69) 

132.00% (4.52) 54 00% (1,222 86) 

(8,00)% 0 29 (2 00)% 55,65 
101.00% (3.43) 100.00% (2,251.90) 

(0,29) (55 67) 

(3.72) (2,307.57) 

47 The following table depicts the details of balances outstanding in respect of transactions undertaken with a company struck off under seclion 28 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

Rs. in crores 

Sr As at Nature of transactions with Relationship 

No 
Name of struck off Company March 31, 2023 struck-off Company with the struck-

off Company 

1 KEONJHAR MINERALS (P) LTD• 0,00 Purchase or goods Vendor 
2 SPRAYING SYSTEMS(INDIA)PVT.LTD' 000 P\irchase of goods Vendor 
3 SAP COMMUNICATION PVT. LTD' 0,00 P�rchase Cl/ good• Vendor 
� SUZUSONS CARE PVT LTD' 0,00 Purchase of goods Vendor 
5 KG KHOSLA COMPRESSORS LTD 0,10 Purchase of goods Vendor 
6 PARAMOUNT SINTERS P.LTD 005 Purchase of goods Vendor 
7 VALLAS ENGINEERS PVT LTD 0,03 Purchase cl goods Vendor 
8 JAYASWALS NECO LTD 0,01 Purcha,;e or good• Vendor 
9 ASHCROFT INDIA PVT. LTD' 0,00 Purct,ase or good• Vendor 

10 PRANAM POWERMECH PVT. LTD• 0.00 Purchase or goods Vendor 
11 GEOMIN CONSULTANTS PVT LTD" 0,00 Purchase of goods Vendor 

• Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Group 

4ft ThP. Grn11p w.:1� not required to recognise a provision as at March 31. 2023 under the applicable law or accounting standards as it does not have any material foreseeable loss u11 lu11y l�rrn contracts. The 
Group did not have long term derivative contracts.. 

49 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company except for amou_nts aggregating to Rs 0.06 crores as 
at March 31, 2023 which is held in abeyance due to pending legal cases. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred lo the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the subsidiary of 
the Holding Company during the year ended March 31, 2023, 

50 The Group has not granted loans to its promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and the other related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) which are repayable on demand or 
without specifying any terms or period of repayment or any other loans or advance in the nature of loans 

51 (a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share pre!T'ium or any other sources or kind or funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("lnlermed,artes"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wrting or otheiwise, that the lntenmediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(bl The Holding Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign cntll,es ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wrting or otheiwise, that 
the Holding Company sfulll, whether, direclly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities iden1ified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries other than investment of Rs 12,700 crores during the year towards acquisition of Neelachal lspat Nigam Limited 
("NINL"), (which !hereby became a subsidiary of TSLP (Refer Note 1 )I / subscription to shares or NI NL out of funds received (through issuance of non-convertible redeemable preference shares by 
the Holding Company) from the Parent Company of the Holding Company, Tata Steel Limited The aforesaid investments of Holding Company in NINL is cancelled in these consolidated financial 
statements 

The acquisition, inter alia, provides inorganic growth for the Group to Qrow in long products business and leverage the captive mines of NINL The Ac-.q11isitinn wns made in ac.cordance with the 
process run by Department of Investment and Public Asset Management, Government of India and other applicable regulatory requirements With the above and given the transaction involves no 
camouflage to hide any beneficiaries, no further disclosures, in this regard, are required. 

52 The Subsidiary of the Holding Company was granted mining lease by the Government of Odisha for a period of 50 years (from 2017). The Subsidiary during the period (after July 4, 2022) has 
commenced plant and mining operations and has submitted a progressive mine closure plan to the mining authoriti'es The Subsidiary assessed with their inhouse technical experts, that the mining pits 
are being prepared and operations are currently limited to the surface level of mines and the extent of mining does not give rise lo any obligation for mines restoration cost as at the balance sheet date. 

53 The Holding Company has made an investment in a subsidiary (company), Further the Group has invested in thirteen mutual fund schemes during the year, The Group has not granted secured/ 
unsecured loans/ advances in the nature of loans to any Company/Firm/Limited Liability Partnership/Other Party during lhe year other than loan to len employees The Group did not stand guarantee or 
provided security to any Company/Firm/Limited Liability Partnership/Other party during lhe year. The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outslanding at the balance sheet date with respect to 
such loans are as per the table given below: 

Rs. in crores 
Loans 

Aggregate mnount granted/ p<0vkled during lhe financial year 
,Others 0,05 

Balance outstanding as at March 31, 2023 in respect of the above case 
-Others 0.03 




	A. Standalone Audited Accounts with audit report-FY'23
	3.Standalone Audit Report
	1.TSLP-SFS-FY'23-Signed
	TSLP-SFS-FY'23
	Standalone FS
	SFS-Notes Signed

	Standalone FS


	B. Consolidated Audited Accounts with audit report-FY'23
	4.Consolidation Audit Report
	2.TSLP-CFS-FY'23-Signed
	Consolidated FS
	CFS-Notes Signed
	Consolidated FS





